Gardnerville Town Board OWeeting

@December 4, 2012

4:30 p.m.




m GARDNERVILLE TOWN BOARD 1407 Highway 305
af ‘ . Gardnerville, Nevada 89410
Gardneerlle . T75-782-7134 FAX: 775-782-7135
(et Nevada Meeting Agenda www.gardnerville-nv.gov
Paul Lindsay, Chairman
Ken Miller, Vice Chairman
Lloyd Higuera, Board Member
Mike Philips, Board Member
Linda Slater, Board Member

Tuesday, December 4, 2012 4:30 p.m. Gardnerville Town Hall

MISSION STATEMENT

“The Town of Gardnerville provides high quality services based on comrunity needs in a cost effective and efficient manner. We will
strive to protect the community's quality of life while proactively preparing for the future. We will be accessible and fully accountable to
our cornmunity.”

Copies of the finalized agenda are posted at the following locations prior to meeting day in accordance with NRS Chapter 241: Gardnenville
Town Offices, Gardnerville Post Office, Carson Valley Chamber of Commerce and Visitors Authority and the Douglas County 8" Street Historic
Courthouse. The agenda is also posted on the Internet at www.gardnenville-nv.gov. All items shall include discussion and possible action to
approve, modify, deny, or continue,

Notice to Persons with Disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special assistance or accommodations at the
meeting are requested to notify the Gardnerville Town Offices in writing at 1407 Highway 385, Gardnerville NV 89410, or by calling (775) 782-
7134 at least 24 hours in advance.

Nofice regarding NRS 237: The Gardnerville Town Board has adepted a Standard Policy No. 7, which contains a motion regarding Business
Impact Statements. When the Town Board approves its agenda, it also approves a motion which includes ratification of staff action taken
pursuant to NRS 237-030 et seq. with respect to items on the agenda, and determines that each Rule which is on the agenda for which a BIS
has been prepared does impose a direct and significant economic burden on a business or directly restricts the formation, operation or
expansion of a business, and each Rule which is on the agenda for which a BIS has not been prepared does not impose a directand significant
economic impact on a business or directly restrict the formation, operation or expansion of a business.

Notice: ltems on the agenda may be taken out of order; the Gardnerville Town Board may combine two or more agenda items for
consideration; and the Gardnerville Town Board may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the
agenda at any time.

4:30 P.M. Call to Order and Determination of a Quorum
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE- Ken Miller

FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: APPROVAL OF AGENDA, with public comment prior to Board action.
The Gardnerville Town Board reserves the right to take items in a different order to accomplish business in the most efficient
manner.

FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES:
November 6, 2012 Reguiar Board meeting, with public comment prior to Board action.

PUBLIC INTEREST COMMENTS (No Action)
This portion of the meeting is open to the public to speak on any topic not on the agenda and must be limited to 3 minutes. The

Gardnerville Town Board is prohibited by law from taking immediate action on issues raised by the public that are not listed on
the agenda.

CONSENT CALENDAR FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

ltems appearing on the Consent Calendar are items that may be adopted with one motion after public comment. Consent
items may be pulled at the request of Town Board members wishing to have an item or items discussed further. When items are
pulled for discussion, they will be automatically placed at the beginning of the Administrative Agenda.

Correspondence

Health and Sanitation Department Monthly Report
Approve November 2012 claims

Approve H & S write-offs

Eal i

www, gardnerville-nv.gov December 4 2012




erville

Nevada

Garﬂn
5 GARDNERVILLE TOWN BOARD MEETING AGENDA — CONT’D
ADMINISTRATIVE AGENDA

{Any agenda items pulled from the Consent Calendar will he heard at this point)

5. For Possible Action: Discussion on Planned Development Application (PD) 12-001, for Greg Urrutia, New
Beginnings Housing, LLC, a Planned Development on a 8.26 acre parcel to include a 30 unit affordable senior
housing complex with associated amenities and parking on a 2.02 acre parcel, a detention pond on a 1.21 acre
parcel with a future phase on the remaining 5.02 acre parcel. The subject property is located at 1331 Stodick
Parkway in the MFR/PD (Multi-Family, 9,000 square foot lot size with Planned Development Overlay zoning
district within the Town of Gardnerville and Minden/Gardnerville Community Plan (APN: 1220-03-202-001), with
public comment prior to Board action. (approx 20 minutes)

6. Not For Possible Action: Discussion on the Main Street Program Manager’s Monthly Report of activities for
November 2012. (approx 10 minutes)

7. For Possible Action: Discussion on revising the following Town policies;
a. Park Use Policy
b. Heritage Park Reservation Policy
c. Street Closure/Special Events Policy;
with public comment prior to Board action. (approx 20 minutes)

8. Not For Possible Action: Discussion on the Town Attorney’s Monthly Report of activities for October 2012.
(approx 10 minutes)

9. Not For Possible Action: Discussion on the Town Manager/Engineer’s Monthly Report of activities for
November 2012. (approx 20 minutes)

10. For Possible Action: Discussion to approve Proclamation 2012P-03 recognizing Paul Lindsay for his
dedicated service to the Town of Gardnerville, with public comment prior to Board action.
(approx 10 minutes)

Adjourn
Calendar: Town Christmas Potluck — 12:00 pm to 2:00 pm December 14, 2012

Lloyd Higuera & Mary Werner — Swearing in ceremony, January 2, 2012
Next Regular Board Meeting January 8, 2013

www.gardnerville-nv.gov 2 December 4, 2012



m GARDNERVILLE TOWN BOARD 1407 Highway 395

Gardnerville, Nevada 89410
Ga dﬁel" V].H_e ) 775-782-7134 FAX: 775-782-7135
Nevada Meeting Agenda www.gardnerville-nv.gov

Paul Lindsay, Chairman
Ken Miller, Vice Chairman
Lloyd Higuera, Board Member
Mike Philips, Board Member
Linda Slater, Board Member
Tuesday, November 6, 2012 4:30 p.m. Gardnerville Town Hall

(i

Chairman Lindsay called the meeting to Order and Determination of a Quorum

o] PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE- Paul Lindsay

FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: APPROVAL OF AGENDA, with public comment prior to Board action.
The Gardnervilie Town Board reserves the right to take items in a different order to accomplish business in the most efficient
manner.

No public comment,

Motion Higuera/Miller to approve the agenda, Motion carried.

2Z] FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES:
October 2, 2012 Regular Board meeting, with public comment prior to Board action.

No public comment,

Motion Slater/Philips to approve the October 2, 2012 minutes. Motion carried with Board Member Miller
ahstaining.

2| PUBLIC INTEREST COMMENTS (No Action)

This portion of the meeting is open to the public to speak on any topic not on the agenda and must be limited to 3 minutes. The
Gardnerville Town Board is prohibited by law from taking immediate action on issues raised by the public that are not listed on
the agenda.

No public comment.

=] CONSENT CALENDAR FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are items that may be adopted with one motion after public comment. Consent
iterns may be pulled at the request of Town Board members wishing to have an item or items discussed further. When items
are pulled for discussion, they will be automatically placed at the beginning of the Administrative Agenda.

1. Correspondence
Read and noted

2, Health and Sanitation Department Monthly Report
Accepted

3. Approve October 2012 claims
Approved

4. Approve Douglas County Resolution 2012R-084, a budget augmentation for the Town of Gardnerville
2011/2012 year purchase orders brought forward into the 2012/2013 fiscal year.
Approved

5. Approve the Parade of Lights Special Event/Street Closure Application for the evening of Saturday December
1, 2012, which will include the closing of Gilman Avenue from 395 to Chichester Drive for the staging of the
parade and waive the 60-day noticing requirement and $300 road closure fee.
Approved

6. Recommend approval of the Douglas County Qutdoor Festival Event Application for Carson Valley Chamber



Gardnerville Town Board Maeting
November 6, 2012
Page 2

of Commerce 17" Annual Parade of Lights on December 1, 2012,
Approved

No public comment.
Motion Higuera/Slater to approve the consent calendar. Motion carried.

ADMINISTRATIVE AGENDA
(Any agenda items pulled from the Consent Calendar will be heard at this point)

7. ElFor Possible Action: Discussion on a Land Division Application (LDA 12-018) for Greg Urrutia, New
Beginnings Housing, LLC., a request for a tentative parcel map to subdivide 8,26 acres into 3 parcels, the
smallest being 1.21 acres. The subject property is located at 1331 Stodick Parkway, within the MFR (multi-
family residential, 9,000 square foot parcel size) and PD (planned development) Overlay Zoning District of the
Minden-Gardnerville Community plan (APN:1220-03-202-001). The Town Board may approve, approve with
conditions, or deny the request, with public comment prior to Board action.

Mr. Dallaire received an application for a land division map. This is the parcel behind Heritage Bank. We met with
staff at the county and representatives from Rob Anderson’s office. One of the parcels will be the detention pond. We
have asked the parcel with the detention pond be dedicated to the town. We have in the staff report on the first page
our conditions,

Mr. Jeremy Hutchings, Anderson Engineering, conveyed they have reviewed the conditions in the staff report. We
did not have any problems with them. We think they are good conditions and we will take care of them.

No public comment.

Motion Higuera/Slater to conditionally approve the land division application LDA 12-018 for New Beginnings
Housing based on the findings and conclusions of the staff report. Motion carried.

8. k2 Not For Possible Action: Discussion on the Main Street Program Manager’s Monthly Report of activities
for September 2012,

Mrs. Lochridge reported the revolving loan fund received a completed application that is going in front of the loan
committee for review soon. Two other packets just recently went out. | know for sure one will be coming back. That
is looking good for what we currently have in our accounts. With organization, they are beginning a membership
campaign. They created a fundraising committee and one of the focuses of that committee is to revamp our
membership brochure and policy and try to increase our numbers. The morning coffee meetings are going very well.
We had 18 people show up this morning and eight of those were brand new people. Our holiday shopping bazaar is
coming up this Saturday at St. Gall's. They have over 80 raffle and silent auction items. There are 44 vendors
participating. They will have entertainment. If all goes well we will have a Santa Claus and a photographer. We have
all kinds of advertising and it is spreading across the social media. We have done two cash mobs so far. They are
doing pretty well. Received a report Candles and Crafts averages about 5 or & people on a Saturday. They had close
to 35. Their sales average around $50 and it was over $450. They were extremely excited about the results. Merry
Main Street we will just try to promote the Main Street Gardnerville District is open for business. There is a lot
happening at the museum. They will be doing another cash mob. We are going to do a float in conjunction with the
Town of Gardnerville. It will be a focus on shopping local again along with the theme of Silver Bells. As of today we
have the design committee volunteers visiting the businesses to light up the stores like they have in previous years
and promote the Kickoff and also what will be going on Saturday December 1.

Mrs. Slater thought they did a great job last year.

Mr. Higuera asked what they talk about at the coffee get together.

Mrs. Lochridge reported Joe Lacurto was there promoting Made in Nevada. We had two new business members
focusing on Made in Nevada products. They made a good connection. It is just basically whoever wants to show up

and talk about what they are doing for the holidays and what type of events they would like to see downtown.

No public comment.



Gardnerville Town Board Meeting
Nevember 6, 2012
Page 3

i)

For Possible Action: Discussion on the agreement between NDOT and the Town of Gardnerville on the
Highway 395 Sidewalk Improvement located between Waterloo Center and Kingslane, authorize the town up
to $50,000 in funding for the project as indicated in the 2011-2012 CIP, and authorize the Chairman to execute
the NDOT agreement. The Town Board may approve, approve with conditions, or deny the request, with
public comment prior to Board action.

{heard after item 10)

Mr. Dallaire reviewed with Board members the contract from NDOT that was heard in May of this year. It has
taken them to the beginning of this month to get this contract back. The items that are highlighted are the
responsibility of the town. One of the changes is to complete a survey to prepare mapping. We need to determine
where the actual right of way is and have it surveyed so they know where the fine is. We believe right now it goes
down the middle of the ditch. The Kingslane parcel actually comes into the ditch itself and they own the wall. We are
proposing to put in a 12 foot retaining wall and do the sidewalk. [t will be extremely expensive. Our hope is we can
put pipe in, depending on funding we could change the scope to go down to Lynn Cauley’s driveway and do a pipe
from the irrigation box all the way down and fix that entire stretch. Denny is running the analysis and working on that
portion. | can’t start any of our design or plans until after this contract is executed. When we do the larger than
anticipated next month | will give you an update on where we are financially and we will identify those funds at that
time. There will be a few extra expenses. We are responsible for all the testing. 1 have asked for quotes for
surveying from Anderson Engineering. We might be into it $30,000 after it is all done. $17,000 is what we are
responsible for unless it goes over the $83,000. If we want to spend more money or we have extra funds to make the
project right and go all the way down to Lynn Cauley’s parcel, then | do not know how much that will cost yet. We
haven't sized those culverts yet. We are thinking long rectangle box culverts with some inlets to try and divert some of
the flood water that is coming through Kingslane into the ditch. The more inlets we can put along the highway the
more water | can get underneath Toler and Highway 395 in the future. In the model they don't get enough pressure
from the flood to go into the pipe and out of cur new ditch that we are going 1o be constructing along Hellwinkel. The
conduit underneath the Highway 395 isn't going to pull water from the flood. |t will basically puddle and overflow at
Eagle Gas station. We will have to somehow intervene at that spot and collect the water to protect all the businesses
in town. The more inlets we can put along the highway the better we will be.

Chairman Lindsay is guessing now it will cost 30, but we had $50,000 budgeted in the CIP.

Mr. Dallaire agreed. Up to $50,000 was budgeted in last year's CIP. We didn't spend the money last year. Once
we get the approval from NDOT we will go and do another presentation to the Kingslane Homeowners.

Chairman Lindsay asked if the easement is only through half of the ditch we will have to get some permission to
go onto their property.

Mr. Dallaire advised if the box doesn't fit on our property. We have the irrigation box at the adjacent property
(Bradford Place). There is a two foot pipe going undemeath the project through the parking lot. Then it goes into the
diversion box and into the storm drain system that goes next to our maintenance building. It goes all the way
underneath Toler and at the corner of Chichester and GES it goes down that easement and comes out at the Park
ditch on the other side of Chichester. This is the water that gets used by Hellwinkels Ranch to flood irrigate their field.
Or they can shut that off and it will divert along the highway, goes underneath Toler, through Hellwinke! to the ponds.
My hope is we can get enough inlets in there that it will divert more flood water and get a longer period to drain that
area and put it into a pipe and make the ditch more useful in a flood event.

Mr. Altom wanted to call attention on page 9-9 it says the town is responsible for $13,800. Where is your
$17,0007

Mr. Dallaire thought it was $17,000,

Mr. Altom pointed out that is an estimate anyway.

Mr. Dallaire had not added in the right-of-way costs. | never estimated the surveying portion of it.

Mr. Altom added anything that would go above that the town is responsible for.

Mr. Dallaire agreed, above the $83,800. And of the $83,800, we are responsible for $13,800 of it. So they are

putting forward $70,000 which is what their maximum amount of funding will be. It could be a $140,000 project and
they are only going to pay for $70,000. We will not make it that large.



Gardnerviile Town Board Mesting
November 6, 2012
Page 4

No public comment.

Motion Slater/Higuera to approve the agreement between NDOT and the Town of Gardnerville on the
Highway 395 Sidewalk Improvement located between Waterloo Center and Kingslane; authorize the town up
to $50,000 in funding for the project as indicated in the 2011/2012 CIP; and authorize the chairman to execute
the NDOT agreement. Motion carried.

10. _“SlFor Possible Action: Discussion on annexation for Douglas County, 21.20 acres of public facilities
property for the new community center located at 1326 Stodick Parkway (Herbig Park), APN: 1220-04-601-027
into the Town of Gardnerville service area. The Town Board may approve, approve with modifications, or
deny the request, with public comment prior to Board action.

(Heard before item 9)

Mr. Dallaire received the annexation request on behalf of Douglas County for the community center acreage. The
maps have been going through a process doing a reversion to acreage. That reversion has been finalized. They
consolidated the three parcels into one and then they will do a boundary line adjustment. It will be recorded soon. The
skate park will be included in this parcel. [t will not include all of Herbig Park (shown on page 10-3) Those are served
by a well and septic that go into Lampe Park.

Mr. Philips asked if the blank area is part of Herbig Park

Mr. Dallaire believed that property is owned by Herbig. This would include the new facility. We recommend the
town provide the trash service. The present senior center has two 4-yd bins that get dumped twice a week. The trash
enclosure is small so they would only be able to get two 2-yd bins in there. We couid dump them more often. This
needs to happen because MGSD is providing sewer capacity. To be registered on the tax roles as being in the town
of Gardnerville it will automatically go to MGSD’s tax district even though they are exempt.

Chairman Lindsay asked i the skate park comes in with this.

Mr. Dallaire answered it does. is located relative to all the buildings.

No public comment.

Motion Miller/Higuera to approve the annexation of 21.2 acres for Douglas County Community/Senior
Citizen APN #1220-04-601-023 into the town of Gardnerville service area.

Mrs. Slater asked if Mr. Miller said 023. My copy says 027.
Mr. Dallaire clarified the agenda is correct, it is 027.
Chairman Lindsay repeated the APN should be 027.

Mr. Miller corrected his motion to 027.

Mrs. Slater seconded the motion.

Upon call for the vote, motion carried.

11. & For Possible Action: Discussion on Overhead Street Banner Policy and Main Street Banner form:
with public comment prior to Board action.

Mr. Dallaire reviewed this was from the discussion last month. We sent it over to our attorney and he added quite
a bit of information. We discussed this at length and ended up with the version you see in front of you. Yours is
highlighted in yellow on all the changes from the existing policy. In discussion with some of the Board, itern 1 under
purpose, the very last sentence we could remove,



Gardnerville Town Board Mesting
November 6, 2012
Page 5

Mrs. Slater suggested that change. Personally | don't think it's necessary. On 11-4 the first sentence | would add
“with attached internal revenue service 501 letter for each and every year the banner is requested to be displayed.”
Make sure you get that required form in there.

Chairman Lindsay did not think that sums it up quite right because government entities or community service
organizations are not going to have that letter.

Mr. Altom believed that would have to be for the nonprofits.

Mrs. Slater then would add for those nonprofits that would be applying make certain that form is attached. We
need to be as explicit as possible.

Mr. Altom asked where that language would be inserted.

Mrs. Slater would like it inserted after the word “form.” “Furnish a completed town banner application request
form.” | would insert “attached internal revenue service 501 letter for those nonprofit that may apply.”

Mr. Dallaire was going to add “IRS" in front of the 501 after nonprofit organization. That would be on the form
itseif. | will get a final version and put it on the consent for next month.

Mr. Altom advised if everyone is on board with what has been discussed then you can make a motion to approve
as discussed.

No public comment.

Motion Siater/Miller to approve the Overhead Street Banner Policy with the comments mentioned tonight
and main street banner form. Motion carried.

12. @ Not For Possible Action: Discussion on the Town Attorney’s Monthly Report of activities for October
2012,

Mr. Altom reported he worked on the banner policies, policies for the park and special events and street closure
policy that will be discussed in December. Reviewed the agenda. Also did some work at no charge for Main
Street.

No public comment.

13. E% Not For Possible Action: Discussion on the Town Manager/Engineer’s Monthly Report of activities
for October 2012.

Mr. Dallaire reported Linda and | went to the Nevada League of Cities conference. | met quite a few more people
from northern Nevada that support the League. The C tax presentation was informative. They are changing the C tax.
That will be a hot item in the legislature depending on whether it is heard in the first 30 days. There are not many
modifications. 1t doesn't really benefit us. The local government summit is coming up. He will try and present the C tax
to you at budget time if you are interested. They were unwilling to change the base where everybody started back in
the late 80’s. 1imagine it will be a while before they go through this again.

Mrs. Slater agreed the C tax was the big issue. It is very unique to Fernley. In order to qualify for the C tax you
have to be able to provide police and fire. Fernley doesn't provide that. They contract that out. That's why they are in
this fight. We had a representative from PERS and they reported bottom line the 2008 and 2009 dip in revenues have
been recovered. It is looking good. The state cannot touch those funds. The big thing coming up is discussion
among ourselves 1o make sure when we go to the legislature to present problems or questions, that we have
solutions. They want that dialogue to begin right here. It's not going to be a one size fits all. But that is what they are
hoping for. Be there, be present, speak up and make sure you have a solution to offer. This time the meetings they
held were probably the best put together programs | have been to in a long time. It catered a lot to the unincorporated
towns and GID's. They are really making a concerted effort to make sure we are included.

Mr. Dallaire stated next year they will combine with NACO in Tahoe. We have been asked to participate in some
sort of sponsorship. We will be seeing that on the budget come next year. We will be a little more involved in the
planning this time around. The Toler Lane/Lampe entrance is planted. They are waiting on Impact to bring in the DG



Gardnervilie Town Board Meeting
November 6, 2012
Page 6

and finish the entrance to Lampe Lane into Chichester is down both sides. The landscape architect had four times as
many plants. | have an estimate from Impact to do the excavating. The estimate was $10,800 to do from Lampe to
GES and just over $20,000 to do from Lampe to Harvest. That’s just removal of the material. | am working with Main
Street Design Committee to see if they want the dirt for the garden. They are still waiting for Army Corp. of Engineers
to reply back on whether it is jurisdictional wetlands or not. When Army Corps left the site in April it was non-
jurisdictional wetlands. But we haven't gof the paperwork from her yet to say that officially. I've e-mailed her several
times. Carol has e-mailed. She is just nonresponsive. They will be selling out the plots this year. All of them but three
have been rented so far for next year. They will actually build three more for demonstration gardens. They are
working on a plan to come up with an overall design. They were going to leave the hay bales this next year.

Mr. FPhilips asked about vandalism problems there.
Mr. Dallaire is not aware of any. They have locked up all the water faucets,

Yu Shimizu rented a plot at the community garden this year. [ live in the apartment right behind the community
garden. | am there pretty much avery day.

Mr. Higuera asked about Toler. Are you concentrating just on the entrance?
Mr. Dallaire wanted to get it done.
Mr. Higuera asked when staff would get down to GES.

Mr. Dallaire stated Zack will come back and work on the Eddy Street lighting Monday. He will be done in a week.
Then he will be back in a week to work on Toler. | can have him do from GES to Lampe and do the $10,000 or we can
do the whole thing, but that will have to come before the Board. There are Eagle Scout projects that | have been
approached about. |did get a rough number from Tina Fixman to do the little area in two days and that would be
$1600 a day to get her crew out there to do it. So $60,000 to $100,000 isn't unrealistic. The guys have so many other
things to maintain. When they have a few minutes or they finish planting then they fill a crack or two. We are pouring
concrete in the cracks now. Then we will crack fill over the top. That gives it a nice hard base. It seems to be
working. Those are the larger cracks that we will end up excavating out anyway.

Mr. Higuera asked if at worst case it will be spring.

Mr. Dallaire thought maybe early spring. Staff mowed late. We just now turned the water off at the parks. The
weeds are still growing. We did take the tree out of the Eddy Street planter. We took it out because it was so close to
the end wall. They put a CMU block in there. The light pole will be in the middle. There will be one light that lights up
the araa.

Mr. Miller asked about the crosswalks. Have we heard anything back on the signals?

Mr. Dallaire has not heard from NDOT. They were supposed to meet and find out how much funding they will put
towards those grants. We have not heard how much. Congress doesn’t have a budget and hasn't been operating
under a budget. They are waiting to hear. There is a drop dead date that Congress has to make up their mind. The
federal government gives the state the funds and the state passes them down. The same applies to our trail
amenities. The application and grant funding we did get number one on that. They are waiting on Congress to make
a budget that works.

Mrs. Slater asked about the cameras in Heritage Park.

Mr. Dallaire reported the program for the cameras has been modified. They seem to be working okay. It is just
the clarity. We've got a price  Craig met Whipple down there and showed them what we have. He is thinking we can
just change the cameras again. We've done that before. Whipple needs a model number. Josh has done some
research and there is a facility back east that had given us a design on the HD quality camera. That system is about
$4,900. It will give us 16 spaces, one terabyte of material, but we will have to install it. The only person that has
responded since my last go around on calls was Whipple. We are working on it.

Chairman Lindsay asked about the hi def solution is 16 channels.

Mr. Dallaire agreed. There is a wireless capability if we had internet at the restroom. The cameras are a lot clearer
because you are connecting two of the wires 1o each one. We don't have conduit from the restroom up to the column.



Gardnervifie Town Board Meeting
MNovember 6, 2012
Page 7

There is not an empty conduit for the video camera. We can't get a wired camera connection on the bathroom. Once
you go to wireless you lose your clarity. There was another system that we could run it off the server. We would have
direct line of sight from the restroom.

Chairman Lindsay believed that hi def cameras are the way to go. Spend the $5,000.

Mr. Dallaire advised Douglas County standards made it to the end of water and sewer details. They didn’t get to
the streets yet. We have asked Paula to participate in the Parade of Lights. We will be helping. We are also helping
the Chamber close down streets and are more active in it. They have also asked if we would be interested in
something at the park during the staging. We can play some Christmas music and put the speaker system out there.
He also has another plan for staging to get that streamlined. We are going to shut Gilman down for the parade. We
are hoping to shut off the highway at Douglas so any traffic coming down 395 will go around the parade. We won't
close Waterloo so people will still be able to get to Raley’s and Kingslane. They are using the same traffic control plan
as last year. We just need to update it. We’'ll ask whoever wins the election tonight to write a paragraph about them
and include a photo for the newsletter to go out next week. The food drive at CVI has a drive by food drive. DDI goes
around and puts a flyer on the trash cans for people to donate. Wanted to make sure you are all okay to participate in
that this year. Staff wanted to know why we didn’t participate last year. The project Santa Claus, our maintenance
yard is a drop off for bicycles and | would like to put in a bin at the office to collect the unwrapped toys. It is a Kiwanis
group that is running it. The park policy, if you have any comments please get them to the office and we will get it to
Tyler to revise it for next month. The 2012 Government Summit is in correspondence if anyone would fike to attend.
Carol has been frantically adding programming to a new Christmas tree on the pavilion with the cosmic ribbon. We
would like to phase out the end half Christmas tree shapes because the rope lighting is always going out. | have also
heard that Minden is looking at doing something similar. They are following in our footsteps again. The Douglas
County hazard mitigation plan is moving forward. The downtown vision was an interesting meeting. They had a lot of
input and being pedestrian friendly was a huge point. [t will be pretty much from Highway 395 to either Waterloo or
down to Riverview. It will be an interesting process. They are shooting for six month before they present it to the
public for input. There are a few ADA issues we need to improve on, like wheelchair accessibility and safer
crosswalks. We will keep plugging away and asking for more money.

No public comment.
Motion Miller/Higuera to adjourn at 5:54 p.m. Motion carried.

Respectfully submitted,

Paul Lindsay Tom Dallaire
Chairman Town Manager






m MOtherS
®

Activism | Victim Services | Education

November 18, 2012
Dear Editor:

On behalf of Mothers Against Drunk Driving, Nevada I would like to
congratulate the Town of Gardnerville, the Chamber of Commerce, the
Douglas County Sheriff’s Office, Main Street Gardnerville and the County
Commissioners for changing the route of the Parade of Lights. The
unintended consequences will make this event more appealing to families
and should not go unnoticed.

The Parade of Lights is a family event to celebrate the holiday season. For
years families have watched the parade in front of drinking establishments
along Main Street which may not be the best surroundings for children.
These businesses are long established and supportive of the community
but they are for adults and hopefully not for adults who will be driving
children home. Now families can watch from brightly lit locations in
Heritage Park and pull up their chairs in front of local shops and
restaurants.

Although the above mentioned agencies were trying to help other
businesses along 395 and the people who live in Kings Lane, they may
have changed the atmosphere for healthy families too. This event is
targeted for children and the adults who are responsibie for getting them
home safely.

I think this is a great start for promoting activities that don’t advance the
idea that alcohol has to be included in family oriented events in the Valley.

Thank you, :

Linda Finch, Program Coordinator
MADD Nevada

Against Drunk Driving
NEVADA OFFICE

P.O. Box 2753
Minden, NV 89423
Phone: (775)267-2277



Louthan, Carol

From:
Sent: ursday, November 29, 2012 7:48 AM
To: L.outhan, Carol

Subject: Christmas Kickoff Event

Hello,

I'm not sure who to direct this message to, but I found your information on the City of
Gardnerville website.

My family is new to the area, and last nights Chtistmas Kickoff in Heritage park was the first town
event we've attended.

We were so impressed, and enjoyed ourselves tremendously. It helped us get into the spirit of
Christmas!

We want to say thank you to those who made it possible, and hope that it continues for yeats.
Sincerely,

Jill and Matthew Thutston



Gardnerville Town Board

Funds Available:

3. Department: Health and Sanitation

Gardnerv:]le

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 3 Nevada
1. Title: Health and Sanitation Monthly Report
2. Recommended Motion: Accept as submitted
L Yes ¥ N/A
Phone Number: 782-7134

Prepared by: Carol Louthan

4. Meeting Date: December 4, 2012

5. Agenda:

¥ Consent

L Administrative

6. Background Information:

Residential Accounts 1691
Commercial Accounts 216
Green Waste Accounts 1131
Cleanup Dumpsters 8
X-cans 634

accounts

# of new residential

6 accts transferred to new
owners and 2 new accts

accounts

# of new commercial

0

Total tons of trash

370.92

7. Other Agency Review of Action:

8. Board Action:

L_Approved

" Denied

L_Approved with Modifications

L Continued

Time Requested: none

R e e T T Ty T T L T O T T T e Sy ey e
—_—  ————— R R R ERRARARLALREDBEEBEBEBEEEE——C—8h—,

Agenda Item #2



PARKS AND PUBLIC WORKS - 2012 November M. Plut

PARKS DEPARTMENT: Tolar trees have grown to about 35 feet high so we have had to rent a lift to
reach the top. We have made a new tree frame for the cosmic ribbon to sit above the cupola at

Heritage Park and Carol has deleted the end cap trees from the show programs.

PUBLIC WORKS: The light ballast at the Bell St. car wash has been replaced as well as GFCl as needed
for Christmas street lights,

Both sides of Venture Drive have been painted red.
Eddy Street lights are installed as well as the Main Street information sign.

Our boom truck has been loaned out to DC Communications for equipment repair as well as Town of
Genoa for Christmas lights.






@.H H_D ._” wmmn_ ¢ WA PP-aAL-CF CHULIURT B L WY US| puds ) g wWiig
e
c1'58cY 7 SUDRIRSUZIL DI0AUT 512101 IDARIL - ¥BO0TE UN0I0Y
£/986S #
95941 TI0Z/91/11 ZI0Z/9T/1T  210Z/OT/TT  Z10Z/Lt/oT 2UD AQ pied FTNAD W3S ZT-0F twelfold UBWIINI0Y] 03 0 - L6621
£8FB6S #
LT180¢ Z102/20/11 ZT0T/Z0/TT  TIOZ/ZO/TT  Z10Z/5¢/0T 3YD Ag pled SWAWIAVEL  Z1-TT-0T/6-01 D U3ABIS UDSOWIOY ), - 690LZ
{BARLY - HOD'(ES JUNCIDY
00 052% T SUOdESURIE BOIOAUL sjR30| FuDY Xoyg og/ebeisod - 050 TS WnoXdyY
509665 #
00'052 Zroz/og/T1 ZIOZ/OE/TT  2I02/0E/TT  Z10Z/0T/1T 3o34D AQ pled FTIAD  TE-TT §900C dd-SUWD Sd SN - E0652
Juay Xog Om\mmmumcm - 00 NS WNCIN
¢c.mmm% g SUCHIoBSUE. | 2210ALT ilcatel B mm:maxm mzasnw_wk - GERO7E IUN0SOY
- 045665 #
P GET ZI0Z/OE/TT TI0Z/OS/TT  ZT0Z/0S/ET  210Z/81/11 ¥oayd Ag pled 129596852 00T-12959H897 [e@NAUKdS - 1908
LOEB6S #
BI'/6 ZEOZ/OE/TT ZI0Z/0E/TT  TT0Z/OE/TT  TI0Z/91/11 WauI Ad pled  56/Z0G0PET/Z8454L TT/TT bETL-28¢ 1oRuUol - £0162
L0E66S #
TS ZE0Z/og/TT ZT0Z/0e/1T  ZTIOZ/OS/ET  ZT0Z/91/1T youd Aq pled  §Z0R0B09SBETRLS/L TT/TY 9S8E-T8L onuolt - 0167
9/865 #
59°gET Z102/20/TT Z10Z/20/1T  2T0Z/20/1Y  Z10T/81/01 ¥eyd Ag pled TT959P89Z 660-TT959H89T [FIONAULDS - 1905
G/EB6S #
7586 21020/t ZI0Z/20/TT  ZT0Z/20/it  Z102/91/07 yoaud AQ pled  S6/Z0SObETLZ8ZSLL TT/OT vETL-28L 1enuolt - £0T62
G/E865 #
LT 210T/20/TT 7T0Z/Z0/1T  2102/20/TT  T102/91/01 YsyD AQ pled  §Z08080953EZ8/54L TT/0T 958£-287 RRUOlY - 0167
asuadxy suoydajpy - GO QS JUNODY
s061% T SUSIIBSURIL BMOALT S|EI0 ), [E91Pel I9Y-583d - TOT TTS N0y
- 600665 # SWNIWAY
S0°6T ZY0Z/9T/TY 2T0Z/9T/IT  ZI0Z/9T/TT  ZT0T/60/11 =D Ag pred TEL ZI-TTE sapA0ldW3 JNANd 1S AN - 6TZ0Z
[EDIPRTIOY-GERd ~ TOZ TTS Junomy
05 /+T'18 G SUGhIesusl | eMOAUT 5|R10 ] uoiesuRdiio] PIEOY - HET 0TS JUNC0Y
L1L866 #
00022 ZE0Z/60/TT 2I02/60/TT Z102/60/ET  210Z/T0/1T 33D AQ pled ITNAD  QUvog ZT-1T Bpul BI85 - 6962
8R986S #
00027 Z10z/60/11 Z10Z/60/TT ZT02/60/TT  2T0T/TO/TT »8UD AQ pled JTNAS  GUvO8 ZT-TT [Eeudii sdifyd - 62981
750865 #
05752 ZT0Z/60/11 ZI0Z/60/TT TT02/60/TT  ET0Z/TO/TT YoaD AQ pied INIAD  QYvOd ZI/1T LRRULR) I3 - 0968T
ObOBES #
00'052 ZI0Z/60/11 ZI0Z/60/TT TI0Z/60/TT  CT0Z/TO/IT YaauD Aq pled ITNIAD  QY¥vOg ZT/IT VY Ined ABSPUN - E0VZT
#10866 #
00'072 ZT0Z/60/1T ZI0Z/60/TT  Z10Z/60/TT  210Z/T0/1T 8y Ag pred IMIAD QAv0g ZT/1T M pAol eianBly - 9874
vopesuadwo) pigog - 051016 JURCIDY
UILUPY SYIAIBUPIED - TZ6 JUSWedag
umoy I)iasupies - g1g pund
JUNGILY S0I0AU]  218(] JUBLUABY 18] PaAlRdsy SEd 1/9 JBQ BN e¢] DJI0AMI]  LIGSEDY PIoH smels UORAIID53() DI0AUT "ON S210AU] 1opu3ap,

ZT/0E/1T - 2T/10/11 sbuey a1eg /o

1/

ajqreAed sjunNodD




Wd #5:50:71 ZT02/08/T

T UD URINGT j0JeD AQ Uny

9T Jo z afied /
o
00'0pES b SUQIDRSURS | 20AUT 5|EJ0 | S3MAISBEG [RLIOJURL - @65 0TG 1UN0IDY
TLL86S #
00°58 ZI0Z/9T/TE ZIOZ/OT/TT  TI02/91/1T  Z10Z/90/1T ¥ay3 Aq pred ITIAD ZT0T90L B0IBS |BUONURL +Y - /PE/T
12865 #
0058 Z10Z/9T/TT ZI0Z/9T/IT  ZT0Z/9T/IT  TT02/90/11 2D Aq pred ITIAD 2160904, BOIAIDG |SLIONURE +V - /bE/T
TL/865 #
00°58 TIOE/91/11 CY0Z/OT/IT  TT0Z/OT/YT  Z10Z/90/T1 Woau) Ag pled ATIAD 2180901 VARG [RUONILRL +Y - /HE/T
TLL865 #
00's8 zI0z/9r/11 ZT0Z/9T/TT  TI0Z/OT/IT  Zi0Z/90/1t #2210 Ag pled ITIAD ZTL090L BMAISG |RLIONURL +Y - /PE/T
SOMAIBS JeHONURE - R60°0Z 6 JUN0DY
mm.mww T SUOINSRSURL | adi0ALY SIRI0 | oy B -~ LH0'OFG Juno2dy
708865 #
££'69 FA AL AN CIOZMTITT  ZI0Z/9T/TT  Z10Z/62/01 $aUD AQ pied 0€LS 666 Uy Aiddns [eLISNpU S30XY - S8707
SR e - L60°02S WNoDY
€67 211 9 SUCHDESURLL BII0AUT sje30l Bunesy - 260076 UN0DY
95665 # z1-
L0°pT Z210Z/08/11 ZIOZ/OE/TY  ZT0Z/0E/TY  ZT0Z/PT/IT MIBUD AQ pied Z0000988TIIFT 1T TOO009SRTT sefiap, SE1-580) 1S9MUINOS - TZ0E
+95665 # 45
8Tk ZT0R/08/1T ZI0Z/OE/TT  TI0R/0E/TT  Z102/%1/11 $oauD Ag pred 00PZZELOTTHE TT H00FZZ2L0T sefiap se1-5D aMpNeS - T20€
$95665 # 4%
yTe ZI0Z/0E/TT ZI0C/OETT  LY0T/OE/TT  TIOZ/AT/TT 2D AQ pled TCO6LLST00TPE TT TZOGLZSTO0 sefaA Se7-520 JsomyINos - 1Z0€
S/PRES # zI-
987/ T10Z/20/11 ZI0Z/e0/TT  Zi0Zfe/it  zroE/Si/oT 33UD Aq pled 2000098811 0T Z0000988TT sebap SET-SRD) 1SIMUINOS - TZ0E
£LP86S # 4%
8847 Z102/20/11 TI0Z/Z0/1T  Z10T/20/11  TIOZ/ST/ol WU AQ pled FO0FZZZLOTIVE OT $00KZEZL0T sebap se-seo wemines - 1708
£L586S # 4%
£0°ST Zr0zZ/20/11 ZT0Z/Z0/1T  Z10T/20/1T  ZT0e/st/oT 338D AQ pied TTOBLLSTOOTHEZ QT 20641500 sefaA seT-sen JsemiInes - TZ0E
Buneay - 60075 JUNODY
PG69TE T SUORDBSURE | 5210AL] SIEI0L 190 - 5RO°DTE Unomy
££9865 #
$5681 Z102/60/1¥ ZT02/60/1T  TTI0E/60/TT  ZIOZ/ST/OT A23UD Ag pled #08T6L  ZT-0T YORTEL ABJRUZ AN - +26¢
IS0 - 680702 S JUNodDY
LL°08T$ £ SUDNIRSURILY D0AUT §1230). sedey @ uDwEdelsy - $ROPTS WNOIY
612665 #
8600 ZTOR/0E/T1 TI0Z/0E/TT  ZI0Z/OE/TT  Z10Z/6T/11 PR AG pred ITIAD 79b5 sse(n) Ajjep uosie) - £0Z4
617665 #
ST'bb ZT0Z/0E/TT ZI0Z/0E/1T  Zroefos/tT  Zroz/zifor 334D AQ pred ITTIAD FIHS S5RID) AB||RA LOSIRD - E0ZZ
11865 #
#9'6 ¢T0Z/91/11 ZI0Z/AT/IT  ZTOZ/9T/TT  ZT0Z/80/0T 323UD AQ pleg OFZT T/20£L20 BeMPILH 23V - G8ATT
dieday g uswsor|doy - $REOTT WNOOY
URNDY ajpAlsupies - 16 Juswedag
UAGL B{IAIBUDIRS - §TY PUN
UNOWY 2210AU] 312 JUIWAEH 8leq paiaoay 248 /9 ARG NG 9B S2I0AU]  UGSeRY PN 5MRIS UORAMUIS3(] DN0AUT ‘ON 2J10ALT lopuap

Z1/0E/1T - 21/10/11 obuey a32qQ /D

Aq sjaeAed s3unodd




o1 Jo £ abed [ Wd PlSU-CL € HUC/UL/ L1 WY URINU | JuIE ) Ay Uiy

o
MN.NNNT:W Fih -4 SUOIIDESLR | $M0AU] S|EI0] HHUDY m_mt,._m:_u.mmw -TZ6 M:wEH._mmmmD
oreors ¢ SUDRDBSURI| IIOAUT 51210, sanddng 85116 - JOY'ESS WNODY
PLE66S #
ST'TEE z10z/08/11 TIOZ/OEEY  ZTOT/OE/TT  2TOT/1E/0T B AG ped ITIAD 9650€ ou sABOjOUYIRL BD[ - ZPSE
£/8865 # NOSTNOd
00's z10Z/9T/11 ZIOZ/OT/TY  2T0T/9T/11  TroT/ez/ot 38D Aq pied ITIAD Z1-01 WeiB04g JUIWIN0L] 0D 0 - £66TT
£/8865 # NOSTOHDIN
5.8 Z102/9T/11 ZI0Z/OT/IY  TI0Z/OT/T1  2T0T/Lz/oT oauD Ag pied ITUAD Z1-01 weib04g JUBWaIN301d 03 00 - L66ZT
£/8865 # NYHINOT
161 Z10e/9t/11 ZY0Z/9T/IT  ZIOE/OT/TT  €T02/L2/0T P2 AQ pegd ITIAD 2101 weabosg JBWBIN304d 0D 0Q - L6621
£/8865 # FOATIHI0T
£TEh Z102/97/11 ZI0Z/9T/IT  ZT02/9T/1T  TRoZ/iz/ol 32D Ag pied ITIAD ZT-0T WweiBoid JUBRIN20Id 0D 00 - L6621
soljddng 20140 - QOB EES WNODY
00'S06°c 7 SUOIBSURE] 32I0AU] SiR10} Se3iALaE [eBST - QR TEE JUNoIDY .
975665 #
00°852'T Z1oz/os/11 ZIOZ/OE/TT  ZT02/0E/1T  CIge/ot/iv R A pied ITIAS 98472 dT72pIGINIA g SAIBH ‘BMOY - 9180T
TOPE6S #
00'059°7 Z1oz/zot ZI0Z/Z0/TY  T10z/z0f11  2T0T/61/01 $I3UD Ag pied ITUAD 86972 477 2pIqIMA B SSjeH ‘emoy - 9T80T
sEDliiagy ummm.,m - QETTZS JWN020Y
[9°158°sE T SUONDESURI | 23I0AU] S|210] SBSAIBS |BUOISSBIDN - GOT TTE JUN0IMY
PEGRGS # ITIAYANCIYD
LO7TSEE z10z/91/11 ZE0Z/OT/TT  ZI02/9T/i1  TI0Z/ST/oT PR Ag pled 40 NMOL 05208 uy BuiBetutololt 1essg ublH - §TTZ
SPDAIBE (BUCISSBI0S - 00T TTY IUN02DyY
66'55% T SUDEDIBSURT | SM0AUT 51210 esusdid JDWIBIUY - BT 0TS UN0DY
L8865 #
66°SE Z10Z/91/11 TI0Z/9T/TT  2T0Z/OT/IT  CI02/20/11 32UD AQ pled 60SZT00900TTHSER  ZT/TT 60SET00 SUOREDIUNWILWGY) fBLey) - /8857
ssuadyy JDIINT ~ 2817075 UNODY
8867z T SUSIDBSUR. | AMOAL] s|e10) Jutudinhyy SBSEeY 1 S1USY - 9T 0TS WNOMY
621665 #
8g's7¢ TY0Z/9T/TT ZIOT/OT/IT  CTOZ/9T/TT  ZTO0Z/TO/TT 34D Aq pied ZT0/059TL 105592490 uoneiodio] XolaX - 615E
wowchinbs sasea W 51Uy - GET 0TS IUNODY
00'ss$ 7 SUCHDESUEI] a20Al] sjeyay dinbg ek - £Z0170TS Wnoy
FTI66S #
05'4€ zroz/at/in ZIOZ/OT/IT  ZT0Z/9T/IT  ZTOZ/OE/DT MaUD Ag pied 61 8/ ouf AMIeSPoUS|T dlddium - Z4bE
FZ166S #
05°L€ 210z/91/11 ZIOT/OT/IT  2I0Z/OT/IT  ZT0Z/OE/0T #I2uD Ag pred 61 L JUf AYnoasgalpalg aiddium - Z4KE
dinbz yujen - £0T°0ZG N0y
ULWPY S[IAIBUPIRE - TZ6 WBWeda]
Hme ] ajjtausuples - §1o pund
JUROIY 2X0AU]  @1e(] JBWAE] 21R( PaARIDY 2984 179 93 2n( =2)e( =a10AU]  LoSeay pieH SEIS UoRdLDSaq 2JI0AL] "ON 2210AUT I0BUSA

ZT/0€/TT - 21/10/11 =buey a1eq /9




3-5

Wd #:S0ZT ZTOZ/E/TT U0 UeyInoT joseD Ag uny

97 Jo  abeg

¢~.¢Dmmw T SLIQASRSURL | BDI0ALY m_mao._. ASMO] - SROAGES WUNODDY
£/9865 #

#T'+0E Z10T/60/11 2I0e/60/TT  2T02/60/1T  Z10Z/52/01 3RUD Ag pred ¥0816Z  TT-OT $0816/ ABIBUI AN - $T6T

1BMOG - 590° 07 UN0DY

Z6'180°1% 0T SUCHDRSURL | adidAUT sieyoy, dredey g uswedridsy - RO GTS JMNODY
LbPE6S #

86°5¢E ZT02/0E/1T ZIOZ/OE/TT  ZT0E/0E/TT  Z102/0%/0T 18U AQ pled ITUAD 2999100/ wied 8811 MBIA LIBRINOW - DRGTZ
TSEGBS #

75'9T ZT0Z/0E/11 TI0Z/0E/TT  TI0Z/OE/IT  Z10Z/60/11 8D AG pled £16/ LyPTrE9 {alltvo) Jodaq WOy -~ /p/pT
87E66S #

(¢8797) ZI0Z/0E/TT 2102/08/TT  ZIoZ/og/1T  cToT/og/oT 323D Aq pred ITIAD 08650% 431U USPIED BSNOYUSAID) - 7oL
82E666 #

06°0%6 ZI0Z/08/11 TIOZ/OE/TT  ZTOZ/OE/TT  2T0Z/£2/01 ¥azyD Ag pled ITIAD £2650b 491U3] UBPIRD) BSNOYUSBIS - 7568
TZ0665 #

96'h Z10Z/91/1% TTOT/91/TT  2E0Z/9T/IT  ZI0Z/s0/0T A38UD A pled 0L1H £6/69F 95N0Y SHR4 - O1IGT
TO066S #

11°81 210Z/91/11 ZI02/9T/11  ZI0Z/9T/11  z10Z/T0/01 334D Aq pled 06067 CEELO0TE SUeg O ON - £6952
100665 #

81'¥2 ZT0T/9T/11 ¢I0Z/OT/TT  ZI0Z/OT/IT  Z102/%2/60 WPayD Aq pred 06064 *P66Z90TE SHRd INY N - £694T
LLL86S #

916 ZI0Z/91/11 ZIOZ/9T/TT  ZY0e/OT/1T  TTOoR/vEion 234D Aq pied 9821 /090840 aIeMplRH 23 - 58611
LL1865 #

66°CT z10Z/91/T1 ZI0Z/9T/TT  2I0C/OT/TT  TT0Z/RT/0T ¥3uD AQ pled el | 1/226LL0 SIEMPIRH 0% - §86T1
LL/B65 #

66'S z102/91/11 ZI0Z/OT/TT  ZI0Z/9T/1T  Tioz/-0/0T $3YD Aq pled 9EZT 1/259220 S4EMDIRH 80 - G96TT

SAreday 1 jusweoe|dsy - $BG'0TS UNOTY
UOREDDY B S8 - £76 Wowpedag
HAADY SHIAIBLRIRS - §F9 DL
JUNOWY 9210ALUT  D3eq JUSWARE 938 pani@ldy 212 /0 28] 8N 1eg 220AU]  UOSEDY p|eH SMEIS UQNELIISACT S210AUT "Od 2210AU] IEIREYY

SjaeAed SIUN0ID




Z1/0S/1T - 21/10/171 =buey =:1eq /5

91 Jo § abed ~ Wd bb50:ZT ZTOZ/OE/TT UO UBLRNOT (08T AQ UNY
H

0£'827% T SUDIDBSURLE SI0AUL 51210, BO 8 SES - £O0TES WUNOIDY

- 695865 #

0£'8Z¢ Z10Z/20/11 7102/Z0/TT  210Z/20/1T  Z10Z/51/01 M2 AQ pieg 80£8 £T£9550540 11 ABlaug s19Aid - HISE

10 @ sBn - £00'ZES N0y

SH'GLTPS GT SUDIDESURIL B3I0AUY 51230 J2ABM ~ Q60 ATS WNOIDY
F1686S #

81°95 ZI0Z/9T/TT ZIOZ/OT/TT  ZI0Z/9T/1T  ZT0Z/1E/01 ¥}2UD AQ pied 10069  ZT/0T 10'069 Auedwo) seem finBupes - 6Tyl
HE6865 #

99'6T ZT0z/9T/1T ZI0Z/9T/TT  ZT0Z/9T/TT  ZI0Z/TE/OT #33YD Ag pled 100¥9  ZT/0T 10°0H9 Auedwo) 121ep BIMBUDIRD - 62FT
H16865 #

00'9% TE0Z/9T/TT ZI0Z/OT/IT  Z2T0T/9T/TT  TT0Z/TE/0T 338y AQ pled 10'v292  Z1/0T 10°v29e Auedwio] faiem amisupies - 67k
H16865 #

02161 ZI0Z/9T/1T ZI0Z/9T/TT  2I0T/9T/ET  LI0Z/1£/0T #aayD Aq pled 10°E65¢  Z1/0T 10°£65¢C Auedio) Jajepm ajplaupIes - GTET
$16865 #

08°8bE ZI0Z/9T/1T ZI0Z/9T/TT  2I0T/9T/TT  Z10Z/1E/0T 384D AQ pled 10'TEbe  ZT/0T TOTERE Auedwio) Jalepm niaupies - 62T
PIGRES #

07°£05 ZI0Z/9T/EE ZI0Z/9T/TT  TT02/9T/TT  ZT0Z/1E/0T 338UD AQ pled 10°26TC  ZT/0T YO Z62¢ Auedwo) 1e1ep sflinsupeD - 6ZET
16865 #

S6°LTF 210Z/9T/TT ZI0Z/9T/TT  ZT0Z/9T/TT  ZI0Z/TE/0T 33340 AQ pled 109222 ZT/0T 10792 Auedwio) 191ep BfinsUpeD - 6ZFT
PI686S #

0007 TE0Z/9T/TT ZI0Z/9T/TT  ZI0Z/9T/ET  ZTOZ/TE/OT ¥I3YD AQ pled 00V ZT/0T 10°0bTE Auedwod e 2fIABUPED - 6ZFT
FI686S #

00°96 TI0Z/9T/TT ZI0Z/9T/TT  ZI0Z/9T/TT  ZI0Z/1E/0T #oauD Aq pred T0°6E£TZ  Z1/0T 10°6ET2 Auedwo) 1ajem SfIABUDIRD - 6THT
PI686S #

0T S8t ZI0Z/9T/TT ZT0Z/9T/TT  ZI02Z/OT/TIT  TT0Z/1E/0T ¥2UD Ag pled 10541 TT/0T T0°SHLT Auedwo) Jajem |IMBURIRD - GZHT
PIERBS #

0b T ZE0Z/9T/1T ZIOZ/9T/TT  2I0Z/OT/TT  Z10Z/1E/01 324D Ag pled TO'ELET  2T/0T TOELET Aueduro] Ja3epm ajiaRUpIeD - 6ZHT
PT686S #

8T 166 TE0Z/OT/TT ZIOZ/O1/TT  TI0Z/OT/IT  ZT0Z/1E/0T AI8yD Aq pled TO'8FET  ZT/0T TO'9PET AuedwioD Jatep SIASUPIRD - 6ZHT
bT68ES #

00°%8 Z10Z/9T/TT ZIOZ/OT/TT  TI0Z/9T/IT  Z10Z/TE/0T ¥a8UD Aq pled T0'0FET  TT/0T TOOPET AuedwoD 1218 SJPADUPIED) - 6ZHT
P1686S #

8'65 ZI0Z/OT/TT ZI0Z/9TT  ZI0Z/9T/IT  ZTOZ/TE/OT ¥2UD Ag pled T0'TZET  ZT/0T TO'TZET Aupdwio) Io1ep SpAISUPIED - 6ZHT
P16966 #

0z'8eT’t 2T0Z/9T/1T ZT0T/01/TT  TI0Z/OT/TT  210Z/1E/01 33D Ag pred T0'Z0ET  ZT/0T TO'Z0ET Auedwio? 1218 BABUPIRD - GZHT

42318/ - 060°0TG WNEY
UORIEDIDBY ] SHIBY ~ £T6 swuedag
UMGC] SfIAIBURIRE - 0TQ Pun
JUNOLUY DX0AUT EilTg .Ewc._}mn_ )eq pPoAtedey a)egd |_.__.w Qi =i 2IEQ |dOAUT uosesy| pleH SNIRYS co_wn__._ummm_ 330AU] O 3310AL] AOpUIA



9T 40 g 96 ~ Wd ¥b150:ZT ZT0Z/0E/TT U0 uepno [ofed Ag uny
{
N
0/'659'0E 75 SUONDRSUBRS ;T S0I0ALY SIRIC | UORRIIDTY W S ~ £FE Waunledag
56°609% G SUOIIBSURL) 810AUT 51210 s308{odd HBIME -~ £TREES N0y
YE6BS #
00'56 210z/0e/11 ZI0Z/0E/TT  210Z/0E/1T  Z102/80/11 PaLD Ag pled ITNAD Z2L05k UL AIUIOSEY HEIMEY - OpRT
952665 #
00'5Z ZToz/os/TT I0Z/0ETT  ZT0T/0E/TT  ZTOZ/OT/TT 384D Aq ped HSYD ALL3d  ATIIAD 2T-TT uysey Anad-wol aieeq - 6452
L6166S #
00'05 zIgz/oe/tt ZIOZ/OE/TT  ZTOZ/OE/IY  ZT0e/61/1T A38UD Ag pled ITmAS b9LBE Ul s1Mep YU - Z8PDZ
£/8865 # NYHLNOT
S6°66 Z1oz/91/11 TI0Z/OT/YT  ZI0ZfoT/1T  ZI0Z/iT/oi 8L Ag pled ITIAS 21-01 wieifioud JUBIBIN0I 03 00 - /6621
81886G # ITHAD
00009 ZT0zZ/91/11 ZI02/9T/IT  ZT0T/9T/11  TIoe/iTiol 334D Aq prad ITAD [0 7Nt Ju1 saprd YbIs|S seblog - £/EET
S18[0d HBWS - L1965 N0y
UORESIIDY 3 3B - £26 Watiuedag
UmMoL BjfIAISUpIRS - GTO pUnd
JUNOWY SJICAU] 2] JUSRE]  s1e( DoAlsay SIB0 1/9 2 sng I8 =0I0AlU]  Uoseay Pled SNIRIS UonaGLIIS3() So0AUT ‘ON SD10AUT Jopuap,

Ag sjgeied sjunodd




Wd $#:50:2T ¢T0Z/0E/TT U0 URLINGT [OJE] AQ LITY

91 jo /£ 3bed Ao
Ny
mo.mmmﬂ 7 SUONDESUR L 3X0ALL SIRI0), 1O B seR - E00'CES JUNOOoY
s $06865 #
85'/18 zioz/ot/i¥ ZT0Z/9T/IT  ZI0Z/OT/IT  ZI0Z/IE/0T $o8UD Ag pled 80E8  SE6H950S4D 11 ABaaug sieAld - bTSE
69E86S #
SE'L0E Z10Z/20/11 eT0Z/c0/TT  ZT02/20/11  TIgz/sT/on ¥oaud Ag pled 80E8  £T£9550540 O ABisug s1BAld - pTRE
1O 3 SBD ~ £00°ZES N0
L6T1S% g SUOIDESUR L SHOAUL S|EI0). DROY UL - SOT HTE JUNOXY
TSE666 #
o90'Cs ZT0Z/05/17 ZIOZ/OL/TT  2T02/08/11  T10T/60/1T yauD Ag pred €15/ b Ereo (aHraD) 10dagt SWoH - /4/bT
TSE66S #
(82°€b1) ZI0g/0E/11 ZI0Z/OEMET  TT0Z/OE/TT  2TOT/60/TT ¥I8U AQ pred £1ISZ bbTye9 (2NAD) 10daQ SWOH - /b1
TSEGGS #
84°CHT Z10Z/0E/11 TI0Z/OE/ET  ZT0Z/OE/TT  TT0T/60/TT 8D Ag pred £IS¢ PHPTHT9 (aiNao) Jodag BWOH - ZF/bT
TSE66S #
S6'bST Z102/06/11 TIOZ/OE/TT  ZI0Z/0S/1T  210T/ee/oT 8L Ag pled £ISZ £50THZE (8HAD) 10dag SWOH - /b/bT
+H2665 #
00'+72 Z10Z/0£/11 ZI0Z/0E/TT  ZT0Z/OE/1T  2TOZ/80/0T $3U] Ag pred INQYYD LTTE8Y Addns @ sjue(esg UDIPNASUO) - Z5ES
£/8865 # NYHLNOT
96'T/ Z10Z/91/11 TIOZ/OT/IT  TTOR/OY/IT  2r0Z/z/ot A8y Ag pied ATNAD 71-01 weibold JusLWRINI0N 03 00 - 265677
DEOY 1B - £0T" 025 WN00Y
PR A T SUOIIDRSURH] 32{0AU] S0 1 S3BIE 39908 - GE00TS WNeXY
£/0865 #
TPERL'S 2102/60/11 ZI0Z/60/TT  ZI0Z/60/11  TTOZ/SZ/0T YYD Ag pled $0BT6.  TI-OT +08T6L ABIBUZ AN - ¥Z6T
SIYBIT 15941 - S60° 0TS WN0XDY
/5'68E% / SUDIBIRSURL | 30I0AU] 5e10). sedey p uswsdeilay - 2007 S WUNODDY
15E66S #
08've Z10zfoe/1Y ZI0Z/OE/TT  ZI02/0E/TT  210Z/60/T1 $o0UD AQ pled €15/ FAZTAZA") (21180) 30daq swoy - /E/b1
120665 #
96°ch z102/91/11 ZIOZ/OT/IT  ZTOZ/9T/ET  210Z/50/0T 32840 Aq pled (174%2 £6769F I5N0H SHed - 0152
100665 #
[4g Z10Z/9T/TT ZI0Z/9T/1T  €I0Z/OT/TT  Z10T/2e/oT WIBYD AQ pled 0606/ $0Z+901¢€ syled 0INY DN - £69F2
100665 #
TI'8T ZI0Z/9T/11 2I0Z/91/1T  TT0Z/9T/TT  ZT0Z/T0/01 32342 AQ pied 0606/ £EEEY0TE syed 0Ny DN - E69PT
0cgess #
$0°09Z TI0Z/9T/TT ZI0Z/OT/TT  ZT0Z/9T/1T  g10Z/oE/ot YoUD Aq pied INIAS 88¢/21 Ul SBUIBLT [{elS UOSIED - 9/2F
LLL86S #
€T Zroz/ot/IT ZI0Z/9T/TT  TI0Z/OT/IT  ZY0T/¥T/0T ¥euD Ag pred 9£71 1/£908£0 2ieMplEH 90V - SRGTT
55£965 #
19's2 TT0Z/20/1T ZI0Z/20/TT  2102/20/1T  ZT0Z/6T/0T ¥2uyD Ag pled JSUNAWITY  ¥ILAI ZT-0T wo| a4ejeq - £/912
.&mamm £ u:mgwuﬁnmx = $RH0E WUNR0DY
SHAOMR 21[Grig) APUIC ~ OF 6 .‘__cwEﬂm.mmD
HmMo Y, SljIaisupIee - g1 pund
JUROLWY S210AUT | S1E0) JUILARy BIB(] DoAY 3jeq /o EQ =N =212Q 2J0AU]  UOSESY PioH EIGETS UDIAIDSa] BJI0AU] O SI0AUY JOPUBA
ZT/OE/T1T - 21/10/1T abuey a1e@ /9




Wd b160:ZT 2102/0£/TT UD UBLRnOT (018D AQ Uny

0 g abe
91 40 g abey P
L
W
bLOsTE p SUONDIESUR | D20AL sje30] s309f0.ad J|RMS - LTHEES WN0ODY
88665 #
€LY zIoz/os/ty ZTO0Z/OE/TT  2TOZ/0E/TT  T10T/1E/0T oD AQ ped 81¢508-8L 10-90Z7ET U] SIDJUDY DNAIDS 193IS WA - 5847
881668 #
80°/8 ¢r0Z/0ETT ZI0Z/0S/TE  ZI02/OE/1T  2I0Z/TE/OT 384D AQ pled 817508-8¢ T0-S0ZZEY U[ S19jUBD B0IMBS (9315 WA - §8FC
88L66S #
£6°11 Z10z/0E/1T TI0Z/0E/TT  TI0Z/OE/IT  Zioz/oc/ol P Ag pred 8T2508-87 10-Z072ET JUj si9QuB) BDIAIS PRIS WA - S8HT
$TT66S #
00'¥eT z10Z/08/11 TI0Z/0E/TT  CTOT/OE/TT  ZEOC/ET/iT Y232 AQ pled ITTIAD 908¢T sub|s As||eA uosie) - 1/7
s18fold jews - 1§ E56 JUNoIDY
Nh.m.ﬁh.v.nw Q sUONDeEsuEL L 2710AUT 120 @uzmﬁ@w:_mz 1286 Hova - OTT'PES killalemsiy)
e PHZ66S #
00°089'% ZIOe/0E/TT TI0Z/0E/TT  TI0Z/OE/IT  210%/50/T1 32D AG pleg 1NQYYS 169784 Alddng 13 syuBjeas uopnRsUe) - Z5ES
¥HT66S #
(00v12) Z10Z/0E/TT TIOC/OE/TT  TTOZ/OE/IT  ZIoZ/et/en 334D Aq pled LNQ¥vD ££9184 Addns % sjuefess UomINASUOD - ZGES
PB686S #
b 99 210Z/9T/T1 ZIOZOT/ET  ZI02/9T/IT  ZT0Z/0%/0T Y38y AQ pleg 0451990 SHELTL loquin syealy - 1212
068865 #
52T ZT0z/9T/11 ZIOZ/9T/IT  2I0Z/9T/YT  ZI0Z/Zt/of 33D Ag pled 0£56T 912h0S poag BIlaI5 uIvsey - £66¢
068865 #
L0°es CIOZOT/TT Z10T/9T/T1  Z102/9F/11  cioe/ot/or 33auD AQ pied 0£561 £66£05 pood BLIBIS UIRISET - £56¢
0688965 #
00'1Z Z10Z/91/11 CIOZ/9T/TT  ZTOZ/OT/TT  ZTO0Z/S0/01 ¥oaYD AQ pled 0£56T 695£05 P34 eUR[S U@ISRT - £66€
mucm:mu:mmE [BSS DRI - §TTEES JUNODDY
£0'€s$ G SUCHIBSUR | D0AUE S|210 ) SLEIGLHUN ~ Q70 78 JUnoIDY
BIFBES #
65°/E ZToz/0E/T1 ZI0zfoc/11  zi0zfoe/11  z10E/6z/eD $BUY Aq pied ISUNIWIZS SINVd ZT-6 Apor UMel - GI89Z
S8/86S #
og'c TT0Z/9T/11 2I0Z/OT/IT  2I0Z/9T/1T  Z10Z/0E/0l 3o3yD AQ pred 0SE000  SSEES/NIYT UL 035)Y - GBS
§8/865 #
98t 7102/91/11 TIOZ/OT/TT  ZrOZfoT/TT  Troz/er/or AxyD Ag pled 0SE000  LT9TSINIY UL 0IS|Y - 68§
SB/BES #
98'c 210Z/91/11 ZI0Z/OT/ET  2T02/8T/1T  TI0Z/80/01 }8UD AQ pled OEEOD0  ZH08ELNIYT OUf O2SY - 5846
S8/86S #
0g'c ZT02/91/11 CI0Z/9T/IT  ZI0Z/OT/IT  ZT0Z/20/01 32ys A pred 0EE000  89T9b/NIWT JUL OO5lY - S8/G
SWLIOJRIN - RZ0°ZES JUNODY
SHIOM, DG SO0 - 926 Jualunedag
LAAD L D HAIBUPIEE) - OTO pUndy
unoWly adjoau] B[ JUSWIAE] 918 perleaay A /5 Sje( ong  938g JI0AU]T  UDSESH PiaH SMEIS OS50 DJIOAUT ON SDI0AUT IRETY

ZT/0S/1T - 21/70/11 sbuey a3eq /9




Wd Pb:S0:ZT ZTOZ/0E/TT UD UBYIOT] |OJR) AQ Uiy

91 40 6 9bed
£
/
o0
oT'6/6'79% GOT SUCHDBSURY] BDi0AUY SIEI0). U0 ] DIAIBUDIRD ~ (FTO PUNI
£1°260'5H% GE SUOHDBSURL | BIOA] SjE10 | SHAOAR DG JOULO - 976 Jusuedsg
mo.owm.wa £ SUOHNIBSURL | 90AU} S0 muummah& _m.w._n_muv - G0 295 WNoIDY
POTE6S #
00°S08°Z ZT0Z/0E/TT TICZ/0E/TT « TI0Z/OE/TT  2T0Z/TT/TT 33uD AG pied 1200050 POEOT JUI SIUBYNSUDD MMBIPAY ISBMULION - DEOK
19665 #
04'590°ST ZTOZ/0E/IT ZIOZ/OE/TT  2TOZ/OE/TT  2T0R/6T/TI %054D Aq pled ITIIAD T uonpnasuo) pedw - ZE1/Z
052668 #
66'68 2T0Z/0£/11 z102/08/11  ZI0Z/0EM1T  ZI0Z/9T/11 }osuD Aq pled YONMOL TEREHT JUT J|193(2 SLSISAS [RIUBD - 97/
£ELB6S #
00°0Z9'pT TI0z/20/TT ZTOT/TO/TT « ZTOT/ZOMTT  ZI02/91/01 W2y Ag pled 1200050 $729T DU SIUBYNSLOT JYNeIPAH JSamUUON - 0S0b
spofong jended - 00G'E08 WNCIY
SHI0MA JNIGH SBHID - 96 Jusuedeg
WO SIIASSUPIES - 19 PUnd
JUROLLIY D0ALT  938¢] JUSWAZ 3B PaARIdY (.0 1/9 e 2N 212 2DI0AUT  L0sedY pIBH SRS UCRANIDS3(] 93:0AL] ‘O 92:0AU] JOPLIDA

ZL/0E/TT - Z1/10/17 sbuey 1eQ /D




91 Jo 0T abed

31

Wd #¥:50:¢1 ZT0Z/0E/TT Ue ueuIno joied Aq uny

L/86S #
68'€S zI02/91/1T ZI0Z/9T/TT  Z102/o1/1T  Z102/10/0T ¥z Ag pled 9£Z1 1/495240 alempied 80y - 626TT
Hedsy @ juswipoeday - $20°07S WUN0IIY
00°052% T sUORIesUR: ] DI0AUT S|RI0L AHSY HOG 0g/afRIS0d - §OOTOTS JUN0DSY
SO966S #
00052 Z102/08/11 TI0Z/0E/TT  TI02/08/1T  Zioz/oz/ii 303UD A pred JTUAD  ZT-TT S9P0E dd-SHWD Sd 511 - £0652
JUDY Xog Od/8BeIs04 - 090707 JUNOXDY
50'955% G SUDIDESURI | dMICALT sjejc esusdxy suoydDsl - §EO'DES WN0Y
0/5668 #
EH'SET ZT0Z/0E/TT ZI0Zfoe/IT  ZTOT/OE/1T  ZT102/8T/11 HosUD Ag pled TZ9S9FRGZ 00T-TZ9S9PRGT [eIxeNAuLdS - 1905
20E665 #
6146 ZTQz/0E/1Y CTOZ/OS/TT  ZI0Z/OS/TT  ZT0Z/9t/11 WRUD AQ PiBd  GB/ZOSOBET/ZBLSL. ZT/TT bETL-28L Iouol4 - £0T67
L0E6RS #
LLEY Z1ozfos/11 groz/oe/tT  TIoZ/oE/it  zioz/ov/it WBUD AQ pled  GZOSOBOOSBETBLSLL TI/TT 9S8£-287 Jenuod - £0167
9/PBES #
99°8¢€T ZI0Z/20/1T ZT0Z/20/11  Z10Z/20/11  2r0e/Bi/ol 384D AQ plRg 129595897 660-T2959H857 [FIeN/ULdS - 1908
S/E86S #
£5'86 ZI02/20/1T TEOZ/CO/TT  ZTO0Z/20/TT  zr0z/ot/oT WBUD AQ PIed  SB/Z0SOPETLZS/S/Z TT/OT bETZ-28L I3[UoIS - £016Z
SLEBBS #
ety Z10z/20/11 TI0Z/Z0/TT  2I0Z/20/TT  Z10Z/91/01 WA AQ Pled  SZ080809SRET8LS/. ZT/0T 9585-297 IBOUOM - £OT6T
mmz&axw wcosum_mh - SO0 IUN0DY
mo.mmmﬁmw b SUDNCESUR. § aDIoAUT SiEt soLBlEg IDBAUCT - T T 9T S WN00DY
£6166S #
0950/ 2I0Z/0E/TT ZI0Z/OE/TT  ZTOZ/OS/TT  ZTOZ/6O/TY YD AQ pled 207559 L9EET $B0IAJBS [BUUOSIDg uoqqry Snig - L6912
PTR86S #
72929 Z10z/9T/11 2I0e/9T/TT  2I0Z/91/YT  Zi0Z/20/1t ¥23UD Ag pled Z0Z£S9 £9ZET S3DIAIDS [PUUDSIB ULQaIY =Ng - /69TC
0£5865 #
71'285 ZEOZ/60/TT ZI0Z/60/11  ZT02/60/11  2102/92/0T 33U Ag pred Z0ZES9 65167 SBIIAIRS [BULIDSIad U0QQIE amig - /6917
97E96S #
1649 zI0E/20/11 2I0Z/T0/TT  ZT0Z/E0/EE  2102/61/01 }3UD Aq pled 7OZESS GSOET SB0IAIBG [BUUOSIDY uoqary SNig - /6917
$PLL{ES RALOD - §7T 0TS JUNODY
08 2b1°1% g SUGHDRSUEL] 22I0ALY 51230 uopesURdIOD PIROE - GGT 0TS JUNODDY
L1865 #
00702z 2102/60/11 ZT0Z/60/11  Z10Z/60/1T  Z102/10/1T 32D AQ plad ITIAD  Quvod 71-11 BpUIT 23RS - 6967
889865 #
00°02¢ ZroT/en/11 2r0T/E0/TT  ZT0Z/60/TT  ZTOZ/TO/TT }23yD AQ pied JTAD  QYv08 21-1T [BEUDI sdig - 62981
759868 #
05452 Z102/60/11 ZI0Z/60/TT  TI0Z/60/1T  Zi0Z/TO/TT ¥o=YD AQ pled ITIAD  Quvoda ZI/1T auuay JBYlIiN - 09687
ObORGS #
00'052 Z10Z/60/11 ZI0Z/60/11  ZT0T/60/1T  ZT0T/T0/11 303uD Ag pled IJTIAD  O¥v0g TT/11 v Ined ABSpUIT - £0b/T
P19865 #
00°0z2 2T0Z/60/1T ZI0Z/60/TT  2TOZ/60/TT  ZTOZ/TO/ET ¥o2uD Ag pled IJTIAD  aQyvod ZI/1T M pAoi eianBIH - ggZp
uopesuado]) pieod - §5T°0TS WOy
LONENUES 12 YNRSH - §76 Uswedaq
Ueg g UIeDl SfjadBupdes - TT9 pung
RINOWY =210AU]  31BC] JUdWABd @1EQ PanaDay 2320 /9 SIBG 9N F)eQ 220AU]  UGSeay pleH smeg uoRdIsaq IM0AUT "ON S2[0ALT Jopisp

a)|qeied s1unoid




o1 Jo 11 abed

Wd #P-4U0CL CHIC/VE/ L L UV BELHEU | e ) Ay ulig

fx
8O'¥H'E ZT0Z/0EfTT z10z/0s/1T  ZT0Z/OE/TT  CTOT/ET/TT ’ ﬁﬁwmmmmw_mm 8bEZY 06056 sup uawdindg 231, - 15752
££'79 ZT0z/0g/TT ZTOZAOS/TT  TTOZ/OE/TT  TT0Z/20/1T %memmﬂm_mw ITNAD 6¥191 3IAIBG [RLISNPU J|INEIPAH - 6505
ECETT ZIOZ/OE/TT ZTOZ/OS/TT  ZI0ZfOL/1T  ZTOZ/TE/OT xum:wmmmﬂh ITIAD STIOT 9DJAIRS [BLISAPUL JINEIPAH - 6505
88'bTT z10z/0g/11 TI0Z/OS/TT  Z102/0L/TT  2Toz/ee/oT xum;wmmﬁm_mnm_h ITAD 6Z00T 82JAI9S [2L1snpU] JlneIpAH - 6505
08°v2 Z10Zf0E/TT 7TOT/0E/TY  ZT0Z/OE/TT  ZT0Z/60/1T xumsmeMmﬁm_mm £18/ LbbTHTo (21AD) 1008 SWOH - LE/FT
86001 ZL0zZf0g/TT ZI0Z/OS/TL  TT0Z/OE/TT  CT0T/63/T1 v_umsw,ﬁmmﬂmm ITNAD Tors $52|9 AB||eA UOSIED - E0ZL
ST'¥b Z10Z/0E/1T TIoz/oe/1T  Ziozfog/it  eioziEiion v_umgwmm@mmm ITIAD vIbS SSE|9) AB|jeA UOSIED - £0ZZ
00'2LE 2r0z/9T/11 z10Z/91/11  TI0Z/9T/1T  ZT0Z/T0/1Y V_umcwmmmwm_mm 8bET9 Y6LZ0L9 U7 uRwWdinb3 DAL - 152862
96'€¢ T0z/o1/11 ZI0ZMOT/TT  ZT0T/OT/TT  ZTozfez/oT v_umszmmm_um_h 0L 8LT2LY 85N0H sWed - 01ST
£9°81 ZE0Z/9T/TT ZI0Z/9T/TT  ZT0Z/9T/TT  ZT0Z/80/0T xumszm.mmum_mw 0Lk 0LTO0Lb 8SNOH SUBg - 0167
G6'eh ZEOZ/OT/TT TIOT/OLAIT  TT0Z/OT/ET  TIOT/S0/0T ﬁmc%mm_mum_h 0LTb £6/69% B5NOH SHed - OTSZ
66'S TI0z/9T/TT ZIOZ/OT/TT  2I0Z/9T/1T  2102/9Z/60 v_umzwmmmﬂmw_ 0L #6289 @snoH sued - 0152
1181 ZT0Z/91/11 TIO0C/OT/IT  TI0T/OT/TT  TTOT/TO/OT ﬁm;wcmmwm_mm 0606¢ £EEE90TE sHed 0Iny DN - £695T
arvz ZT0Z/9T/1T ZTIOT/OT/IT  TT0Z/OT/TT  ZT0L/be/60 ﬁmngmm@Mmm 0606, *D00E90TE shed 0Ny DN - £69VT
TI'6E Zrozfat/1l ZTIOZ/OT/TT  2T0Z/OT/IT  ZT0Z/+1/60 xumsw&,om@mh 06064 +059Z90TE SHed 03Ny ON - £69+2
9L°6¢ ZY0Z/9T/TT ZI0Z/9T/TT  ZT0Z/9T/IT  Z10Z/01/60 xumswomm,w_um_mw 06062 *90FZ90TE sped 030y DN - E69FE
8E'84L'T ZI0Z/9T/1T ZI0E/9T/TT  210Z/9T/1T  ZI0Z/ET/OT xumswhmmm%mﬂ SL9VT-LTY  TSOTTOD0LTL DU S2IUST BIIE LIS el - £508
£/896S # NOSTOHDIN
00709 ZE0E/9T/TT TIOZ/OT/TT  TI0Z/9T/1T  2T02/LT/0T #aU) Aq pred ITIAD Z1-01 wielBold JUBLIRINJ0Nd ©) 00 - L6621
8L ZT0Z/9T/1T ZIOZ/9T/TT  2I0Z/OT/TT  Z10Z/RY/0T ﬁm:wmmmm%_mw TONMOL 648957 5103e01iqR] PRIEROSUOD - BETZ
61’8 TT0Z/9T/T1 ZI0Z/91/TT  CT0Z/OT/IT  TI0Z/LT/0L v_um;nun\n,mmmmﬂ 9ee1 T/L064£0 SIEMPIEH 33V - 58611
LTTE ZIOZ/OT/TT ZIOT/OT/TT  TEOZ/9T/IT  210Z/ST/01 V_umr_w\,»mmummw 9gCT T/8b8LL0 BuEMPIBH 87 - GBGTT
¥9's rog/ot/11 ZT02/9T/1T  2T0Z/91/1T  2102/80/01 v_um;mﬁmmmﬂm 9£Z1 1/L0L2L0 alempieH 30y - 58611
sedoy g juswaseidsy - P86 0TS oY
HoNeHUES R YIBEBH - 526 JUsWiEdE]
JGNOMUY 2210ALY  938(] JUSLIAR] 31Bq paAladay 23eq /9 BIEQ ey o1e( ooAl]  U05edY PIoH sO1eIs UoRdIEeq 210AU] NEERLY SR SRR ,ﬁﬁ‘_mommmm

ZT/OE/TT - 21/10/17 ebuey =1eq 1/D

Aq sjqreied sunodd




971 jo 71 2bed

Wd bB1S0:ZT ZT0Z/0E/TT uo ueyINoT joie] AG uny

342

PP ETO% 7 SUCROBSURI ] BHOALY SIRI0L SpEq e - 60°08S LN02DY
208865 #
ZE'69 ZT0Z/OT/TT ZT0Z/OT/TT  ZT0T/9T/11  eroT/6Z/01 ¥2au3 Aq pled 0£Ls 6LG6 aup Alddng jepnsnput saoxy - 8702
T6/865 #
ZTHbS ZI0Z/91/1T ZI0ZOT/TT  ZT0Z/9T/TT  Z1oZ/rs/on 3I8UD AQ pleg STOT Pe6TL-T ‘0] Jusuwdinby erely - g68c
DRF JUBE ~ £60°0ZS RNCIDY
PLTOTS 9 SUONDRSUR) | AD0AUT S230). BUREsH - 260078 UNOMY
$OS66S # 71~
61°ZF ZT0Z/0E/11 ZI0Z/0E/1T  Z10Z/0E/11  Z10Z/eT/1T 399uD AQ pred ZO000YRRTITIIFE 1T 2000098871 sebap se7-sen 35aMUIN0sg - 1Z0E
95665 # I-
8Tk 2T02/06/1T CIOZ/OL/TT  TTOZ/OE/TT  ZTOZ/PT/TT 3Ry AQ pied POOPEZZLOTIRE TT HO0OVZE2L0T sefoA S07-58D 15PMIANCS - TZOE
POSEES # Zr-
$T'ET zIoZ/0E/TY CTOZ/0E/TT  ZTOZ/0S/TT  2I0Z/pT/1T Y220 Ag pled ¢e06LL5TO0THE TT 2206475100 sefop sev-se9 3seMyINes - TZ0E
ELPBES # 71~
95'€7 TT0Z/20/11 Z10z/20/TY  ZT0Z/20/11  ZTOZ/ST/OT ¥I8UD AQ pled Z00009BRTIIFEZ 0T Z000098RIT sebap se-ses 1samuInos - 1Z0¢
£/4865 # (48
vELE Z10Z/20/11 TI0z/Z0/TT  ZT02/20/1T  Z10Z/ST/01 AU AG pred $00FTZZTLOTIVE OT $OOFECTL0T sefiep Se1-5ED IeMINCS - T20€
/P8BS # r4¢
#0°5T ZI0Z/20/11 TT0Z/TOMTT  ZTOR/ZOMTT  ZIOR/ST/OT #2342 Aq preg TTO6L£5100THZ 0T TZ06£LT1S00 5eBaA SE1-589 1S9MYINGS - TZ0E
Buieal - 7607 07S JUN0DY
¥8°5/% 7 SUORDESUSEY aDIDAUT S|@I0L SRIRAA - GEHTDEE JUN0XY
¥16865 #
81°95 z10z/91/11 ZIOZ/OT/TT  7I0Z/OT/IT  ZTOZ/Te/on #aUD A pled 10069  ZT/0T T0°069 AuedwoD 120eMm SIBUDIED - 62T
16865 #
99°6T ZI0Z/oT/1T Z10Z/9T/11  ZTge/o1/11  zioT/ic/ol aud Aq pied I0°0F9  TE/0T T0°089 Auedo) Jaepm afisupies - 67T
ABIRM - 060°07G JUNODDY
82'#Ees T SUORISSURL) 3DI0ALT S|RIC MmO - SEO0TS MDY
£/9865 #
84 pEE Z10Z/60/1 ZTOC/60/TT  ZEOC/60/TT  ZIoT/Sz/oT ¥=2UD AQ pled 50816/  2T-01 +08164 ABJUZ AN - b267
IBMOd ~ §20°DTS UNOIBY
6+ 197°8% $Z SUOTBSULE] 3DI0AU] siej0] Aedsy g uswadeday - pROOTE JUNOIIY
T 685665 #
0L'6(F Zroz/oe/1n CI0Z/0E/TT  ZI0Z/0S/TT  Z102/20/11 PR AG pled el o) HBLT0L9 our Juawedinbz D31 - 1825T
seday g juswaneiday - $80°0FS UNODY
HORENUEE 1B UYRSH - §76 Juswedag
UES 73 UESH SjiAssupleD - TT9 pung
WNOWY aX0AU] 23 JUBLLARY 938 PaAleDay 292 1/ 21 8NCl 3. II0AU]  UOSESY pPlofd LT UondiSacy 210Ul "ON 9310AU]T 0pUIA

ZT/0E/TT - 21/10/1T obuey s1eq J\w

Sjqei




97 jo £7 26ed

Wd PBG0¢T € LUCIUES LL HU URYHIV | {Ude ) A uny

P
Th———
]
o 828865 #
9/'09¢ z10z/91/11 ZI0Z/OT/IT  Troz/oT/TT  ZToZ/so/ot 33342 AQ pred 640827 SEST666 jupue Ao uosieD - £585T
B7BE6S #
Obp6E FAT4 AN Z10Z/9T/1T  TI0Z/91/TT  ZI10Z/FD/0T %3 Aq pied 6/0822 0877666 Jipue AYD UDSIED - £585T
878965 #
O£ ¥8F Z10T/91/11 ZIOZ/OT/TT  TIOL/ST/IT  ZT0Z/p0/01 »au) AQ pled 6£08T¢ 8/22666 jHipue Ay uosie) - £585T
879865 #
08'T8E zI0z/91/11 ZTOT/9T/1T  2I0T/9T/TT  TT0Z/e0/0T ¥aud AQ pred 6/087¢ 8102666 jpue] AuD uosieD - £585T
8TBR6S #
91"t ZT0Z/91/11 ZI0Z/91/TT  Z2I0Z/9T/1T  ZT0Z/80/0T ¥28uD Ag pled 640822 L96T666 Jjipue Aiy uosieD - £585T
HTRIGS #
76°19¢ ZI0T/9T/TT ZT0Z/91/TT  2I0Z/9T/TT  ¢10Z/£0/0T 33842 Ag pled 6/082¢ T68TE66 [iypueT Ao uosie) - £5857
BZBBES #
#0'97F Z10Z/9T/1T ZI0Z/9T/TT  2I0Z/9T/TT  210Z/z0/0T }8uD) Aq pled 6/08%¢ ZESTE66 jypuen AWs uosie) - £6851
BTRBES #
88'009 Z10Z/9T/11 ZI0Z/9T/T1  2T0Z/9T/IT  Z10Z/10/0T 334D AQ pled 6£08%¢ POZT666 jiypue] Ao uosIeD - £585T
ssuadx3 [|UPUET - Z6T70TE UN0DY
oo.mmm T SUODRSURY | 3010ALT ESQ.‘_. wmﬁmmmxw ISWISIUY ~ 8T (124 JUN0d0Y
/b886S #
00'9% ZT0z/91/11 ZI0Z/9T/IT  2T0Z/OT/TT  ZT02/20/11 »2yD AQ pled 60SZIO0900TTHSER ZT/TT 60SZT00 SUOEDIUALLIKIOY Joeyd - /88ST
SSUDHX DAY - L8T0ZG JUN0DY
sees T SUCHDESURLL B3I0ALT sieio) auowehinby sosEs g SIUDH - 9L T GES WNOIdY
671665 #
18622 CTOZ/9T/TY ZI0Z/9TAIT  ZTI0Z/9T/IT  ZT0Z/TO/1T 333UD AQ pled Z1040€91L T0SS94190 UORRI0GI0D XORX - GTSE
uzwdinbg sosesy 1 SIURY - LT 0TS WNODY
ob'ses'ves £ SUCHIBSURL) a3i0AU] si30y dinbz el - Z0T°00% JWN0Y
£BYGBS #
Ob 012’2 210Z/0E/TT ZI0Z/0E/TT  ZI0ZT/0S/1T  ZI0ZAT/TT 384D AQ pred ITIAD 9£EkT AQT3 277 SWISSAS |RIUBLULICIALT OTI0 - 8088
YTT665 #
0S'£€ 2T0Z/9T/1T ZIOZ/OT/TT  2I0T/9T/TT  ZY0Z/0E/0T 8D Aq pled 61 g Uy AUndaseoIned addium - Z4RE
¥TT6E6S #
05'2€ Z10Z/9T/11 ZI0Z/9T/TT  ZI0Z/9T/1T  ZT0Z/OE/0T 38U Ag pred 61 L our AroesgoUpals oiddiym - Zive
dinby yurew - £0T°024 Junoady
00 0reS # SUOIIDESURS | 30i0AUL S|8I0 1 SRINIDS |BLIOTIRIRE - 850°0¢S JWUN0DY
T//865 #
00°'S8 zZroz/oT/TT ZIOT/91/TT  TI0ZMOT/IT  ZT0Z/90/T1 Ad8yD AQ pled JTTAD Z10T90L WIALSS [RUOYURL +Y - LPELT
TLL865 #
00'S8 z102/91/11 ZI0T/9T/TT  TI0Z/OT/IT  2T0Z/90/11 A8YD AQ pied ITIAD Z16090L B0IAIBS |RHOMNURE +Y - /BELZ
TLL86S #
00's8 ZI0Z/9T/11 ZYO0Z/OT/TT  TTOT/9T/TT  ZI0Z/90/11 308YD AQ plRd aTiAD 7180901 DOIAIBS |BUOMUBL +V - LBELT
T£/865 #
00's8 Z102/9T/TT ZI0Z/OE/TT  ZTIOZ/9T/IT  ZT0Z/90/1% 2y Aq pled ITNAD 2120901 NAIBS |RUONVEBL +Y - LBELT
SD2IAIBS [BHOJEL - BEO°0TE WNOWY
HONBHUES 3 UHERH - 626 Jusunledsg
uRg 13 YIEal SIABUPIES - TTY puUng
JUNOUY @DI0AUT  838(] JUSLUARY 2le( PaAladay a38C] /9 2180 9N¢]  238(] =JI0AUY  UOSEDY plap SRS UondUoss(] 930AL] "ON @0AU] A0PUIA

ZY/0E/TT - 21/10/11 sbued 21eQ /D

Ag sjgeied sIUN0IDY



Wd ¥5150:ZT T02/0E/TT Uo ueyInoT |048) Ag uny

ST 4O b1 abked ')
T 878865 #
b0'82h z1oz/ar/tt Z10T/91/11  ET0Z/OT/TT  TEOE/EZ/OT 3 yooud Aq pleg 640827 1004666 lgpuer A uosie) - £5851
91'Z55 zrozfot/1 ZIOZ/OT/TT  2T0Z/OT/IT  Z10Z/2T/0T V_Umswmmmﬂm_mw 640872 £9/9666 lypuET A3D UOSIED - £68GT
¥T'E6E Z10Z/91/11 TYOL/OT/TT  TIOT/OT/IT  Zi0z/6T/oT V_uw;wNmm_mmmM 6£0822 7079666 ypue AND UosIED - £58ST
86°59¢ ¢10z/91/11 ZI0Z/9T/11  Z10Z/91/11  2102/61/01 %EWNMW_@MM 520822 S/T9666 [l3pue) Ay uosied - £685T
09'88¢ Z10z/91/11 TI0Z/OT/IT  TT0Z/9T/1T  ZT02/3E/01 y_umswmmmwh 6£082¢ £265666 UpUe AYD UOSIRD - £585T
ZH b ZI0Z/9T/TT CTOT/9T/TT  TIOT/OIMIT  ¢T0E/8T/0T v_um:wNww_mum_mw 620822 7765666 llypue Ay uosied - £586T
v LTE Zroz/otfit ZI0Z/OT/IY  ZT0Z/9T/1T 2102/81/01 u_um:wmmmﬁmm 640822 0265666 llupue A3 vosied - £685T1
05'€EE ZY0e/oT/1T eT0Z/OT/TT  TI02/9T/TT  Z10T/iT/o1 ﬁmgwmwmmwmm 6£08T¢ 6195666 ilupuet Ao uase) - £5857
89'b/€ Zr0z/9T/TT ZIOT/9E/TT  ZTOZ/9T/TT  Z10T/L1/07 xumgwuNMMmMmm 640827 8655666 liupue Ay uosie) - £58571
0£°65% ZT0Z/91/11 LI0C/9T/TT  ZTOZ/9T/ET  Z10T/L1/0T xum;wmmmwm_mm 640822 5855666 liypue Aud uosie) - £5857
06'LEb ZI0Z/91/11 TIOZMOT/TT  ZROZ/9T/TT  ZT0%/0T/0T V_um:wNmmmum_mm 620822 BLESE66 ypuE Au Uosie - £585T
WS ZY0Z/9T/T1 TI0Z/9T/EY  ZTOZMOT/IT  T107/ST/0T v_um:wmmmmum_mm 640827 TO0S666 flypue A3 uosseD - £585T
vLBLE ZT0T/91/11 TI0Z/OT/TY  ZI02/9T/1T  Z10Z/2T/01 ﬁm;wmwm@_om_mm 640872 78PH666 ilypuet AU uosied - 585t
Ob'b6E ZT0Z/9T/T1 ZI0Z/91/11  TI0e/SE/1T  Troz/eT/on ﬁmngmmwmm 540822 B5H666 liypue Ay uosieD - £585T
[N 4 TI0Z/91/17 CIOZ/OT/IT  210Z/91/11  210T/TT/0T xumzwwmmwmmw 6£087¢C 9ETHGE6 lupue A1) UOsIRY) - £68ST
95" €Sk Z102/91/t1 ZI0T/9T/TT  ZROT/OT/IT  ZI0T/11/0T xu@:ﬂmwmmwmm 6£0822 0120666 lypus] A Uosied - £585T
PbSh 710Z/91/11 ZI0Z/OT/ET  ZT0Z/9T/1T 2T0Z/T1/0T xumszmm_ﬂmm 640827 POTH666 llypuet AI) uosie) - £585T
29'66¢€ ZT0E/91/11 CT0Z/IT/TT  TI0Z/OT/IT  Z102/0T/01 %Ewmmmﬂmmw 620872 OP6E6GS Iypuet A uosie) - £585T
B9 Z10z/9t/11 CI0Z/OT/IT TTOT/OLMTT  ZT0Z/0T/O01 v_umchmmﬂmm 6£08Z7 6985666 frypuey A uosied - €561
b9 18E Zroz/ot/T1 ZI0Z/9T/IT  ZT0Z/91/1Y  ZT0Z/50/01 %Ewmmmwh 640822 5955666 lIypue A uosiE] - £5851
08's85 ZI0Z/9T/TT ZIOZ/OT/IT  TTIOT/9T/IT  2ToT/80/oT v_umﬁwm.wﬁmmumh 60822 beZE666 llgpueT A3D Uosie) - £685T
0£'68¢ TT0Z/91/11 TI0Z/9T/TT  ZTOZ/9T/IT  Z102/50/01 xum:wmmmﬁmw_ 6L08RZZ 8EST666 lypuE A UOSED - €686
asuadxy [IPURT - LET'07G WNOD0Y
UONEUUES B Y3(Eal - §E6 Juswpedag

UBg B YESH S[iAaupaRs - TI9 pung

UROWY SI0AT]  BIeq JUSIIARY =1eQ) paneday 3380 /5 :N2J NG NBQ S20AU]  10SESH PRH FHENS HORAUS3] 90I0ALT *ON 90I0AL lopugp

ZT/0E/1T - Z1/10/17T abuey =320 /9

jgeAed s1UNODY



91 jo 5T abed 3 Wd PSU-CL CLUCIULS B E UV URYIO § puss ) g ung
T
o
SO'R0ZbS £ SUDHOBSURI [ SDI0ALT S|RI0L YO | sen - Eo0°TES UnoooY
860668 #
16859 ZI0e/9T/1T ZI02/O1/TT  TT0Z/9T/TT  210Z/ET/01 38U Aq pled 0078/20-5¢ NI-TZ£8/80 DT WnS(0.433d SBWOL), - §LEL
06865 #
TTERG'T ZI0Z/9T/TT ZI0Z/OT/TT  TT0Z/OT/TT  ZI0T/IE/oT o8y Ag pled B0E8  SE6H9S0SHD 71 ABisuz stedld - $I8E
69C86S #
76°695'T Z102/20/11 710Z/Z0/TT  ZT0Z/Z0/11  ZI0T/5T/01 08Uy A pied 8088 £TE£955054D 71 ABisug stedld - vI8E
10 0 SBH - COOZEG JUn0IDY
00'b+$ T SUDNIRSLIE{ 3NOAUT 31210 350D UOIPRBHoD-1elo] - SETIEE N0y
£/8865 # NYHLNOT
00 b z10Z/91/11 ZIOZ/OT/IT  ZTIOZ/OT/TT  2T07/LZ/0T yoaud AQ pied ITIAD Z1-0T weibod JUaWRIN20Id 63 00 - Z66ZT
150D uofIde|jod-1e5ey - SET LY N0y
/9 15£8'cs 1 SUORDESLRL) BI0AU] S(210| SSMAIDG [BUOISEDI0NS - 00T TTE Junody
PEGRBS # ITNAYINGEYD
L9°15E'S Z102/91/11 ZT10Z/9T/TT  ZIOZ/9T/1T  CroE/sez/ar ¥y Aq pled 40 NMOL 0S£0E auy BuyBew|ol Wesaqg UbiH - STT/
SDOIAIDG [EUDISSBI0L] ~ 80T TTE ROy
£9°082'61% 2§ SUORDRSURIL 32I0AUY s[ej0t esuadxd MpUeY - L6 026 1Un0dDY
G8B86S # r/or
6ETLE'T Z102/51/1T ZI0Z/AT/IT  ZTI02/9T/1T  ZT0Z/10/1T #I8UD AQ pred ZT906601 21506600 U [esodsia seBnog - 9106
878865 #
0E'€TS ZI0E/9T/TT ZI0Z/9T/1T  ZT0T/91/11  ZR0T/1E/0% »paud Ag pled 6/0822 64/ 8666 jlypue A uosie) - £685T
879865 #
00'+9% ZT0T/9T/1T ZI0Z/OT/IT  TI0Z/OT/1T  TIvE/oEfor spaud Ag pled 6/0872 GZHO666 lypue] AHD uosieD - £685T
878865 #
¢T'0E8 Z108/9%/11 ZI0Z/OT/IT  ZTOZ/OT/1T  Troe/ee/or 33U Ag pleg 60822 508666 lypue AJD uosie) - £685T
879965 #
82'THE ZI0R/OT/TT ZI0Z/9T/IT  ZIOZ/SE/1T  TE0Z/9T/0T ¥}2ud Ag pled 6/0877 995/666 lIypue] AjD uosieD - £585T
978865 #
P2 E6E Z102/91/11 ZIOZ/OT/IT  ZI0Z/OF/1T  TT0T/oT/oT yauD Ag pled 640827 T99.666 lypuey Alg uosIE) - £58ST
828865 #
81'09¢ Z10T/9T/11 ZI0Z/9T/TT  210T/9T/1T  210T/ST/0T $eUD Ag pied 6/0822 £8/666 HupuURT A1) UosieD - £585T
QTBL6S #
OT'SbE ZI0zf91/11 Z102/9T/T1  Z10e/ot/11  2roe/sz/oT 3D Ag pred 640827 28666 fupuet &) uosie) - £685T
878865 #
88'97F Z102/91/11 ZI0Z/9T/TT  ZT0Z/9T/1T  €102/5Z/0T 303UD Ag pied 640822 SEH/666 [Iypue] AYD UosieD - £685T
878865 #
95°/£€ z10zZ/91/11 ZIOZ/OT/ET  TTOZfOT/IT  210e/ve/oT ¥ Ag pled 640822 8¥7 /666 [ypue] Ay uosied - £68571
978865 #
0R'1TH zioz/at/in ZIOZ/OT/TT  ZT0Z/OT/IT  Z10T/v2/0T ¥eu) Aq pled 6/08¢C 97T L666 [lgpueT AD uosie) - £6857
978965 #
p£'005 Z102/9T/11 ZI0Z/9T/TT  2TOZ/OT/TIT  TI0T/ve/01 ey Aq pled 6£082¢ 06T/666 jlpue AN uosieD - £595T
asusdiz JUPUET - L6105 UNOXY
LONEILES 3 UNESH - §76 Jusledag
UBS 77 sl d)juaupies - 119 pung
JUNOLWY 2210AUT 23eq u_cmc:_}ma DIBG DoAlIRDTY 212(] l_\w e ang /N SH0ALT U0sEay PleH smels co._un_._‘_ummn_ SNOAUT *ON @DICAUT 1opuap

ZT/OE/1T - TT/T0/1T 2buey =eq /9

jodoy uoIINQLILS]

1/

Agq ojqeled saunodd




91 40 g1 abey

Wd #biS0ET 2T0Z/0E/TT U0 LelgnoT joed Aq uny

347

AJADY Jea A (e8I J0Ugd = 4

0L ETH'DETS 977 SUORDBSURI Y 32(0AU] SIE10, paln

POPER /95 LTT SUGIDRSUEL] SJI0AU] S1€10), WES 7 YIRBY BjAIDupIED - TTS DUng

PSpER 29§ £1T suoloesued | a0 Sj2301 vonenues 1 YYEsk - Sz 6 Wstipedsg

mm.mﬁwﬂ G SUGNIBSURS ] BDI0ALT S0 m@mnmum B0 - QOREEY N0y
BLEBES #

vzees ZT0Z/0E/1T ZIOZ/OE/T  Z1I0Z/0ETT  2T02/1E/0T 38y Aq pied ITIAD 9650 I salfojouyssl oJ( - ZHSE
£48865 # NOSIOHIIN

S8 ZI0e/ot/11 TIOZ/9T/IT  2TOZ/OT/TT  2102/£2/01 YI3YD Ag pled ITHAD ZT-01 welfold WRWa0.d 0D 0d - /6671
£/8865 # NYHLNOT

LT6T Z10Z/9T/11 ZIOR/OT/TT  TIOT/RT/IT  ZI0T/zz/oT ¥o8Y2 Aq pled INIAD 2101 weBold JuslaInI0ld 0D 0Q - /6621
£L886S # I9AI4HI0T

£T°Ch TT02/91/11 ZI0Z/OT/IT  ZIOZ/9T/TT  Ti0T/izfon 3D Aq pled ITIAD Z1-01 LWelbold JUBIRINDCK] 03 0Q - L6671
09£86S #

FSETh T0T/Z0/1T TT0Z/Z0/TT  TIO0Z/Z0/TT  ZTOZiZT/OT #33U3 Aq pred ITIAD 0v6S ur Buljuid puowe| - S9p4z

sayddng s3I0 - 008° 55 WNoDY

coress § SUDIIIBSUEL | BI0AU] SIRI0E SULIOMUY) - BZR'FEG JUNCIDY
BIFB6S #

658 Z10T/0E/ 1T TIOZ/OE/TT  ZT0Z/OS/TT  210Z/62/60 #BUYD Aq pleg ISUNAWIRY  SLNVd ZE-6 Apor el - 61897
S8.865 #

98'E ZI0Z/9T/TT ZIOZ/OT/TT  TI0Z/OT/TT  Z10Z/0%/0T #23UD Ag pled 0EEO00  SGEES/NAYT U O35y - 6874
SRL86G #

98¢ ZT0Z/91/11 ZI0Z/9T/IT  ZT0Z/9T/T1  ZI07/5Z/01 #I3uD Aq prad DEEOO0  ZT9TSINIMT JUY 00S]y - SBLS
S8/865 #

9g'e TTOT/9E/TT TEOZOT/IT  ZT0Z/9T/TT  ZT0Z/60/01 YD Ag pied QEEODD  THOSK/NTYT DU 038]Y - GBLS
SBLRES #

o8t Z102/91/%T Z10T/9T/11  TEOZ/OT/T  T10T/Z0/01 ¥3UD Aq pred 0EE000  §919p/NF SUT 08y - S8/5

SULIOJUN -~ BZO'EES 1UNODY
uolEIIUES B IRSH - 576 uauniedag
HEQ 3 YIESH DfjIsuples - TED punyg
JUNOWY BJI0AUT  B18( JUSIIARY 2]B(] DoAY 21eq 1/9 e 8Ng )G 9N0AIT  uoseay PjeH SMIPIS uondussag a0I1cAUT ‘ON 9210AUT 20PpUBA

CT/OE/TT - 21/10/17 obuey a3eq 1/

jgeiAed siunood







Gardnerville Town Board m

Gardnerville
AGENDA ACTION SHEET = g Nevada

1. For Possible Action: Discussion on Planned Development Application (PD) 12-
001, for Greg Urrutia, New Beginnings Housing, LLC, a Planned Development
on a 8.26 acre parcel to include a 30 unit affordable senior housing complex with
associated amenities and parking on a 2.02 acre parcel, a detention pond on a
1.21 acre parcel and a future phases on a 5.02 acre parcel. The subject property
is located at 1331 Stodick Parkway in the MFR/PD (Multi-Family, 9,000 square
foot lot size with Planned Development Overlay zoning district within the Town
of Gardnerville and Minden/Gardnerville Community Plan (APN: 1220-03-202-
001), with public comment prior to Board action.

2. Recommended Motion:
Funds Available: L Yes ¥ N/A
3. Department: Administration
Prepared by: Tom Dallaire
4. Meeting Date: December 4, 2012 Time Requested: 20 minutes
5. Agenda: ! Consent ¥ Administrative
Background Information: See attached report
6. Other Agency Review of Action: ™ Douglas County I N/A

7. Board Action:

) LApproved EApproved with Modifications
' Denied L Continued

L. - T —
Agenda Item # 5



m Paul Lindsay, Chairman

of o Ken Miller, Vice Chairman
G rdneer]le Mike Philips, Board Member

Est. i879 T ; Linda Slater, Board Member
Nevada Lloyd Higuera, Board Member
MEMORANDUM
Date: November 30, 2012
To: Gardnerville Town Board
From: Tom Dallaire, P.E., Town of Gardnerville
Subject: PD 12-001 (Planned Development); Parkway Vista Apartments, Located south of
Stodick Parkway and east of Highway 395 adjacent to Crestmore Dr; APN: 1220-
03-202-001.

I. TITLE:

1. Discussion on Planned Development Application (PD) 12-001, for Greg Urrutia, New
Beginnings Housing, LLC, a Planned Development on a 8.26 acre parcel to include a 30
unit affordable senior housing complex with associated amenities and parking on a 2.02
acre parcel, a detention pond on a 1.21 acre parcel and a future phases on a 5.02 acre
parcel. The subject property is located at 1331 Stodick Parkway in the MFR/PD (Multi-
Family, 9,000 square foot lot size with Planned Development Overlay zoning district
within the Town of Gardnerville and Minden/Gardnerville Community Plan (APN: 1220-
03-202-001), with public comment prior to Board action.

II. RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends to the Gardnerville Town Board CONDITIONAL APPROVAL of the
Planned Development Application (PD) 12-001, Parkway Vista Apartments, based on the
findings, conditions, and conclusions in the staff report and the project is subject to the
following concerns followed by the recommended conditions:

III. CONDITIONS:

The following should be considered for recommendation to the County, the Conditions of
Approval prior to the Final Map Submittal. These conditions contain the previously applicable
conditions and those specified after the First Review of the Planned Development Application:

1. If storm drain connecting to Parcel 3B is to be publicly maintained then it shall first have
a manhole to the stub and have the drop inlet connected by a lateral to the manhole rather
than using the drop inlet as the through connection.

2. The sidewalk should be connected to the existing sidewalk adjacent to Stodick Parkway.
The proposed pathway around the pond as shown in Detail A on Sheet C3 shows DG
material. Provide 5 foot wide concrete trail with 2 foot DG shoulder as previously
approved with The Stone Creek PD.

D =



m PD 12-001 Parkway Vista Apartments

G:ﬂ,fanef_Vine December 4, 2012 Town Board Meeting
-

3.

Nevada Page 2 of 12

Decorative streetlights shall be installed at the turning point on Crestmore Drive. Town
streets require “acorn” style lights on black steel fluted poles (NV Energy standard).
Lights shall be installed at turning points, cul-de-sacs, and intersections only. Design
shall be coordinated with the Town at the project design review stage.

The applicant shall provide a minimum of two (2) - 2 yard dumpsters to serve the site.
Multi-family units shall be served by 2-cubic yard dumpsters, dumpster location, access,
and size shall be coordinated with the Town at the project design review stage.
Developer shall provide a wrought iron fence along south property line of pond to match
wrought iron fence of Heritage bank.

No plan for the detention pond and its amenities was provided. Please provide this plan
including the improvement designs with the SIP submittal. See Stone Creek plans for
previously approved design.

Storm drain facilities which are proposed to be maintained privately, including but not
limited to storm water treatment devices, piping, catch basins, and retention/detention
ponds that will convey runoff into Town maintained storm drain systems shall have a
maintenance and operations plan reviewed and approved by the town. Applicant is
required to submit such plan before improvement plans will be approved. Adequate
funding for perpetual maintenance of such facilities must be demonstrated.

The following Standard Town Conditions of Approval shall apply:

a. All administrative, engineering, or legal fees incurred by the Town in connection
with reviewing the project shall be reimbursed and paid to the Town.
Improvement plans shall be reviewed and approved by the Town’s engineer.

c. Estimate of value for all offsite improvements dedicated to the Town is required
before final acceptance of those improvements.

d. Trash enclosures shall be constructed to Town standards and access for service
vehicles shall be approved by Town staff.

e. All drainage and agriculture irrigation facilities shall be piped and placed in the
public right-of-way.

f. Construction runoff and dewatering practices shall be in accordance with the
appropriate permits obtained from the Nevada Division of Environmental
Protection. Discharge into existing Town storm drain systems will only be
allowed upon written approval from the Town, and will be subject to discharge
quality and storm drain cleaning requirements as set forth by the Town.

g. Maintenance plans and level of service for landscape areas proposed for care by a
homeowner’s association are required to be submitted for review and approval by
the Town Board, who will either recommend approval or denial to the Board of
County Commissioners of the maintenance plan.

h. Any damage to the Town’s existing infrastructure, including, but not limited to,
streets, curb and gutter, sidewalks, or drainage systems caused by the
development of the project shall be repaired or replaced by the developer.

1. One paper copy of the record drawings and an electronic file in AutoCAD format
2012 (or less) is required before final acceptance of improvements.

IV. DISCUSSION

The following are staff’s concerns with the proposed project along with the variances from
County Code which have been requested by the applicant. The following items can be part of the
Town Board discussion of the item and may be transferred to the recommended conditions of
approval by the Town Board.

5-2



m PD 12-001 Parkway Vista Apartments

of P D ber 4, 2012 T Board Meeting
Gardnerville e T page 3of 13
"4 Nevada 2

1. Roads/Trails

a. The development shall comply with the most current requirements of ADAAG
and PROWAG as best management practice.

b. Interlocking pavers shall be mortared in place or if stamped concrete is used it
shall be colored.

c. Decorative streetlights shall be installed at turning points on Crestmore Drive.

d. Itis unclear why there are red warning signs shown on the west end of the parking
lot adjacent to the garden plot area.

e. The trail along the pond currently includes a section adjacent to the existing
sidewalk along Stodick Parkway which appears to be separated by 1 foot of
ground. The sidewalk should be connected to the existing sidewalk. The proposed
pathway around the pond as shown in Detail A on Sheet C3 shows DG material.
Provide 5 foot wide concrete trail with 2 foot DG shoulder as previously approved
with Stone Creek.

2. Trash Enclosure

a. The site proposes 30 residential units. Crestmore Village has 13 dumpsters
serving the 80 units. The applicant shall provide a minimum of two (2) - 2 yard
dumpsters to serve the site. More may be required if less pick-ups are desired by
the applicant. '

3. Amenities

a. The provided Justification Letter states that 3 BBQ and picnic table sets, a
horseshoe pit, an artificial putting green, and 8 raised garden plots are being
provided. These are annotated on the site plan provided with the architectural
plans but are not shown on the engineering plans. Access to these amenities shall
conform to ADAAG and PROWAG Outdoor Guidelines.

4. Drainage/Pond

a. Grades shown on the plan do not match the direction of flow shown.

b. TIs the storm drain to Parcel 3B to be privately maintained? If storm drain
connecting to Parcel 3B is to be publicly maintained then it shall first have a
manhole to the stub and have the drop inlet connected by a lateral to the manhole
rather than using the drop inlet as the through connection.

c. Developer shall provide a wrought iron fence along south property line of pond to
match wrought iron fence of Heritage bank.

d. The provided plans show an emergency overflow spillway going to low spot on
Stodick Parkway. Consider the flow path after the detention ponds are full. Does
this provide the 1 foot of freeboard required by DC-DCIS?

e. No plan for the detention pond and its amenities was provided. Please provide this
plan including the improvement designs.

5. Mail

a. The architectural plans provide a mail area within the building. It appears there is
sufficient area for enough mail boxes to serve the building. It is unclear why there
is also a mail box cluster proposed in front of the building.

6. Variances

a. Eliminating RV Parking

b. Reduction in off-street parking from 68 to 57 (16% reduction)

c¢. Reduction in storage units from 30 to 23 (23% reduction)

5 -4



/\"’\ PD 12-001 Parkway Vista Apartments

of . December 4, 2012 Town Board Meetin
Gardnerville ‘" " bage dof 12
"4~ Nevada £

Board meeting Topics of Discussion / Notes:
= See Discussion Items.

NOTE'’s from Board Meeting:



m PD 12-001 Parkway Vista Apartments

o = December 4, 2012 Town Board Meeting
G?:Fdne§~¥£-ldlg Page 5 of 12

V. ZONING AND MASTER PLAN EVALUATION

Master Plan and Zoning Consistency: The site is designated in the master plan as Receiving
Area (2-12 dwelling units per acre) and is zoned as MFR-PD (Multi-family residential with a
Planned Development Overlay) (16 dwelling units per acre). The proposal is to provide 30
dwelling units on the 3.23 acres which are proposed to be developed at this time (9.29 dwelling
units per acre). These 30 units will be affordable senior housing with varying levels of
affordability. Seven units (7) will be provided at 35% of Area Medium Income (AMI), eighteen
units (18) at 40% AMI, and five units (5) at 45% AMIL.

The development is consistent with the Master Plan and Zoning requirements.

Open Space: Per Douglas County Code 20.664.120 a minimum of 25% of a project site must be
usable open space for passive and active recreational uses. The proposed development consists of

3.23 acres with 0.40 acres of landscaped common open space and 0.72 acres of landscaped
detention pond.

The development meets the requirement of 25% open space. The property owner will maintain
the common areas while the detention pond will be dedicated to and maintained by the Town.

Neighborhood Compatibility: The proposed development is compatible with the adjacent
neighborhoods. It is similar to and improves upon the adjacent residential neighborhoods of
Arbor Gardens and Crestmore Village Apartments and provides a transitional density between
Arbor Gardens and the Neighborhood Commercial Zoning to the west.

Phasing: The proposed development will be constructed in two phases. The first phase will of
include Parcels 3A and 3C and will consist the extension of Crestmore Drive, the construction of
the affordable senior housing, and the completion and dedication of the landscaped detention

pond. The second phase will be Parcel 3B. There are currently no future development plans for
Parcel 3B.

Roads/Traffic: The previously approved Stone Creek subdivision had proposed to generate 578
Average Daily Trips (ADT). Based on the proposed use this senior housing development will
generate 104 ADT. While this number does not include any traffic from Parcel 3B it does allow
for 474 trips to be generated by future development.

Drainage/Flood Plain: The portions of the site proposed for residential development are located
within the X-Shaded (areas determined to be within the 500-year flood) and AO-2 (areas flooded
in the 100-year flood to a depth of 2 feet) per the Revised FEMA Panel 32005C0265F dated
October 22, 2012. Per the County’s Flood Hazard Ordinance the new structure is to be located
one foot above the pre-developed highest adjacent grade. Run-off from the project will be
conveyed as sheet flow to storm drains that connect to the existing interconnected detention
ponds on either side of Stodick Parkway.

Maintenance of Facilities: Parcel 3A including the building, all common areas, parking
facilities, landscaping, and onsite drainage facilities will be retained in a single ownership and
will be maintained by the owner. Parcel 3C including the landscaping, park amenities, and
drainage facilities will be owned and maintained by the Town.

S-le



m PD 12-001 Parkway Vista Apartments

of e December 4. 2012 Town Board Meeting
Gardnerville Page 6 of 12
7% Nevada RRomt

Variances from Standard Ordinance: Per Douglas County Code 20.644.150 a minimum of
one RV parking spots is required for every eight dwelling units which would require 4 RV
parking spots for the 30 units proposed. Due to the proposed use as affordable senior housing the
applicant is requesting a variance to the RV parking standards.

The applicant is requesting a variance from the required off-street parking and loading spaces
from 68 to 57 (approximately a 16% reduction). According to the Institute of Traffic Engineers
Parking Generation Manual, the average parking supply ratio for Senior Adult Housing is one
space per dwelling unit. The average peak hour parking generation for a Senior Adult Housing
(Attached) community is 0.59 vehicles per dwelling unit, well below the average space per
dwelling unit. Based on this, the proposed parking supply of 57 parking spaces exceeds the
average of 30 by 27 spaces. The reduction of potentially unnecessary parking spaces will help to
reduce the cost associated with the development of this affordable housing project while
allowing for the necessary facilities for the project’s intended use.

The applicant is requesting a variance from the required storage unit spaces from 30 to 23 spaces
(approximately a 23% reduction). The units are designed to have storage space within the units
themselves. Locating storage areas within the units will allow easier access to the stored
belonging by the senior occupant.

VL. MULTI-FAMILY HOUSING FINDINGS

Pursuant to County Code, Section 20.664.120, the following findings must be made for approval
of Multi-family housing:

L. All multi-family developments with 12 or more dwelling units must provide 25 percent of the
project site as useable open space for passive and active recreational uses. Useable open
space areas must not include rights-of-way, vehicle parking areas, areas adjacent to or

between any structures less than 15 feet apart, setbacks, patios or private yards, or slope
areas greater than 8 percent.

Staff response: The proposed development consists of 3.23 acres with 0.40 acres of
landscaped common open space and 0.72 acres of landscaped detention pond. The
development meets the requirement of 25% open space. The property owner will maintain
the common areas while the detention pond will be dedicated to and maintained by the Town.

2. Each dwelling unit must have a private, walled patio or balcony in accordance with the
following:

i. Ground floor units must have a patio or balcony not less than 150 square feet in area or 25
percent of the dwelling unit size, whichever is less.

Staff response: The proposed patios conform to Douglas County’s design standards.
ii. All other units must have a patio or balcony not less than 75 square feet in area..

Staff response: The proposed patios conform to Douglas County’s design standards.

57



/lm"\\/\ PD 12-001 Parkway Vista Apartments

of . December 4, 2012 T Board Meetin
Gardneyville e Lo
"4~ Nevada g

3. All multi-family developments must provide recreational amenities within the site which may
include a swimming pool, spa, club house, tot lot with play equipment, picnic shelter or barbecue
area, court game facilities such as tennis, basketball, or racquetball, improved softball or
baseball fields, or, day care facilities. The type and number of amenities must be approved by the
director and provided according to the following schedule:

Units [Number of Amenities
0-11 0
12-50 |
51-100 2
101-200 3
201-300 4

One amenity must be added for each 100 additional units or fraction thereof.

Staff response: The development includes 3 BBQ and picnic table sets, a horseshoe pit, an
artificial putting green, and 8 raised garden plots which exceed the required 1 amenity.

4. Off-street parking spaces for multi-family residential developments must be located within 150
Jfeet from the dwelling unit (front or rear door) for which the parking space is provided.

Staff response: The proposed off-street parking spaces are located within 150 feet of the
planned door locations.

5. Each dwelling unit must be provided a minimum of 150 cubic feet of private enclosed storage
space within the garage, carport, or immediately adjacent to the dwelling unit.

Staff response: The proposed building provides 23 storage spaces within the building for the
residences use. Douglas County Code requires onsile slorage space for each unit and
therefore this design will require a variance. See justification above regarding the variance
requests.

6. Driveway approaches within multiple family developments of 12 or more units must be
delineated with interlocking pavers, rough-textured concrete, or stamped concrete and
landscaped medians.

Staff response: The proposed driveway approaches shall be delineated with stamped
concrete as specified on the site and utility plans provided.

7. All parts of all structures must be within 150 feet of paved access for single story and 50 feet
Sfor multi-story.

Staff response: The proposed paved access locations conform to Douglas County’s design

standards.
5-%



m PD 12-001 Parkway Vista Apartments

Gafﬂner_ .]]e December 4, 2012 Town Bo:;di\lflgez;h]l’g}
"4 Nevada E -

8. Common laundry facilities of sufficient number and accessibility consistent with the number
of living units and the current County building code must be provided.

Staff response: A common laundry facility with three (3) sets of washers and dryers is provided
as a part of the proposed floor plan.

9. Where common laundry facilities are not provided, each dwelling unit must be designed for a
washing machine and dryer.

Staff response: A common laundry facility with three (3) sets of washers and dryers is provided
as a part of the proposed floor plan.

VII. PLANNED DEVELOPMENT FINDINGS

Pursuant to County Code, Section 20.676.040, the following findings must be made for approval
of a Planned Development:

1. The plan is consistent with the statement of objectives of a planned development contained in
the master plan and in this chapter.

Staff response: This development is consistent with the stated objectives of a planned
development contained in the master plan and this chapter.

2. The extent that the plan departs from zoning and subdivision regulations otherwise

applicable to the property, including but not limited to density, bulk and use, are deemed to
be in the public interest.

Staff response: The plan is consistent with the master plan and adjacent development
patterns. The request does not seek to depart from typical zoning or subdivision regulations
applicable to areas designated as Receiving Areas. The density averages are within the 2 to
12 units per acre identified in the 2011 Douglas County Master Plan.

3. The ratio of residential to non-residential use in the planned development is consistent with
the master plan.

Staff response: This development is consistent with the master plan.

4. The purpose, location and amount of the common open space in the planned development, the
reliability of the proposals for maintenance and conservation of the common open spaces are
adequate as related to the proposed density and type of residential development.

Staff response: The purpose, location, and amount of the common open space within the
planned development are adequate as related to the proposed density and type of residential
development. The proposed onsite common areas shall be maintained by the property owner
while the portions dedicated with the pond are to be maintained by the Town.

5. The physical design of the plan and the manner in which the design of the planned
development makes provisions for adequate public facilities, as required by this code.

5-9



/m PD 12-001 Parkway Vista Apartments

Gaf(rinerville December 4., 2012 Town Board Meeting

10.

L

Nevada Page 9 of 12

Staff response: The planned development meets all public facilities requirements, including
adequate water, sewer, roads, drainage, and utilities.

. The proposed development is compatible with and preserves the character and integrity of

adjacent development and neighborhoods.

Staff response: The planned development is compatible with the existing residential
character of the neighborhood. The proposed senior residential community is compatible with
the existing Arbor Gardens subdivision to the east and Crestmore Village Apartments to the
north.

Any development-related adverse impacts, such as traffic, noise, odors, visual nuisances, or
other similar adverse effects to adjacent development and neighborhoods, are mitigated by
improvements or modifications either on-site or within the public right-of-way.

Staff response: The proposed senior housing will likely have less development related
impacts than would otherwise be permitted on this site, particularly those related to traffic and
noise. Senior housing trip generation is substantially less than other types of permitted
residential development.

Where a development plan proposes development over a period of years, the sufficiency of the
terms and conditions intended to protect the interests of the public, residents and owners of
the planned development and the integrity of the plan and, where the plan provides for
phases, the period in which the application for each phase must be filed.

Staff response: The development plan proposes the development be done in two phases with
the first to be completed immediately. The second phase does not currently have any plan for
development. The plan as it stands will not harm the interests of the public, residents, or
owners of the planned development.

. That each individual unit or phase of the development, if built in stages, as well as the total

development, can exist independently and be capable of creating a good environment in the
locality and be as desirable and stable in any phase as in the total development.

Staff response: The project will be divided into two phases. Each phase can and will be
independent of the other and will be as desirable and stable as any phase in the total
development.

The uses proposed will not be a detriment to the present and proposed surrounding land uses,
but will enhance the desirability of the area and have a beneficial effect.

Staff response: The proposed development will not be a detriment but will improve the area
and the surrounding land uses as well as provide the affordable senior housing that is so
needed in the area.

Any deviation from the standard ordinance requirements is warranted by the design and
additional amenities incorporated in the development plan which offers certain unusual
redeeming features to compensate for any deviations that may be permitted.

5-10



m PD 12-001 Parkway Vista Apartments

of . D ber 4, 2012 Town Board Meetin
Ga,rdnerwlle ecember ow S Orul%
"4 Nevada £

12,

13.

14.

15,

16.

17,

Staff response: The applicant is requesting three deviations from the standard ordinance
requirements for RV parking standards, the standard MFR parking requirements, and the
required enclosed storage space. See the above Variance section for justifications. The
additional amenities and value of new affordable senior housing compensate for these
deviations that may be permitted.

The planned development will not result in material prejudice or diminution in value of
surrounding properties, and will not endanger the health, safety and welfare of the
community.

Staff response: The development will not result in material prejudice or diminution in value
of the surrounding properties. Provided the development meets the requirements of ADAAG
and PROWAG the proposed development will not endanger the health, safety, and welfare of
the community.

The subdivision of land proposed in the planned development meets the requirements of the
Nevada Revised Statutes and this code.

Staff response: The proposed subdivision meets the requirements of NRS and Douglas
County Development Code Planned Development standards.

The subdivision of land proposed in the planned development conforms to the density
requirements, lot dimension standards and other regulations applicable to planned
developments.

Staff response: The proposed subdivision of land conforms to the requirement applicable to
planned developments.

The subdivision of land proposed in the planned development conforms to the improvement
and design standards contained in the development code and adopted design criteria and
improvement standards.

Staff response: Provided that all conditions of approval are met the proposed improvements
conform to Douglas County’s design standards.

Where applicable, adequate transfer development rights have been established consistent with
the number of proposed units within the planned development.

Staff response: The project is within a receiving area but it does not require the utilization of
Transferable Development Rights (TDR) since the proposed affordable housing development
qualifies under the TDR waiver provisions under Douglas County Code 20.612.040 B. Seven
units (7) will be provided at 35% of Area Medium Income (AMI), eighteen units (18) at 40%
AMLI, and five units (5) at 45% AMIL

The planned development has a beneficial relationship to the neighborhood in which it is
proposed to be established.

S«



m PD 12-001 Parkway Vista Apartments

of .]] D ber 4, 2012 Town Board Meeti
Gardner e ccemoer own l:(’]:l'e | lesfl]il%
"4 Nevada g

Staff response: The planned development will be beneficial since it addresses the need for
affordable senior housing and the improved detention pond will add another park to the area.

VIII. CONCLUSIONS

The proposed Planned Development with the proposed Conditions of Approval complies with
the findings required by County Code, Chapter 20.676 Planned Development (PD) Overlay
District and Chapter 20.664.120 Multi-family housing (multi-family residential zoning district).

Based on the finding and conclusions in this staff report, staff recommends the Gardnerville
Town Board approve the Planned Development with the conditions previously stated in this
report and any other conditions discussed during the item at the Town Board meeting. These

conditions will be shared with County staff for the Planning Commission and Board of County
Commissioners consideration.

S=-)a



m PD 12-001 Parkway Vista Apartments

Nevada Page 12 of 12

G‘a&;’aner‘vme December 4, 2012 Town Board Meeting
-

IX. ALTERNATIVES/OPTIONS

The Gardnerville Town Board options for reviewing this Planned Development are as follows:

I

Recommend approval of the project to Douglas County, subject to the conditions found
within the staff report:

Advantages: The Town Board would be recommending conditional approval of a project,
which would meet the findings for a Planned Development and Town Goals.

Disadvantages: None identified at this time.

2. Recommend denial of the proposed project to Douglas County:

Advantages: None identified at this time.

Disadvantages: This would prevent the developer from moving forward with the project
which may jeopardize their ability to receive the grant funding that will enable them to
construct the affordable senior housing which Gardnerville needs. The parcel will remain
vacant.

3. Continue this request with the applicant's consent to address other items that may arise

as a result of the public hearing that need to be addressed prior to granting approval or
denial:

Advantages: If other issues are brought up at the meeting that were not addressed by staff or
the applicant and the Town Board Members would like further review of the project, with the
concurrence of the applicant, the Town Board should continue the item to a time certain in
order for the issue to be explored and possibly resolved. This will result in a more informed
decision.

Disadvantages: This would prevent the developer from moving forward with the project
which may jeopardize their ability to receive the grant funding that will enable them to
construct the affordable senior housing that Gardnerville needs.

Attachments:

1) Applicant’s Statement of Justification
2) Project Maps

S~h3



November 86, 2012

EHNE
Citsiigy j
Douglas County Community Devslopment w
Post Office Box 218
Minden, Nevada 89423

Statement of Justification/Project Description for Parkway Vista Apariments
To Whom it May Concern:

On behalf of the applicant, New Beginnings Housing, LLC, please consider this letter
our statement of justification and project description for a Planned Development for
Parkway Vista Apartments (previously Crestmore Village Townhomes).

The applicant is requesting to 8.26-acre Planned Development. The project site is
located at 1331 Stodick Parkway, west of Crestimore Drive within the Minden-
Gardnetville Community Plan Area and the Town of Gardnerville (A.P.N. 1220-03-202-
001).

The Ozakwood Specific Plan and Planned Development was approved by the Douglas
County Board of Commissioners on November 5, 1998, establishing a Multi-Family
Residential Planned Development Overlay which allowed the development of 142 single
family units (Arbor Gardens Subdivision), 80 multi-family units (Crestmore Village
Apartments) and 72 single-family attached units (Crestmore Village Townhomes) which
has since expired. On Ociober 2, 2003, the Board of Commissioners approved a
madification to the Planned Development allowing the creation of individual parcels for
each of the 72 single-family attached (townhouse) units. This approval allowed for the
creation of town-home units for sale rather than for rental purposes; however, these
units were not constructed. On January 4, 2007, the Douglas County Board of
Commissioners approved with conditions Planned Development (PD) 06-006 (a
modification to PD 98-07), for Stone Creek, LLC, establishing an MFR (Multi-Family
Residential, 9,000 square-foot minimum parcel size) Planned Development Overlay and
maodification to the Oakwood Companies Specific Plan. A variance request to reduce
the required RV parking spaces from five to zero was also approved at this time. The
adoption of Ordinance 2007-1196 was adopted at the February 1, 2007 Board of
Commissioners meeting which changed the existing zoning districi for the parcel to
MFR. Since this time, the subdivision map has expired and a change of ownership has
taken place.

This Planned Development seeks approval of a 30 unit affordable senior rental
apartment development on a single parcel (Parcel 3A of the Proposed Tentative Parcel




Douglas County Community Developmeni
Parkway Vista Apartments

November 8, 2012

Page 2 of 13

Map previously submitted). The parcei containing the regional detention pond (3C of
ihe Proposed Tentative Parcel Map) will be transferred to the Town of Gardnerville for
ownership and maintenance. Alihough the remaining parce! (3B of the Proposed
Tentative Parcel Map) will be retainad by the Owner, future development plans for this
parcel are unknown at this time. Fuiure develooment of this parcel would require filing of
another Planned Development application. The applicant proposes setbacks consistent
with the current Planned Development and MFR zoning approval, which requires a 10-
foot front yard setback, 10-foot rear yard setback, 10-foot side vard setback and a 10-
foot sireet-side yard setback.

KEY ISSUES:

Master Plan & Zoning Consistency: The site is designated in the master plan as
Receiving Area (2 - 12 Dwelling Units per Acre). The site has a zoning classification of
MFR-PD (Multi-Family Residential with a Planned Development Overlay) (16 Dwelling
Units per Acre). The applicant proposes an alternate housing option at varying levels of
affordability. The applicant is to provide 30 affordable units. Seven units {7) will be
provided at 35% of Area Medium Income (AMI), eighteen units (18) at 40% of the AMI
and five units (5) at 45% of the AMI.

The development is consistent with the 2011 Douglas County Master Plan, which
designates Receiving Area for higher density development. The 2011 Douglas County
Master Plan indicates the density for Receiving Area should range between 2 fo 12
units per acre. The planned development is proposed at an overall density of 3.63
dwelling units per acre.

Qpen Space: Douglas County Code Section 20.6684.120 requires that a minimum of
25% of the project area be dedicated as useable open space for passive and active
recreational uses. The proposed development occurs on a site area of 3.23 acres,
inclusive of the detention pond. The proposal includes fully landscaped common open
space totaling 0.40 acres and a 0.72 acre landscaped detention pond parcel.
Therefore, the proposed open space equals 35% (1.12 total acres) which exceeds the
25% requirement of Douglas County Code. The property owner will maintain the
common areas while the pond will be dedicated fo, and maintained by, the Town of
Gardnerville.

Neighborhood Compatibility: The planned development is compatible with the existing

residential character of the neighborhood. The multi-family puilding is compatible with
the Crestmore Village Apartments o the north. Directly to the south of the site is the
Gardnerville Industrial Park, which contains a mix of office and light industrial uses.




pouglas County Cormmunity Devslopment
Parkway Vista Apartmenis

November 8, 2012

Fage 30f 13

Located to the west of the site is neighborhood commercial zoning coniaining Heritage
Bank of Nevada and a vacant parcel. The project site will provide a fransitional density
between Arbor Gardens Subdivision and industrial areas adjacent io the site.

Phasing: The development will be constructed in two phases. The first phase shall
consist of the construction of the Crestmore Drive sireet addition and any utility
modifications or additions in this area, the proposed 30 unit bulilding, cornmon area and
parking spaces and the detention pond. The second phase shall consist of the
development of the remaining parcel at a later unknown date.

Roads/Traffic; Using Senior Adult Housing-Attached (Land Use:252) from the Institute
of Traffic Engineers Trip General Manual- 7 Edition, the proposed 30 unit Senior
Housing development would general 104 ADT. Compared to the previously approved
development proposal for this same site in 2007 for the 72 unit Stone Creek subdivision
which was expected to generate 578 average daily trips (ADT), the projected traffic is
well below the estimated number of irips contemplated in the original development
proposal. Furthermore, if we assume the balance of the property is developed at is
remaining capacity of 42 units of single family detached housing (bringing the total
development on the site to 72 units), the total trip generation for the all 72 units would
still only be 505 ADT, well below the original traffic study projection of the Stone Creek
development of 578 ADT.

Drainage/Flood Plain: The portions of the site proposed for residential development is
iocated within the “X-Shaded” Flood (areas determined to be within the 500-year flood)
and AO-2' per Revised FEMA Panel 32005C0265F dated October 22, 2012. This
requires the new struciure to be elevated one foot above the pre-developed highest
adjacent grade per the County’s Flood Hazard Ordinance. Run-off from the proposed
development will be conveyed in storm drains to two existing inter-connected detention
ponds located on either side of Stodick Parkway.

Maintenance of Facilities: The entire site, including all common areas, the building,
parking facilities, landscaping and on-site surface drainage facilities will be retained in a
single ownership. Only off-site roadway and drainage facilities (and subsurface drainage
iacilities) will be owned and mainiained by the Town of Gardnervilie.

Variances from Standard Ordinance: Pursuant to Douglas Couniy Code Section

20.644.15(A), a minimum of one RV parking space for each eight dwelling units is
required. Therefore, the proposed development is required fo provide four RV parking
spaces. Due to the nature of the proposed use as senior affordable housing, the
applicant is requesting a variance to the RV parking standards. There is a private RV




Douglas County Community Development
Parkway Vista Aparimenis

November 6, 2012

Page 4 of 13

storage facility within close proximity to the proposed project located on industrial Dirive,
which could provide siorage to RV's if needed.

Additionally, the applicant is requesting a variance from the required off-strest parking
and loading spaces from 68 {o 57 spaces {approximately 16% reduction). it has been
found nationally that {radiiional parking requiremenis are suited more for nigher income
and/or younger family type developmenis. Due to a tendency for lower vehicle
ownership by seniors in a lower income range, between .5 and 2 parking spaces per
unit (including guest parking) has been shown o be sufficient for the proposed
development. According to the Institute of Traffic Engineers Parking Generation Manual,
the average parking supply ratio for Senior Adult Housing is Cne Space per Dwelling
Unit. The average peak hour parking generation for a Senior Adult Housing (Attached)
community is 0.59 vehicles per dwelling unit, well below the average supply of one
space per dwelling unit. Based on this, the proposed parking supply of 57 parking
spaces still exceeds the average by 27 spaces, and is in well excess of the peak hour
parking generation. The reduction of potentially unnecessary parking spaces will help io
reduce the costs associated with the development of this affordable housing project in a
logical manner while allowing for the necessary facilities for the projects infended use.
This approach is consistent with the goals set in the 2011 Douglas County Master Plan.

Finally, the applicant is requesting a variance from the required storage unit spaces
from 30 to 23 spaces (approximately 23% reduction). The units are designed to have
storage spaces within the unit themselves. Locating storage areas within the units will
allow easier access fo the stored belongings by the senior occupant due to a greater
chance of mobility problems which is common among the elderly.

The following is our analysis of the required findings for Multi-family housing (multi-
family residential zoning district) per Douglas County Code Section 20.664.120:

Muiliifamily Housing Specific Standards:

1. All mulii-family developments with 12 or more dwelling units must provide 25
percent of the project site as useable open space for passive and active
recreational tises. Useable open space areas must not include rights-of-wa V,
vehicle parking areas, areas adjacent fo or between any structures less than
15 feet apart, setbacks, patios or private yards, or slope areas greater than 8
percent,

Comment: The proposed development occurs on a site area of 3.23 acres,
inclusive of the detention pond. The proposal inciudes fully landscaped

517




Douglas County Community Developmeni
Parkway Vista Apartments

November 8, 2012

Page 5 of 13

common open space totaling 0.40 acres and a 0.72 acre landscaped
detention pond parcel. Therefore, the proposad open space equals 35%
(1.12 total acres) which exceeds the 25% requirerment of Douglas County
Code. The property owner will maintain the common areas while the pond will
be dedicated to, and maintained by, the Town of Gardnerville.

Each dwelling unit must have a private, wallad patic or balcony in accordance
with the following:
. Ground floor units must have a patio or balcony not less than
150 square feet in area or 25 percent of the dwelling unit size
whichever is less.

1

Comment: The proposed ground floor unit's patios conform to
Douglas County's design standards.

ii.  All other units must have a patio or balcony not less than 75
sguare feet in area.

Gomment: The proposed remainder unit's patios conform to
Douglas County's design standards.

All mufii-family developments must provide recreational amenities within ihe
site which may include a swimming pool, spa, club house, fof lot with play
equipment, picnic shelfer or barbecus area, court gaine facilities such as
tennis, basketball, or racquetball, improved softball or basebalf fields, or, day
care facilities. The type and number of amenities must be approved by the
director and provided according fo the following schedule:

Units [Number of Amenities

0-11 0
12-50 1
51-100 2

S-¢




Douglas County Comrunity Development
Parkway Vista Aparimenis

November 8, 2012

Page 8 of 13

4,

101-200 3

201-300 4

One amenity must be added for each 100 additional units or fraction tharecf

Comment: The developments includes three (3) BBQ and picnic table sats,
a horseshoe pit, an artificial putiing green and sight (8) raised garden plots
which exceeds the required (1) amenity.

Off-sireet parking spaces for mulii-family residential developments must be
located within 150 feet from the dwelling unit (front or rear door) for which the
parking space is provided.

Gomment: The proposed off-straet parking spaces are located within 150
feet of the planned door locations.

Each dwelling unit must be provided a minimum of 150 cubic feet of brivate
enclosed storage space within the garage, carport, or immediately adjacent to
the dwelling unit.

Commeni: The proposed building design provides 23 storage spaces within
the building for the residences use. Douglas County Code requires one
storage space for each unit and therefore this design will require a variance,

Driveway approaches within multiple family developments of 12 or more units
must be delfineated with interlocking pavers, rough-fextured concrete, or
stamped concrete and landscaped medians.

Comment: The proposed driveway approaches shall be delineated with
stamped concrete as specified on the site & utility plan provided with this
submittal.

All parts of all structures must be within 150 feet of paved access for single
story and 50 feet for multi-story.

S-19




Louglas County Cornmunity Development
Parkway Vista Aparimenis

November 8, 2012

Page 7 of 13

Comment: The proposed paved access locstions conform o Douglas
County's design standards.

8. Common laundry facilities of suificient number and accessibilily consistent
with the number of living uniis and the current County building code must be
provided.

Comment: A common laundry facility with three (3) sets of washers and
dryers is provided as a part of the proposed floor plan.

9. Where common laundry facilities are not provided, each dwelling unit must be
designed for a washing machine and dryer. (Ord. 1173, 2006; Ord. 801, 1 987;
Ord. 763, 1996; Ord. 347, 1980; Ord. 203, 1973; Ord. 167, 1968)

Comment: A common laundry facility with three (3) sets of washers and
dryers is provided as a part of the proposed floor plan.

The following is our analysis of the required findings for a Planned Development per
Douglas County Code Section 20.676.040:

Planned Development Findinqs:

1. The plan is consistent with the siaiement of objectives of a planned
development contained in the 2011 Douglas County Master Plan and in this
chapfter.

Comment: The stated purpose of the planned development in Chapter
20.676.010 is to provide a method of comprehensive planning for smailler,
less complex development projects than are typically processed with a
speciiic plan, and which meet certain criteria. These criteria are as follows:

I.  The project site contains topographic constraints,
environmental resources, or other features which require
special planning consideration;

Comment: The proposed planned development modification is
consistent with Douglas County Code, which requires a planned
development application for a higher residential density
development within the Receiving Area.




Dougias County Community Development
Parkway Vista Apariments

Movember 8, 2012

Page 8 of 13

. A more efficient and desirable design can be achieved through
flexible design standards or mixad land use patierns than can
be aitained through the sirict adherence io zoning standards:

Commeni: The proposed modification to the planned
development will promote the use of a more efficient land use
design. The development provides an alternative housing option in
close proximity fo the fuiure senior cenier, medical facilities,
shopping, public parks and other urban services. Development of
this site must be conducted in accordance with the plan provided
with this planned development application.

iii.  Adequate public facilities and infrastructure exist or can be
provided io the project site o serve the proposed type and
intensity of development;

Comment: Adequate public facilities exist to serve the proposed
development, including afl typical urban services (community
sewer, community water, storm drainage, and related key
infrasiructure).

iv.  Detailed development plans are known at the time the
comprehensive development plan is prepared, allowing
combined review and approval;

Comment: Detailed development plans are submitied with this
application, including grading, drainage, utility plans, floor plans
and elevations and project phasing plans.

v.  Build-out of the planned development project area is
contemplated within the scope and duration of the plan.

Comment: Itis anticipated that the project build-out will coincide

with the duration of the plan. The project will be constructed in two
phases.

vi.  The project is located within a receiving area as shown on the

master plan land use maps, and is proposing to utilize transfer
development rights.

S-a\




Douglas County Communiiy Developrent
FParkway Vista Apartmenis

November 8, 2012

Page 9 of 13

&,

Comment: The project is within a receiving area, however it does
not require the utilization of transferable development righis {TDR)
since the proposed affordable housing development qualifies
under the TDR waiver provisions under Douglas County Code
20.612.040 B. Seven units (7) will be provided at 35% of Area
Medium Income (AMI), eighteen units (18) ai 40% of the AMI! and
five units (5) at 45% of the AMI.

The extent that the plan departs from zoning and subdivision regulations
otherwise applicable fo the property, including but not limited to density, bulk
and use are deemed fo be in the public interest.

Comment: The plan is consistent with the master ptan and adjacent
development patterns. The request does not seek to depart from typical
zoning or subdivision regulations applicable to areas designated as Receiving
Area. The density averages 3.63 units per acre, which is within the 2 012
dwelling units per acre identified in the 2011 Douglas County Master Plan.

The ratio of residential to non-residential use in the planned development is
consistent with the master plan.

Comment: This finding is not applicable to this particular application.

The purposs, location and amount of the common open space in the planned
development, the reliability of the proposals for maintenance and
conservation of the common open spaces are adequate as related to the
proposed density and type of residential development.

Comment: The proposed development occurs on a site area of 3.23 acres,
inclusive of the detention pond. The proposal includes fully landscaped
common open space fotaling 0.40 acres and a 0.72 acre landscaped
detention pond parcel. Therefore, the proposed open space equals 35%
(1.12 total acres) which exceeds the 25% requirement of Douglas County
Code. The property owner will maintain the common areas while the pond will
be dedicated to, and maintained by, the Town of Gardnerville.

The physical design of the plan and the manner in which the design of the
planned development makes provisions for adequate public facilities, as
required by this code.

5-Q




Douglas County Community Developmert
Parkway Vista Apariments

November 8, 2012

Page 10 of 13

Comment: The planned development meets all public facilities requirements,
including adequate water, sewer, roads, drainage and utflities. The project
will be served by a community water and sewer service sysiemn in
conformance with the adequate public facilities requirerments of Douglas
County Code. Tha proposed development is located within the Town of
Gardnerville, who will provide for ongoing maintenance of the access roads
(Crestmore Drive) and drainage infrasiructure.

6. The proposed development is compatible with and preserves the character
and integrity of adjacent development and neighborhoods.

Comment. The planned development is compaiible with the existing
residential character of the neighborhood. The proposed senior residential
community is compatible with the existing Arbor Gardens Subdivision to the
east and the Cresimore Village Apariments io the north. The project site was
originally designated in the specific plan to provide a transitional density
between Arbor Gardens Subdivision and industrial areas adjacent to the site.

7. Any developmeni-related adverse fmpacts, such as fraffic, noise, odors,
visual nuisances, or other similar adverse effects to adjacent development
and neighborhoods, are mitigated by improvements or modifications efiher
on-site or within the public right-of-way:.

Comment: The proposed senior housing will likely have less development
related impacts than what would otherwise be permiited on this siie,
particularly those related to traffic and noise. Senior housing trip generation is
substantially less than other types of permitted residential development.

8. Where a development plan proposes development over a period of years, the
sufficiency of the terms and conditions intended to profect the interests of the
public, residents and owners of the planned development and the integrity of
the plan and, where the plan provides for phases, the period in which the
application for each phase must be filed.

Gomment: The project will be constructed in two phases.

9. That each individual unit or phase of the development, if built in stages, as
well as the fotaf development, can exist independenily and be capable of
creating a good environment in the locality and be as desirable and stable in
any phase as in the total development.

S-23




Dougtas County Communily Development
Parkway Vista Apariments

Novembe

r6, 2012

Page 11 of 13

70.

71.

Comment: The project will be constructed in two phases. The phasing plan is
included with this submiiial and each phase can operate independent of the
orior recorded phase.

The uses proposed will not be a detriment fo the present and proposed
surrounding land uses, but will enhance the desirability of the area and have
a beneficial effect.

Commeni: The planned development will increase the desirability of the area
by promoting quality development, improved landscaped areas and a
development pattern compatibie with existing development. The
davelopment provides an aliernative housing option for senior citizens in
close proximity fo the new community center, medical facilities, shopping,
public parks and other urban services. The applicant proposes an aliernate
nousing option at varying levels of affordability. The proposal will assist
Douglas County in their goal to increase the availability of affordable eiderly
rental housing units, as expressed in the 2011 Douglas County Master Pian,
Specifically, these goals and policies are enumerated as follows:

H Goal 4: To increase afordable rental housing units for elderly and
disabled households in the Minden/Gardnerville area and Indian Hills.

H Policy 4.1 Housing units for qualified elderly and disabled houssholds
shall be eligible for project cost reductions by exceeding Fair Housing and
ADA accessibility requirements.

H Action 4.1 Determine possible locations for the development of
affordable senior housing in proximity to the new Douglas County
Community/Senior Center in Gardnerville and solicit interest from potential
developers.

H Action 4.2 Develop an additional 40 to 80 units of affordable rental units
within ten years for elderly and disabled households,

H Action 4.3 Douglas County will prepare siting criteria for new affordable
rental units fo insure proximity fo community services.

Any deviation from the standard ordinance requirements is warranted by the
design and additional amenities incorporated in the development plan which

S -y




Douglas County Community Development
Parkway Vista Aparimenis

November 8, 2012

Page 12 0f 13

offers ceriain unusual redeeming featuras io compensate for any deviations
that may be permitted.

Comment: The applicant is requesting modification to standard ordinances
regarding RV parking standards, the standard MFR parking requirement and
the required enclosed storage space.

—
n
F

. The planned development will not resuit in material prejudice or diminution in
value of surrounding properties, and will not endanger the health, safety and
welfare of the community.

Comment: The development will not result in matetial prejudice or diminution
in value of surrounding properties. There is no evidence that the proposal will
endanger the healih, safety and welfare of the community.

13. The subdivision of fand proposed in the planned development meeis the
requirements of the Nevada Revised Statutes and this code.

Comment. The proposed subdivision meets the requirements of NRS and
Douglas County Development Code Planned Development standards.

14. The subdivision of land proposed in the planned development conforms to the
densily requiremenis, ot dimension standards and other regulaiions
applicable to planned developments.

Comment: The proposal is consistent with the regulations applicable to
planned developments.

15. The subdivision of land proposed in the planned development conforms fo the
improverment and design standards contained in the development code and
adopted design criteria and improvement standards.

Comment: All of the proposed improvements conform to Douglas County's
design standards.

16. Where applicable, adequate transfer development rights have been
established consistent with the number of proposed units within the planned
development.




Douglas County Community Development
Parkway Vista Aparimenis

Novermber 8, 2012

Page 130f 13

Comment: The project is within a receiving area, however it does not require
the utilization of transferable development rights (TDR) since the proposad
affordable housing development qualifies under the TDR waiver provisions
under Douglas County Code 20.612.040 B.. Seven units (7) will be provided
at 35% of Area Medium Income (AMI), sighieen units (18) at 40% of the AMI
and five units (5) at 45% of the AMI.

17. The planned development has a beneficial refationship fo the neighborhood in
which it Is proposed fo be established.

Commenti: With adoption of the Specific Plan, the Plan was found to be
consistent and compatible with area development. The Planned
Development addresses several needs expressed in the 2011 Douglas
County Master Plan and thersfore have been established to have a beneficial
relationship to the neighborhood.

Thank you for your consideration regarding this matier. Should you have any further
guestions, please do not hesitate to call.

Sincerely,

R.O. ANDERSON ENGINERING, INC.

I}

i

et e e e el

Marie A. Hulse, ASLA, CPESC
Landscape Architect




Zi/9T/11 LNILJHOTEIAZD QINNY IS

e e
|00~ 20T -S0-0ZT! "N ='v ERel... SEml
AvMHaYd SOIdols (gel 277 ‘ONISNOH SONINNIDIE MIN e PP S

NYd J41S TIvEZAO SLNILLAVLY VLIGIA AVMIRY | USEIEPUTIOY | e

py) =Rl TIva | e

TEFRY - ROILYATTE

\,o &\ o o o Ao B, a it Ao majauz 1021
i i FHITUALNGS ¥ NI WYdid @8 ¥ 9 NWvearowEs ALis \'m{.zms_l_mmﬂ_
&uo A

eIy = NOLLYATT
Wil [ NHVLTNEE CEN RGN a3gvE
iy
2 T @0 GAYH €1 1GRECHG SR HOd LIRLYE TYSLIRTA
PRy = T
iewol = 3
IHAL N EDE WD

LILOLD OBLYMCUOGD Teoar
GRANSEY &I LFAGHE GIL HIL LALY] TYIHOEROH

Wnlva
. SR MITHDTN LANACEY
Crionoc EHL HE BTE89 "ON ANIWODOC Y $NE TlL WanoLo0

G "IAY _LONSGTAINCH 40 IMITHALKTD GHL -= T,00,LELN

[=3E=3

R T T
e L
i ~3i=wvzu
A= 1= A
TLLHEIGTH AT L
ENIVELLY

CAMACHY CITVLD LA VIOL
& CTNTATD DA
z Zm

it DE11
Gy

iF gAnaAn>
¥ EvToan

T

GZCOICE
aIUNTIN CITVIC 0F “TvioL
¥ 2
< wvmndax
(oHINEYe 1EINT) GLIKN ¥ Hild T2ves §
(ELINA G0)-(GRATAED JINA M2 1) 1IN0 H3d STavaE & ‘azuncay
ONRY

A9 LCB'PL W e
a8 T = woold 161

i e e e

oy

DIV CICIABIINT I

e ¥ it tiu vowd T DO BeP RATY YRR Gn 3 $ER B AR Y Gt

5-37

CRLINA OF) Laale-L 4 g’y AN L THIETIE gde1g3oNys
s TR -
- nlee(y wriin) e N
k Y
PAIEIOAOSE "LE A NI &
4, QITVITE 1 .E-OF CWE'EE WATILS0 ¥
FAILTA43 e ASATATE DL GIVIATM “anoz Qoo
sy ace vauY_L=droud N
AHYIITA 'FIN CNY SIS
YAMY SHIAIDEN Nl WALOYH Lraraund
ANINAAD Qo Pt LVl BNINGT, LiGTRNnD
oL w34
LSwT 0F TR Serizicieva
Admdn “dirrihens ), 2
& it BT L
[l ) CNRY piieia
Avroared WOIGOLE 15 CETHIGY LA G . / o e 04

YILOLN Y JMOTIwD

FTT BHIGADN GUNINNIEIT MIN QIS W
Bited AN CREN
©O% BLY “LEFINLY BYHHTIM SSTE
OV HIONTAITY QOTL Gro

THE | AN AdE 3oV HTNIG

ANFLAGITATA AANNY I THELLY Tl

LMLV LB AYRORIY

BN LO% TN

core
A\ mousese—iy

ApVIILWNS L23road

QN o ATV

dvld ALINISEA

ORANIR SHITYS,
F T Y

07 = 41 NETYOE




TILART/ 1 LNSHOTISIAZA AINNYId

EER L. ORE
Ny ST BNISNOH SONINNDIE MEN Bifenw  -Wem| T ETTE
AN % 3LS SINILLAYIAY VISIA AVMIRYd | USEIEPUTIOfY | e
Y-} WO RS AT S HIvE
RN, % S = e H__
R N Ly . H “ -
AUD maADY H0d Wy mw.ut\“\n.““ ¥

AUVNIRIFYd

AL UV iR

AL CEaRYENYLS

THHY ¥ Owrayld Om AREEERY Hea
AIVAT oMY DM

il L AR S

WY AT FVG 2

HTDUE F SICOUSH

Feniaging’ ageodond
Tlo0-ZoE-Ee-0Z2t- T d*

R RTRES
-\

3

=
2
@
]
®
®
®
"ServONYLE TYNY Wld Cwrerld O (D)
@
@
a
@
@
@
@
@

———— s

FRUELlh —

A\

1~
[

/

S 8’ e U Pl 0 DO LIG: L bt bl BLTS-E3 SO0 O o] Gt B 1Y T el P

I e T ———




/ST  LNSWAOINEASA QaNNY1d

That
"7 ‘BNISNOH SONINNIDIE MaN Bigrme  wWRE|, SO0 w
SINILILavYdY vVLSIA AviMsialvd ;
PTed - MO T AT N.w-(ﬁ nvz“
AUD MO[ASE 104 s ¢ ot ey | e ~ ___Dn..
AUVNININZYD BRIy : E i e - un..__m
™
[ m
B
o i
1 1
i
1
BN
!
N
“ | i
Y
N
J N
i
i
]
s
0o
i 1
P
1 1
1 i
H {
) 1
! I |
/ m
; (Y
\.— | i
4 )
: |
4 N
¥ iGiisas anod BRISHG m
s
\m-..f

-39






MAINJSTREET
€ c

LN AN

To:  Gardnerville Town Board
Fr:  Paula Lochridge, Main Street Gardnerville Program Manager
Re:  Program Manager’s Report for December 4, 2012

Economic Restructuring:

e [ was interviewed about our Revolving Loan Fund in October by John Seelmeyer, with
Northern Nevada Business Weekly. He also interviewing two of our applicants, Rick
Ackerson with No Place Like Home and with Troy Phillips with Battle Born Wine. The
article came out on line November 12" and was in the Nevada Appeal on November 18",
Both versions are in your packet,

Organization:

* Focusing on Memberships/Sponsorships/Fundraising.

¢ The 501c3 Committee is moving forward on getting the necessary information together to
determine if this is a direction that we’ll take with one of our committees. This process is
taking a lot of time and we have some great volunteers working on it. Once the research
is complete, we will consult with legal counsel. The c3 status could open doors for future
grant funding and donations for district projects but it’s important for the bulk of our
program to remain a 501¢6 because of our work with district businesses.

e Monthly moring coffee meetings are going well. Feel free to join us the first Tuesday of
each month, 8:30 -9:30 am at Sharkey’s Casino (in the Rib Room). We will not have a
meeting in January since the 1* Tuesday falls on New Year’s Day.

Promotions:
» Holiday Shopping Bazaar (November 10" at St. Gall Church, 11 am—4 pm)

o We completely sold out of all vendor space with 44 vendors participating.

o We had over 90 raftle and silent auction items.

o We will discuss this event at our Promotions Meeting on Dec. 5* to determine the
success. We had fewer attendees than last year, due to weather, but most vendors
said they had great sales. (Attendance was estimated near 400 last year, with just
over 300 this year.)

¢ Cash Mob

o Our third Cash Mob will be held on Saturday, December 1%, 9:30 am — 4:30 pm at
Country Carousel.

o Details on this event are in your packet.

Agenda ltem # fo AD\




Design:

o Heritage Park Gardens are being cleaned and prepared for winter. It was a successful
season with excellent results in the gardens and the contribution of vegetables to the
Food Closet not to mention the community involvement. Additional garden plots are
planned for next year. More when the design / layout is complete.

o The design of the Labyrinth is underway and existing labyrinths have been visited to
gather information on design, materials and maintenance. The committee will be
utilizing the $4000 grant money from the Nevada Commission on Tourism. Progress
reports to follow with a design presentation to both the Main Street Gardnerville and
Gardnerville Town Boards for approval.

o Several of the volunteers decorated the nine benches throughout the district. Photos
mcluded in your packet.

Thank you so much for your continued support of the Main Street Gardnerville Program!

(iia cohredtze.

Paula Lochridge,
Main Street Gardnerville Program Manager

Agenda ltem # b ‘3



Printable http://www.recordcourier.com/apps/pbes.dll/article? AID=/20121128..

Sixteen graduate from Leadership Douglas
County

NOVEMBER, 27 2012

I STAFF REPORTS

- Specia

At a ceremony last week, sixteen Valley residents were honored as they graduated
from Leadership Douglas County.

The graduates completed an 11 month program of site visits, classroom instruction and homework assignments,
along with a class project, to earn the graduate status.

Along the way, the class heard from more than 100 presenters as they spent nine days immersed in areas such as
public safety, education, water and agriculture , state government, tourism and heritage and economic
development.

Seven of those days started with a classroom session on various aspects of leadership conducted by Dr. Marlene
Rebori of the University of Nevada. From there, the class hit the road and toured facilities associated with the day's
subject area, and had the opportunity to hear directly from the experts at those stops.

To graduate, the class had to complete a number of homework assignments, including the publishing of a letter to
the editor, attendance at a Douglas County commission meeting and seven other assignments drawn from a list of
possibilities.

Finally, as a class, the graduates had to identify, plan and execute a class project. They chose to undertake an oral
history of one of the Valley's pioneer families.

At the graduation ceremony held at Genoa Lakes, which was moderated by Program Chair Steve Lewis of
Cooperative Extension, the class heard from keynote speaker Nancy Saitta, a justice of the Nevada Supreme Court.

This year's graduates include Marcus Armstrong, Carson Valley Medical Center; David Aymami, Douglas County
Sheriff's Office; Brynn Bertucci, U.S. Bank; Chad Cox, GE Energy; Stephanie Waggoner, Appoggio Core Training
Studio; Gary Dove, Kiwanis of Carson Valley; Susan Endter; Brian Fitzgerald, Douglas County Parks and Recreation;
Dominique Etchegoyhen, Legacy Land and Water; Lisa Granahan, Douglas County Economic Vitality; Shari James,
Dr. James the Dentist; Chris Johnson, Minden Tahoe Airport; Paula Lochridge, Main Street Gardnerville; Ursula
Prebezac, City National Bank; Marilyn Presti, Carson Valley Medical Center Foundation; and Holly Spiers, GE
Energy.

Recruitment for the Leadership Douglas County Class of 2013, which will begin in January, is ongoing.

Applications and information are available at www.carsonvalleynv.org or by calling the Carson Valley Chamber of
Commerce office at 782-8144.

http://www.recordcourier.com/apps/pbcs.dll/article?AlD=/20121128 /NEWS/121129932/1062&parentprofile=104930&template=printart

6-4

lof1l 11/29/2012 9:30 AN



99J9UIUOY) JO JAQUIBYY) AS[[BA U0SIB) Irey) Ajuno) seisnoq digsiapeoq
HIO0UI3Y) _ﬁ SIMIT 94918

1O "% &N

9S8PLIYI0T vINRJ

OL dRINIASHEd

3103
NOLLY¥NAYYD 0 FL¥OLILLYID

ADTAWNODI AO MIEINVHD ATITIVA NOSYVD

ALNNOOD SY1IDNOA

)

dI HSYIdAY 31

6



ey 20IAWWOY) JO IdquIBy))
SIMAT Y UaA2)S yoouwiaypy [[td

RO

A]OM] -PUDSNLOY [-OM] ‘YIDIUIN] ADQUIDAON PIJUISDA]

UoISUIX3 aAieIadoo)
BPenaN jo Ausianiun (SUOLIN]OS SUIY23S UDYM S.42Y10 JO Saa110ads.1ad i e
pup spurodmaia ‘suoiurdo juaiafjip anjoa J o ‘
. OZIBLUAG, 19 NGDE r/\
| JIHSYIAVIls

O

2bpLIY007 ened

paieMy 91dodd
IANIIYIH AlYSIH



INSIDE: Sunday Puzzles C5, Opinion C6, Classifieds C9

Sunday, November 18, 2012 nevadaappeal.com/business B US INE SS e CI

USDA-funded loan pool boosts
Gardnerville businesses

BY JOHN SEELMEYER
Northern Nevada Business Weekly

Battle Born Wine has sold gift
baskets during almost the entire
five years that the store in
downtown Gardnerville has
been owned by Troy Phillips.
The problem: Despite the store's
location on busy U.S. 395, pass-
ing consumers thought the
store sold only wine.

Phillips drew on a low-inter-
est loan program financed by
the U.S. Department of
Agriculture and managed by
Main Street Gardnerville to
boost his marketing — better
signage, new bags — and solidi-
fy his inventories.

Today, the store sees steady
growth of new customers,

Like many retailers, Phillips
had found himself in a tight
spot. Even modest marketing to
increase consumers’ awareness
of his store’s gift baskets — not
to mention its wide inventory of
craft beers —would chew a big
hole in the store’s cash flow.

And banks and other tradi-
tional lenders either don't want
to make loans of a few thousand
dollars or would require high
interest.

The revolving loan program
managed by Main Street
Gardnerville, however, provides
loans that carry a 2 percent
interest with repayment spread
over five to 10 years. Loans gen-
erally total $1,500 to $10,000,
although they may go higher.

“This program was a neat
way for us to get capital,” says
Phillips. Main Street
Gardnerville has made three
loans through the USDA initia-
tive and has another handful of
proposals in the pipeline, says
Paula Lochridge, who manages
Main Street Gardnerville,

“We want our downtown to
succeed,” she says. “We have a
lot of unique small businesses

in our downtown, and we want

them to have a fighting chance.”

The revolving-loan fund
totals $56,000. Loans are avail-
able for uses ranging from signs
and awnings to working capital
and additional staff. An early
success story of the program
came at No Place Like Home
Senior Care LLC.

Rick Ackerson, president and

RECORD-COURIER FILE PHOTO
Troy Phillips of Battle Born Wine drew on a low-inter-
est loan program financed by the U.S. Department of
Agriculture and managed by Main Street Gardnerville
to boost his marketing — better signage, new bags
— and solidify his inventories.

chief executive officer of the
company, says No Place Like
Home has grown five-fold since
it used its loan funds in May
2011 to boost its working capi-
tal.

“It gave me a jump start,”
says Ackerson, noting that the 2
percent interest rate means that
the loan didn't create a serious
financial burden on the

growing company.

The interest rate proved to be
a key ingredient to build
momentum for the loan pro-
gram alter it drew lukewarm
response when it was intro-
duced in 2009, says Lochridge.

She says the first version of
the program cailed for loans to
carry a 4 percent interest rate.
That was daunting to borrow-
ers, particularly because they
were nervous in those early
days of the recession that had
begun in 2008.

Potential borrowers also
were worried about confiden-
tiality as they were required to
provide detailed financial infor-
mation.

Applications today are
reviewed by a loan committee
of financial professionals in
Douglas County who under-
stand the need for confidential-
ity, Lochridge says. Neither the
staff nor the board of the non-
profit Main Street Gardnerville
has access to the information.
“It stays very confidential,” says
Lochridge.

Borrowers must be members
of Main Street Gardnerville and
located within the Main Street
District.

(Main Street Gardnerville,
one of 40 Main Street programs
nationwide overseen by the
National Trust for Historic
Preservation, is the only pro-
gram of its type in Nevada. Its
goal is preservation and revital-
ization of historic downtown
districts.)

Michelle Kelly, business pro-
gram specialist with USDA in
Carson City, says the Main
Street Gardnerville revolving-
loan fund is one of several lend-
ing vehicles that the federal
agency has established in rural
areas of the state.

“In the current lending envi-
ronment, there is a great
demand for it,” Kelly says,

BRIEFLY
Offsite Data Spot expands

Carson City based Offsite Data Depot will
expand into Reno and add several more employ-
ees,

The business specializes in records storage
and offers document shredding, scanning, online
backup and email filtering.

For more information, call 775-888-9933 or go
to www.offsitedatadepot.com.

Ferrari Public Affairs has new website
Ferrari Public Affairs has launched a new weh-
site at www.ferraripa.com. The site showcases the

company's services and expanding team.

The site contains a community section which
helps the Nevada-based company show non-profit
groups supported by the firm. The site includes a
blog that contains state and national political
updates.

Ferrari Public Affairs is a results-driven govern-
ment and public affairs firm. The company pro-
vides local, state, and federal lobbying and regula-
tory consulting services to clients across the
country. For more information, go to www.ferrari-
pa.com.

RE/MAX honors Brummer

RE/MAX agent Mary Jo Brummer has been
presented with the Certificate of
Excellence for achieving the No. 2
Individual sales position for the
month of August in the state of
Nevada.

Brummer has been working in
the real estate industry for more
than 14 years. She holds the
Certified Residential Specialist and
the Certified Distressed Property
Expert Designations.

Brummer’s office is at 2310 S. Carson Street,
Suite 1. She can be reached at 775-721-5905,

Mary Jo
Brummer

Chromalloy wins contract

Chromalloy Gas Turbine Corp. of Carson City
won a contract worth $100,608 from the U.S.
Navy's Weapon Systems Support division at
Mechanicsburg, Pa., to repair and rebuild gas-

powered turbine engines.
— NORTHERN MEVADA BUSINESS WEEKLY

Price Target Media retained

Price Target Media Inc. of Carson City has been
retained by Abby Inc., a Calgary oil company, to
provide investor-relations services.

Abby will pay Price $5,000 a month in cash
and 200,000 shares of restricted shares of its

common stock.
— NORTHERN NEVADA BUSINESS WEEKLY

- e

6-7



= _n:rlﬂe.'{: & #;.—I:H - i i
BusinessWeekly
USDA-funded loan pool boosts Gardnerville businesses
John Seelmeyer, 11/12/2012

Battle Born Wine has sold gift baskets during almost the entire five years that the store in
downtown Gardnerville has been owned by Troy Phillips. The problem: Despite the store’s
location on busy U.S. 395, passing consumers thought the store sold only wine.

Phillips drew on a low-interest loan program financed by the U.S. Department of Agriculture and
managed by Main Street Gardnerville to boost his marketing — better signage, new bags — and
solidify his inventories.

Today, the store sees steady growth of new customers.

Like many retailers, Phillips had found himself in a tight spot. Even modest marketing to
increase consumers’ awareness of his store’s gift baskets — not to mention its wide inventory of
craft beers — would chew a big hole in the store’s cash flow.

And banks and other traditional lenders either don’t want to make loans of a few thousand
dollars or would require high interest.

The revolving loan program managed by Main Street Gardnerville, however, provides loans that
carry a 2 percent interest with repayment spread over five to 10 years. Loans generally total
$1,500 to $10,000, although they may go higher.

“This program was a neat way for us to get capital,” says Phillips. Main Street Gardnerville has
made three loans through the USDA initiative and has another handful of proposals in the
pipeline, says Paula Lochridge, who manages Main Street Gardnerville.

“We want our downtown to succeed,” she says. “We have a lot of unique small businesses in our
downtown, and we want them to have a fighting chance.”

The revolving-loan fund totals $56,000. Loans are available for uses ranging from signs and
awnings to working capital and additional staff. An early success story of the program came at
No Place Like Home Senior Care LLC.

Rick Ackerson, president and chief executive officer of the company, says No Place Like Home
has grown five-fold since it used its loan funds in May 2011 to boost its working capital.

“It gave me a jump start,” says Ackerson, noting that the 2 percent interest rate means that the
loan didn’t create a serious financial burden on the growing company.

The interest rate proved to be a key ingredient to build momentum for the loan program after it
drew lukewarm response when it was introduced in 2009, says Lochridge.

G =g



She says the first version of the program called for loans to carry a 4 percent interest rate. That
was daunting to borrowers, particularly because they were nervous in those early days of'the
recession that had begun in 2008.

Potential borrowers also were worried about confidentiality as they were required to provide
detailed financial information.

Applications today are reviewed by a loan committee of financial professionals in Douglas
County who understand the need for confidentiality, Lochridge says. Neither the staff nor the
board of the nonprofit Main Street Gardnerville has access to the information. “It stays very
confidential,” says Lochridge.

Borrowers must be members of Main Street Gardnerville and located within the Main Street
District,

(Main Street Gardnerville, one of 40 Main Street programs nationwide overseen by the National
Trust for Historic Preservation, is the only program of its type in Nevada. Its goal is preservation
and revitalization of historic downtown districts.)

Michelle Kelly, business program specialist with USDA in Carson City, says the Main Street
Gardnerville revolving-loan fund is one of several lending vehicles that the federal agency has

established in rural areas of the state.

“In the current lending environment, there is a great demand for it,” Kelly says.

6 -9



MAIN JSTREET
Gardne

=

Main Street Gardnerville
continues with its

“Cash Mob”’

TS Economic Stimulus Campaign

&//4

A “Cash Mob” is a new movement aimed at supporting local businesses
and rebuilding communities. “Cash Mobbers” join together and commit
to spending $10-20 at a predetermined local business.

The next “Cash Mob” will take place on Saturday, December 1st, at
Country Carousel, 1420 Main Street (Hwy 395) in Gardnerville.
In business for 18 years, they carry gift and home décor items, flags
and have a year-round Christmas area.

Show up anytime at Country Carousel between 9:30 AM & 4:30 PM
on December 1st and commit to investing $10-20 back into our local
economy. They'll be offering 25% off storewide and a raffle to win prizes.

December 1st is also the day of the Carson Valley Chamber of
Commerce’s “Parade of Lights” so come down early to “mob”’
Country Carousel then make a day of it in the Main Street District
while you await the start of the parade!

Find us on Facebook at “Main Street Gardnerville Cash Mob”
According to the American independent Business Alliance, when a consumer

spends $100 in a locally owned business, $45 of it stays in the community.
When that same $100 is spent in a national chain store, only $13 stays local.

A Cash Mob is just one way that a shopper can have a
huge impact on our local economy.

Main Street Gardnerville
Ph: 775.782.8027 1407 Main Street (Hwy 395 N), Gardnerville, NV 89410 Fax: 775.782.7135

www.MainStreetGardnerville.org
Main Street Gardnerville is a 501c6 corporation and an equal opportunity provider.

l’;.r"‘[o




The Vintage Village Morte|

1383 Hwy. 395 N.
Gardnerville, NV 89410
775-782-262¢

November 9, 2012

Dear Linda,

A belated thank you for choosing The Vintage Village Motel as your spot to host the annual Flower
Committee appreciation event,

We were delighted to have your commitiee and friends gather here for such a festive occasion.
We hope you enjoyed yourselves and that the accommodations were to your liking.

Meeting the Hickey’s was a great surprise and interesting for us. We look forward to receiving
some of the historical photos they shared and displaying them in the motel lobby. The stories
and pictures were great fun!

Thank you for the beautiful planter pot. We enjoyed it all summer. We also look forward to
meeting with you or Jim or Carol about some curbside decorating or Springtime planting in the
future,
Sincerely,
: \

. . = 3 oA
(/\;\_C—Xu&&u-—-—' M,\./C‘l\.}w—k.k,
Melissa Mitchell and John Sauique

Managers
The Vintage Village Motel

611



Volunteers Sally Jasperson and Carol Sandmeier
decorating the benches throughout the Main Street District.

b -1



Gardnerville Town Board /ﬁ,,\/\

Gardnerville
AGENDA ACTION SHEET " Nevada

1. For Possible Action: Discussion on revising the following Town policies;
a. Park Use Policy
b. Heritage Park Reservation Policy
c. Street Closure/Special Events Policy;
with public comment prior to Board action.

2. Recommended Motion: Based on Board discussion.
Funds Available: . Yes L N/A

3. Department: Administration
Prepared by: Tom Dallaire

4. Meeting Date: December 4,2012 Time Requested: 20 minutes
5. Agenda: ' Consent ¥ Administrative
Background Information: This is being brought back from the October meeting

in which Board members gave comments and direction. Our attorney, Tyler
Altom, has made the corrections you see in the attached policies.

6. Other Agency Review of Action: | Douglas County [ N/A

7. Board Action:

L Approved L_Approved with Modifications
' Denied __Continued

o e e e e )
Agenda Item # 7



TOWN OF GARDNERVILLE
PARK USE POLICY
RULES AND REGULATIONS

Park Use in General:

The Town of Gardnerville’s parks and related facilities are for the use and enjoyment of the
public and are generally open for use from 6:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m., daily. In addition to the
general use and enjoyment of the park by the public for recreational purposes, the parks are
available on a first come, first served basis for most events, including, but not limited to,
special events, meetings and exhibits. However, organized sports league use for games or
practices is not permitted [keep this sentence in?].

Reservation Policy:

For groups of more than 25 people, reservations are required and are subject to a first come,
first served basis. However, any Town sponsored or co-sponsored activity will have the right
of priority over all other reservations and special events.

Application: A Park Reservation Form and Release of Liability and Indemnification
Agreement ("Application") must be completed and submitted [to Town staff?] [0/7 /10 /
30] days before the requested use. [The Town Board will review the Application and accept,
accept with modifications, or deny the Application ata properly noticed Board meeting [OR]
The Town Manager will review the Application and accept, accept with modifications, or
deny the Application.]

The entire park or specific areas of a park are available for special or organized events or
gatherings. At the request of the individual or organization applying for the reservation, a
section of the park may be cordoned off. However, a Town park is a public park and a
reservation will not guarantee exclusive right to the park grounds.

No group or individual may reserve the park area or facilities more than two (2)
weekends per month.

Fees and Deposit: A park may be available on a half day basis (to a maximum of four
hours) at a flat rate of $25.00]?] per hour, or for a full day with the flat rate being $300.00[?].

A security deposit of [up to] $300.00[?] will be required], at the discretion of the Board [OR]
Town Manager]. The completed Application and deposit must be on file in the Town office
in order to guarantee the reservation. The security deposit will be refunded to the applicant
after inspection by Town staff for any additional cleaning and/or damages other than normal
wear and tear of the park. The applicant will remain responsible for any additional damages,
cleaning or repair expenses as a result of the reservation or special event. A refund, if the

REVISED 5/7/021



Town [Manager] determines it is due, will be returned to the applicant within thirty (30) days
of the event or cancellation.

Park fees and charges shall be established by the Town Manager, subject to the
approval, review, revision, and/or amendment by the Town [Keep this
sentence/paragraph? Seems unnecessary considering above language].

Insurance: Comprehensive general liability insurance naming the Town of Gardnerville as
additional insured will be required for any event when 1) the event is open to the public; 2)
a fee is charged; 3) the very nature of the event and/or the number of applicants require
liability insurance; 4) beer and alcohol are to be sold; and/or 5) as determined by the [Board
[OR]] Town Manager or his or her authorized designee. The minimum limits of the
insurance shall be as follows: $1 million for each occurrence and $1 annual million
aggregate. Insurance coverage must include premises, operations, products and completed
operations at a minimum.

Alcohol: Applicants desiring to consume or dispense alcoholic beverages on Town property
must request permission in writing. Beer and wine are the only alcoholic beverages that will
be permitted[, subject to the approval of the Board [OR] Town Manager]. Further, if
alcoholic beverages are to be sold, the applicant’s insurance policy shall include a liquor
liability rider naming the Town of Gardnerville as an additional insured with the
aforementioned requirements and minimum limits. Proof of compliance with all applicable
rules and regulations of the Douglas County Liquor License Board shall be submitted with
the application but in no event less than [0 /7 / 10/ 30] days prior to the event.

Security: Security may be required under the following circumstances[, as
determined by the Board [OR] Town Manager]: (1) where an event makes a major
impact on a facility; (2) when alcohol is being served or sold; (3) and/or when
additional precautions are deemed necessary due to the nature of the event. When
security is required, private security personnel shall be arranged by the applicant,
with prior approval by the Douglas County Sheriff’s Department. The applicant is
responsible for all fees for security services. Proof of security service and Sheriff’s
Department approval will be required prior to the reservation approval.

Cleaning/Sanitation: The applicant will be given instructions for cleaning and park
use at the beginning of the event. If the park requires any cleaning after the event it
will be provided by the Town. The applicant will be charged $25 per hour for such
cleaning. In the event there is a security deposit, the assessed cleaning charge will
be deducted from the deposit.

The applicant shall provide facilities for the washing of hands for persons who
prepare food at a special event.

REVISED 5/7/022

2~



Where the expected attendance of an event is one hundred people or more, the
applicant shall be responsible for providing toilet facilities pursuant to Nevada
Administrative Code 444.825 (a copy of NAC 444.825 is attached to the application).
Portable toilet facilities must be kept clean and in good repair. The rental, service
and removal of portable toilet facilities shall be provided at the expense of the
applicant.

Dumpster Fee: The applicant will be charged a fee of $25 per dumpster for groups of 50 or
more people [see Application].

Restrooms: The applicant will be charged $50 if park restroom use is required during the
time period of after Thanksgiving until the end of March in any given year [See
Application].

Other Permits: If beer and/or wine service is approved by the [Board [OR] Town
Manager], the applicant shall be responsible for obtaining any additional permits as
may be required. The applicant shall provide copies of such approvals to the Town
with the application but in no event less than [0/ 7/ 10 / 30] days prior to the event.

If the special event or gathering is a commercial entertainment event or outdoor
festival, the applicant must obtain an outdoor festival entertainment event permit and
submit copies of such permit(s) to the Town with the application but in no event less
than [0 /7 / 10/ 30] days prior to the event.

Cancellations:

1.

A group may cancel their reservation [3 business] days in advance with a full refund.

[depending on how many days in advance Application must be received, may
remove/modify this paragraph] A cancellation fee of 50% of the application fee
and security deposit will be assessed if cancellation is made [less than 3 business
days] [remove “between 29 days and 48 hours prior”] to the date of reservation. The
cancellation fee will be deducted from the deposit.

[depending on how many days in advance Application must be received and/or
above paragraph, may remove/modify this paragraph] In the event the group fails
to appear for the scheduled use or cancels with less than 48 hours notice, no refunds
will be given.

In the event ofacts of God, e.g., natural disasters, heavy storms, etc., and cancellation
occurs, fees will be waived.

Miscellaneous:

REVISED 5/7/023

7-4



No person shall intentionally damage, destroy, remove or modify any natural or
unnatural item or article owned by the Town.

The Town [Manager] must authorize any amplified music.

The Town [Manager] must authorize the erection of tents, canopies or
awnings. Bounce houses, dance floors, or tents larger than 20 ft. by 20 ft.
may be subject to additional security deposits and/or insurance coverage, at
the discretion of the Board/Town Manager. Stakes are not permitted for use
in securing tents, etc. [see Application].

Signs are not allowed within park without the express permission of the Town
[Manager]|.

Litter must be placed in appropriate containers and/or removed by park users from
the facility.

No person shall operate any vehicle including, but not limited to motorcycles, all-
terrain vehicles or dune buggies, except on designated paved roads within the park.
Vehicles may not be driven on any lawn or surface other than the designated parking
areas without the express permission of the Town [Manager].

Dogs, except seeing eye guide dogs, police dogs or service dogs, are not allowed in
Town parks. The Town [Manager] may allow other animals in the park when part
of a special event at its sole discretion.

Hunting and trapping are strictly prohibited. Fishing is not permitted, except in areas
specifically designated for that use. Fishing is permitted at Martin Slough Park, and
on the Martin Slough where designated by signs; is limited to persons age 16 and
under|?], and persons who are physically handicapped or disabled, as determined
either by the Nevada Division of Wildlife or the Nevada Division of Motor Vehicles,
by having a license designating the person disabled and a special license platc or
parking permit. All fishing, excepting regulations contained within this policy, is
subject to and in conformance with Nevada Revised Statutes and Nevada Division
of Wildlife regulations.

The discharge of firearms, crossbows, air rifles or fireworks is strictly forbidden.

Camping is not permitted in Town parks. Exceptions may be granted at the sole
discretion of the Town [Manager].

REVISED 5/7/024



Gardneyville
__x

“Nevada

Application for Use of Heritage Park
1407 Highway 395
Gardnerville, Nevada 89410
(775) 782-7134 (775) 782-7135 Fax

Date of Application:
(Application must be submitted [ ] days prior to the requested use)

Location of Event/Activities:
(submit letter of property owner’s permission if event is to be held on private property|?])

Street(s) proposing to be closed:
(US 395, SR756 require NDOT permission; Waterloo/Toler/Elges require C: ounty permission)

Requesting use of Heritage Park? Yes No

Organization: Corporation: Yes No
(if a corporation is applying for use, a certified copy of the Articles of Incorporation must be attached).

Contact Person:

Home Telephone#:  Business Telephone #  Fax#:
(if applicant is an entity, must include home or business telephone numbers of principals; if applicant
is a corporation, must include home or business telephone numbers of president, vice president, and
secretary of corporation)

Home or Business Address:
(if applicant is an entity or corporation, must include names and addresses of principals of entity or
officers of corporation)

Mailing Address:

Type of Activity Park will be used for:

Will alcohol be sold or served? Yes No
(If alcohol to be served, it may be necessary to obtain additional appropriate liquor licenses/permits)

Band or amplified music? Yes No
This event is Non-Profit For Profit Closed to Public Open to Public
Will a fee be charged to attend the event? Yes No

Date(s) Requested (include setup and tear down time):

Event hours:

Describe proposed event, concessions, fund-raisers, etc:




Number of patrons, customers, spectators, participants and/or other persons expected to attend the use
for each day it is proposed to be conducted:
(If more than 500 people are expected to attend the event, a Douglas County outdoor festival permit is
required)

Event Insurance Carrier & Telephone #:

(Certificate of Insurance naming the Town as additional insured is required)

Event Security Plan:

(Submit Douglas County Sheriff’s Office authorization and approval)

Water and Sanitation Plan if food is being sold or consumed during event:

Event Clean-up/Sanitation/Garbage Plan:

(garbage dumpsters/porta-a-cans/restrooms/etc.)

Fire/Emergency Medical Services Plan:

(Submit East Fork Fire Protection District authorization and approval) o

Event Parking Area:

(Hei‘itage Park Parking MUST remain open for visitors at all times)

Event Layout: Applicants MUST provide a drawing(s) clearly showing event areaf(s), streets requested for
closure, booth spaces, etc. If requesting use of Heritage Park, a Town Surnished template will be provided
indicating utility lines and other event constraints.

Waiver of Liability: Said group agrees that it shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Town of
Gardnerville and Douglas County from any and all expenses or damages which may occur, or liability that it
may sustain, including reasonable attorney’s fees, administrative costs, and court costs, by reason of the Town'’s
permission (o said group for conducting referenced event at denoted location. Said group, through its
representative, hereby agrees to abide by the conditions of approval of the Town Board and any other
conditions that may be set forth by Douglas County. Said group acknowledges that it has received a copy of and
has read the Town's Heritage Park Reservation Policy, and agrees to be subject to that Policy, including but not
limited to any required fees, deposits, or other charges.

Date: Signature:

(if applicant is a corporation, must include signature of
president, vice president, and secretary of corporation)

Printed name above:

="



(Town Office Use Only)

Deposit amount Paid: Date Processed:
Receipt Number: Facility Reviewed:
Scheduled for Town Board Agenda:
Approved:
Scheduled for Douglas County Commissioner Agenda:
Approved:
Deposit Returned:

A copy of the approved application [removed “form”] MUST be at the event



HERITAGE PARK RESERVATION POLICY
RULES AND REGULATIONS

Heritage Park Reservation Policy:

The Gardnerville Town Board ("Board") defines and declares that, with the completion of
the improvements to Heritage Park, the pavilion and related public facilities ("park") and the
requests for public and private exclusive use of the park, the park use requires a reservation
policy for all persons desiring to use, promote, encourage or sponsor activities within the
park regarding reservation of the park for an exclusive use.

The Board will for events within the park allow for a public or private group or person to
reserve the park for such use, for limited amounts of time, pursuant to this policy and the
following rules and regulations.

No person or entity shall use Heritage Park without compliance with the Town's Park Use
Policy, for non-exclusive uses, or with this reservation policy where a use will be the
exclusive use of the park for a limited period. Any person desiring to use the park for an
event must first apply to the Town office for a permit issued by the Board [OR Town
Manager] for the conduct of the event within the park. Any completed application will be
placed on the next available Board agenda for review and consideration by the Board after
its review and approval by the Gardnerville Town Manager ("Manager") [modify this
sentence if Board gives Town Manager authority to approve, approve with modifications, or
deny an application].

Board Findings:

The Board has found that certain activities to be conducted within the park should be subject
to a park reservation fee based upon the following findings:

a. Youth activities are to be supported and subsidized to ensure an open and inviting
park for community recreation. Fees for youth activities are either to be waived or

are to be assessed at a low rate to cover costs to the Town.

b. Adult activities are also to be supported, but are subject to fees based on a greater
ability to support and pay for recreation service.

& Youth-oriented community organizations should be allowed to maximize fund-
raising efforts in support of a non-profit youth activity organization.

d. All requests are subject to the Manager's priority ranking to ensure reservation of the
park.

7=



€ Deposits and insurance requirements will be required according to the schedule set
forth in this policy to ensure continuing availability and security of the park.

5 Additional fees will be charged beyond the minimum fee[, at the Board’s discretion
[OR] at the Manager’s discretion,] when the impact on the Town in accommodating
the park use is beyond normal operations, such as overtime and clean up costs.

g. Uses of the park which are for commercial purposes, or other uses creating major
impacts on the park facilities, will be reviewed by the Manager on a case-by-case
basis. The Manager’s recommendation shall be provided to the Board prior to
approval of the park use [remove/modify last sentence depending on whether Board
gives Town Manager authority to approve/deny Application].

Definitions:

An application for an exclusive park use, which may or may not involve the entire park
facility, shall be construed as a use of the park to the exclusion of all other public and private
users for the reserved period of time ("use" or "park use"). Park use shall be arranged by the
Manager according to this policy. A park use includes any event conducted within the park,
whether organized or promoted for commercial purposes or non-commercial purposes,
whether or not an admission fee or donation is requested or required, and shall include any
exclusive use of the park.

A use of the park includes the park and all of its facilities. Where applicable, the Town's
template for location of temporary facilities, such as booths, shall be utilized.

Non-exclusive park use applications shall be governed by the Town's Park Use Policy.

Permit Required:

No person or entity shall use the park for the operation, maintenance, conduct, advertisement,
or advanced ticket sales unless a permit from the Town is first obtained by submitting an
application, described below, to the Manager, and the [Board [OR] Manager] approving such
application.

Priority of Uses:

The Board establishes, in the first instance, that reservation of the park shall be on a first
come, first served basis. Ifan application is received, reviewed and approved, the application
to use the park shall take precedence over any other applications even if a later received
application requests use of the park for the same time period.

For applications received, but not yet approved, that request the same period of time of use

Vi 1%



of the park, then park use will be based on a priority pursuant to the Board's findings and the
following priorities:

a.

f.

g.
h.

Town Sponsored Activities.

Student groups sponsored by the Douglas County School District.

Youth, family or adult community recreation activities open to the public sponsored
or conducted by a recognized community organization.

Governmental agency meetings opened to the public.

Douglas County based groups or individuals conducting activities restricted to
members of the group or entity, and are otherwise closed to the public.

Religious, sectarian or political meetings.

Commercial uses for financial gain.

Out-of-county group or organizational uses.

Application:

An application for use of the park to conduct an event, which may or may not involve the
closure of a street or alleyway within the Town, should be completed in writing and
submitted to the Manager at least [0 or 7 or 10 or 30 or _ days prior to Board meeting] days
prior to the time indicated for the commencement of the planned use and shall be
accompanied by a deposit established pursuant to this policy. The following information
shall be contained in the application prior to its submission to the Manager [see previous
sentence].

a.

The name, age, residence and mailing address of the person or entity making the
application. If the application is made by an entity, the names and addresses of the
principals of the entity must appear. Where the applicant is a corporation, the
application must be signed by the president, vice-president and secretary of the
corporation and must contain the residence addresses of the corporate officers and
a certified copy of the Articles of Incorporation as a part of the application.

A statement of the kind, character or type of use which the applicant proposes to
conduct, operate or carry on, and if applicable, the name(s) of the street(s), park(s)
or alleyway(s) within the Town for which permission to close such street, park or
alleyway is sought.

The home, office and/or work telephone numbers of the applicant, and if the
application is by an entity, the home, office and/or work telephone numbers of the
principals. Ifthe application is made by a corporation, the home, office and/or work
telephone numbers of the president, vice-president, and secretary shall be supplied.

The date or dates and hours during which the use is proposed to be conducted.

2=kl



e. An estimate of the number of patrons, customers, spectators, participants and/or other
persons expected to attend the use for each day it is proposed to be conducted.

f. If applicable, proof that the applicant is seeking, or has sought and received the
requisite approvals from Douglas County, including, without limitation, and if
required, a liquor license and/or an outdoor festival and entertainment event license,
and that the applicant has received all approvals from Douglas County. Failure to
submit the requisite proof of Douglas County approval(s) shall be deemed to be an
automatic determination that the application is incomplete, and shall not be heard by
the Board [[OR] reviewed by the Manager] until complete.

g Where applicable, if an application proposes the erection of temporary facilities to
be used for the event to be conducted in the park, the application shall utilize the
Town's template for location of temporary facilities, such as booths, and demonstrate
to the satisfaction of the Manager that all temporary facilities are located in
conformity with the template.

h. The application fee for a complete application may be applied to the security deposit
required. Should a security deposit be waived by the Board [[OR] Manager] as
provided below, the application fee may be refunded, if the Town [[OR Manager]
determines it is due, within thirty (30) days after the use.

Insurance:

As part of the application, each applicant shall supply proof of insurance, [unless the
applicant is a local government entity sharing the same insurance coverage as the Town].
Comprehensive general liability insurance naming the Town as an additional insured and
certificate holder will be required for any use with minimum limits of insurance of'$1 million
for each occurrence and $1 million annual aggregate. Insurance coverage must include
premises, operations, products and completed operations, at a minimum.

Explanation of Use:

Included with the application shall be a detailed explanation of the applicant's plans to
provide security and fire protection, water supply and facilities, food supply and facilities,
sanitation facilities, medical facilities and services, vehicle parking spaces, vehicle access
and onsite traffic control, and what provision shall be made for numbers of participants in
excess of the applicant's estimated attendance. The applicant shall also provide for clean-up
of the premises and removal of garbage and refuse after the event has concluded.

If the applicant requests the closure of a street, park or alleyway within in the Town, the

applicant shall provide a detailed plan of the event including signs, barricades, traffic control
and parking [remove this sentence? - already in street closure policy].

71X



10.

11.

12,

Time of Operation:

a. All park uses which are the subject of this policy are available for individual or group
use during normally scheduled hours of operation. Exceptions are subject to review
and approval by the Manager. Additional hours of operation may be allowed by the
Board [[OR] Manager].

b. No group or individual may reserve the park for more than four times per month, two
of which may be weekends, including Friday, Saturday and Sunday. Additional use
beyond these periods shall be subject to the regulations set forth in Paragraph ¢
below.

o Extended park use involving multiple dates within a one month period may be
granted for a maximum of one calendar year. All permits shall expire on December
31 of each year. Because of the number of requests for park use, the Board shall
review in January of each year the contemplated uses of the park by various persons
or entities [remove this sentence as unnecessary?]. Uses are subject to the priority
ranking schedule of this policy. Reservations are subject to cancellation with a
minimum of 14 days' written notice [needs modified if we change deadline] if a
higher priority use application is received. No reservation shall be cancelled with
less than 14 days' notice [needs changed if we change deadline].

Alcohol:

Should the applicant desire to dispense alcoholic beverages, or to permit the consumption
of alcoholic beverages as part of the use, the applicant must request permission to consume
or dispense alcoholic beverages from the Board [[OR] Manager]. The applicant shall obtain
any other permits required for the dispensing or consumption of alcoholic beverages,
including but not limited to any liquor permits required by Douglas County. The applicant
shall ensure that no participant in the park use shall use or possess any liquid container made
wholly or partially of glass or metal, and demonstrate, as a part of the application, the
measures to be taken to restrict alcoholic beverage containers and to ensure that no alcoholic
beverage will be consumed or dispensed outside of the area of the park.

Smoking Prohibited:

Smoking is prohibited in the park except where specifically authorized.

Security/Police Protection: [is the Town enforcing this?]

Security and police protection may be required for certain [removed “any”] uses of the
park[, subject to the Board’s/Manager’s discretion, and subject to the Dou glas County Code].
If required by the Board, the applicant shall employ at his, their or its own expense, law

Kl &



13.

14.

enforcement [removed “police”] protection. The number and type of officers shall be
determined and specified by the Douglas County Sheriff's Office to provide for the
preservation of order and protection of property in and around the park. The applicant shall
demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Town Board [[OR Manager] that the applicant has
obtained the approval of the Douglas County Sheriff of all arrangements for security for the
use. The applicant shall be responsible for all costs of security which shall be determined
by, and paid to, the Douglas County Sheriff's Office or its designee. Security shall be subject
to the complete direction and control of the Sheriff’s Office.

Sanitation Facilities:

The park facilities include limited sanitation facilities. Depending upon the event proposed,
an applicant may be required[, at the discretion of the Board/Manager,] to provide at least
one enclosed portable chemical toilet, or one enclosed flush type water closet facility, marked
"Men," and one facility marked "Women," at the park on the basis of one such facility for
each forty (40) males, and one such facility for each forty (40) females expected to be in
attendance.

Every applicant shall be required to provide for solid waste disposal. All solid waste
disposal shall be provided by the Gardnerville Health and Sanitation Department which,
based upon the application, shall determine the number and type of containers, and pickup
and removal of refuse, trash, garbage and rubbish. Removal of all trash and refuse shall be
at the applicant's expense.

The applicant shall provide adequate assurance to the [Board/Manager] that, at the
conclusion of the use, the park shall be cleaned, and all refuse and garbage removed within

twenty-four (24) hours of the time of the conclusion of the use.

Cleaning Deposit: [is this being enforced?]

A cleaning deposit will be required to be paid upon approval of each application based upon
the content of the completed application. If the application is denied by the Board [[OR]
Manager], no cleaning deposit shall be required. If the application is approved, the
application fee may be applied to pay a part of the cleaning deposit.

The cleaning deposit will be established by the Town staff[OR] by the Board based upon the
use proposed, and based upon the Board's [[OR] Manager’s] consideration of the matters set
forth within a completed application, including, without limitation, the planned use, the
number of attendees anticipated, whether or not alcohol will be dispensed or consumed, the
hours of operation, and the sanitation facilities required.

The cleaning deposit may be refunded, in whole or in part[, subject to the Board’s/ Manager’s
discretion,] to the applicant at the conclusion of the park use after inspection by Town staff

7-14



15.

16.

I

for any additional clean-up and/or damages other than normal wear and tear. The applicant
will remain responsible for any additional damages, cleaning or repair expenses as a result
of the use [being enforced?]. A refund, if the Town [[OR] Manager] determines it is due,
will be returned to the applicant within thirty (30) days of the park use.

If the application is approved, the applicant will be given instructions for cleaning the park
prior to the event. If, after the event has concluded, additional cleaning is required, it will
be provided by the Town. The applicant will be charged a minimum of $25.00 per hour for
such cleaning [being enforced?]. The costs of such additional cleaning shall be deducted
from the deposit.

Damage to Facilities:

Any applicant whose use of the park causes damage or excessive wear and tear to the park
or its fixtures shall be required to reimburse the Town for all costs to repair, replace, restore,
repaint or clean up the affected area to its original condition prior to the use [enforced?].

Any damage caused by a park use beyond normal wear and tear shall cause any future
application submitted by the same person or entity to be reviewed to determine if the
applicant will be allowed to use the park and its facilities in the future.

Reservation Fee:

A reservation fee of $500.00 [other amount?] ("basic rate") is established by Board. The
Town Manager may [shall?] review and recommend fees as set forth in this policy depending
upon the use of the park proposed.

Classification of Uses and Charges:

A. When two or more applications for use of the park are received by the Town, and
each requests use of the park for the same time period, approval of an application for
the requested time period shall be based upon the following classification of uses.

No application to use the park for a period of time shall be granted by the Town ifthe
Town [[OR] Manager] has previously approved of an application for use of the park
during the same period of time. The Town Board's policy is that the classification
of uses established in this section of the policy is to be applied only when two or
more applications are received, and each requests use of the park for the same period
of time.

B. Class I: No fee (0% of basic rate) [moved parentheses]

a. Non-profit county youth groups when the activity is open to the
public for activities and meetings for recreational purposes.

7-18



b. Non-recreation groups or community organizations providing adult
or youth group recreation activities which are free and open to the
public.

& All governmental meetings and fund-raising activities sponsored by
a government agency when a reciprocal agreement exists with the
governmental applicant.

Class I users include, without limitation, county youth groups or agencies serving
youth which are non-profit, tax exempt or not for profit activities whose primary
purpose is to provide for recreation for Douglas County residents. A majority of
participants must be Douglas County residents. Any fee charged for the activity must
be used for the support of the activity. For governmental agencies, the fund-raising
activity must relate to the governmental operations.

Class II: One-half (50%) of basic rate.

Recreational or charitable fund-raising activities for local, community youth serving
groups and non-recreational groups when all funds raised support community,
charitable and/or recreational activities.

This rate pertains primarily to fund-raising activities by county community
organizations and youth serving agencies in support of recreation and/or community
activities. Fund-raising activities must have as a main purpose the generation of
funds to support the youth or community activities.

Class I1I: Full basic rate ($500.00 [different amount? lower amount, e.g., $250,
if not currently enforcing fee rate?] or 100%)

Groups included within this classification are religious, political or union groups
conducting meetings; private parties, individual uses and family uses which are not
open to the general public; and closed and open dances and fund-raising events where
the funds which are raised are not used to support a community or local recreational
activity.

Class IIT uses are usually with private functions and are not open to the public,
including private parties, individual uses and family uses. Class III includes
community organizations where the event will not generate funds for the organization
or will not be open to the public.

Class IV: 100% of basic rate ($500 or lower?) plus a percentage

Class IV uses will include commercial or personal use of the park for financial gain.

716



18.

The full basic rate plus a negotiated percentage of gross receipts, or a flat rate based
on a fee as approved by the Board [[OR] Manager].

Class IV includes a significant activity whose purpose is a commercial use and which
constitutes a major impact upon the public. Any request for a Class IV use must be
approved by the Board [[OR] Manager] which may review, among other factors, the
nature of the profit-making organization, company or enterprise.

F, The Board's policy is that, for competing applications for the same period of time, the
Manager shall rate the competing applications based upon the classification of uses
set forth within this section so long as no other approved application has requested
use of the park for the same period of time.

Additional Charges:

Additional charges may be levied over the basic rate charged when any one or more of the
following occur:

a. When the facility would not normally be open and Town staff are required to be on
duty or to perform a service.

b. When the applicant requests Town staff to assist in set-up, breakdown, clean-up, park
preparation or other maintenance duties when required during other than normal
operating hours.

¢ When Town staff are required for control of the event.

d. When the proposed use requires park renovation or facility repair as a result of the
proposed activity.

€. When damage to the park and its facilities is reasonably foreseeable, or has incurred,
and includes without limitation all material costs, supplies and labor.

The determination of requirements for additional charges shall be made by the Manager. The
applicant will be charged at the rate of $25.00 per hour when use of Town staff is required,
such use as determined by the Manager..

A total of the basic rate and any additional deposit, as required by this schedule, shall be paid
in full at the time of the submission of the application. In no event shall any fee required by
the Town be paid later than [0/ 7/ 10/ 30] days prior to the date of the event. If the fees are
not paid in full prior to [0/ 7/ 10/ 30] days prior to the event, the permit shall be revoked
and an appropriate cancellation fee will be assessed based upon any Town costs at the time
of the revocation.

=17



19,

20.

Refunds:

Any applicant may cancel an application prior to its approval and receive a full refund, less
a $25.00 administration fee.

Anapproved applicant may cancel its reservation [___ - will need to be modified depending
on Board determination of deadlines] calendar days prior to the event with a full refund, less
a $25.00 administration fee.

If cancellation is made between 29 days and 10 days prior to the date of the reservation, a
cancellation fee shall be assessed based upon fifty percent (50%) of all fees, or 100% of the
deposit, whichever is less [will need to be modified depending on Board determination of
deadlines].

In the event an event is cancelled within 10 days of the scheduled event, no refunds will be
given [will need to be modified depending on Board determination of deadlines].

A deposit to ensure appropriate use of the park and cleaning and repair shall be established
by the Town Board [Board needs to determine the amount]. Deposits are refundable subject
to an inspection of the park and its facilities after the event for wear and tear of the park, and
subject to any cleaning, repair or administrative fees.

In the event that the applicant proposes to close any streets or alleyways within the Town,
the applicant shall also comply with the Town's rules and regulations regarding street
closure/special events as set forth in its policy.

When an application for reservation for an exclusive use of Heritage Park and its facilities
is received, this policy and its rules and regulations shall supersede the Town's Park Use

Policy.

The Town shall provide a copy of this Policy to the applicant at the time of furnishing an
application.

10
1=I7



Gardnerville
__x

Nevada

Town of Gardnerville
Park Reservation Form and Release of Liability and Indemnification Agreement

I (Application and all applicable fees must be submitred 160 days/J0/7/10 /30 days] before use)
Date of Application: Area Desired:
Organization or Individual Phone # Home Work
Contact Person: E-mail
Mailing Address:
Supervisor of Activity: Music: (yes/no) Beer/Wine: (yes/no)
Day(s) Requested: Mon/Tues/Wed/Thurs/Fri/Sat/Sun Date:  From_ To
Type of Activity:
Exact Date & Time of Event: Size of Group:
Setup begins: Teardown complete by:

Reason for Reservation:

Concessions/Fund Raisers (Indicate Type):

Town services required (electrical outlets, etc.):

Will you have tents, bounce houses, canopies, dance floors etc?
Specify:

(how many, dimensions, etc.)

(Stakes are not permitted for use in securing tents, etc.)
(Bounce houses, dance floors or tents larger than 20” X 20° are subject to additional security deposits and/or
insurance coverage.)

*Groups of 50 or more require a mandatory dumpster service ($25.00/dumpster)

P { Formatted: Highlight

| *No cooking or barbecuing allowed on the pavilion Jremove? For Heritage Park onlv?]
**Park restrooms are winterized from Thanksgiving to the end of March. If your event will require the

| the restrooms at the park to be available during the winter there will be an extra charge of $50.

7-19

[ Formatted: Highlight

~( Formatted: Highlight




Town of Garduerville
Park Reservation Form
Page 2

The UNDERSIGNED, for himself/herself and on behalf of the above named group, does hereby agree to profect,
indemnify, save and keep harmless, the Town of Gardnerville, its elected and appointed officials, employees and
volunteers and others working on behalf of the Town of Gardnerville from any and all claims, demands, suits or loss,
including all costs connected therewith, and for any damages which may be asserted, claimed or recovered against or
Jirom the Town of Gardnerville, its elected and appointed officials, employees, volunteers or others working on behalf of
the Town of Gardnerville, by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury or death and/or property damage,

including loss of use thereof, which arises out of or is in any way connected or associated with this Application and -r-'LFormatted: Highlight

Agreement eowtraet.

1do hereby certify that, in representation of the above named group, I have received a copy of the rules and regulations
governing use of the Town of Gardnerville parks and that I have read and will observe all rules and regulations.

Applicant’s Signature:

Date: Typed or Printed Name

RESERVATION FEE AND DEPOSIT MUST ACCOMPANY RESERVATION FORM
A copy of the approved form must be at the event.

(Town Office Use Only)

Amount Paid: Date Processed:
Receipt Number: Facility Reviewed: o
Date Received: e Deposit Retumned (Date):

Reservation Approved By: Refund Approved:

Updated 6/24/07 L:\town policies\parks

P (n



TOWN OF GARDNERVILLE
c—;}er‘g\‘ﬂ{!ﬁg STREET CLOSURE/SPECIAL EVENTS POLICY

RULES AND REGULATIONS

1. Street Closure/Special Events Policy:

The Gardnerville Town Board ("Board") finds and declares that the public health, safety and
welfare of the inhabitants of the Town of Gardnerville ("Town") requires the regulation and
control of all persons desiring to promote, encourage or sponsor special events which may
include closure of certain streets or alleyways within the Town for limited amounts of time.

The Board will, for special events within the Town, allow for the closure of certain streets for
limited amounts of time for the purpose of conducting special events. No person or entity
shall conduct a special event within the Town without first applying to the Town office for a
permit issued by the Board [[OR] Town Manager] for the conduct of the special event and/or
street closure. Any completed application submitted will be placed on the next available Town
Board agenda for review and consideration by the Board [remove last sentence if Board gives
Manager authority to approve/deny applications].

2. Definition:

A special event, which may or may not involve the closure of a street or alleyway within the
Town, is defined to include any entertainment event which is organized or promoted for
commercial purposes whether or not an admission fee or donation is requested or required. A
special event shall also include any music festival, dance festival, parade, rock festival, similar
music activity, or any other activity which may involve the use of the Town streets, alleyways
and/or parks. The Town Board's permission shall also be first sought when a special event
includes music provided by paid or amateur performers or by pre-recorded means, which is
held at any place other than a permanent building or permanent installation 333which has been
constructed for the purpose of conducting such activities or similar activities. The Town
Board's [[OR] Manager’s] approval of any event to which members of the public are invited or
admitted for a charge or free of cost shall be obtained prior to the event.

A special event is also defined to mean any event where the sponsor of the event conducts any
activity related to the event on a street, alleyway or park within the Town of Gardnerville
requiring its/their complete or partial closure.

The term "street" as used in this policy includes Hwy. 395 in the Town of Gardnerville.

3. Permit Required:

No person or entity shall operate, maintain, conduct, advertise or sell or furnish tickets for a
special event in the Town unless a permit from the Board [[OR] Town] is first obtained after

Adopted 1/7/03 Revised 2/4/03

7-2\



public hearing before the Board [remove public hearing requirement if Manager given
authority to approve/deny applications].

4, Application:

An application for permission to conduct a special event, which may or may not involve the
closure of a street, park or alleyway within the Town, shall be made in writing to the Town
Manager at least [0/ 7/ 10/ 30] days prior to the time indicated for the commencement of the
planned event; shall be accompanied by a refundable application fee of $100.00: and shall
contain the following information to be considered complete and eligible for consideration by
the Town Board [[OR] Manager]:

A. The name, age, residence and mailing address of the person or entity making
the application. If the application is made by an entity, the names and
addresses of the principals of the entity must appear. Where the applicant is a
corporation, the application must be signed by the president, vice-president and
secretary of the corporation and must contain the residence addresses of the
corporate officers and a certified copy of the Articles of Incorporation as a part
of the application.

B. A statement of the kind, character or type of special event which the applicant
proposes to conduct, operate or carry on, and if applicable, the name(s) of the
street(s), park(s) or alleyway(s) within the Town for which permission to close
such street, park or alleyway is sought.

2 The home, office and/or work telephone numbers of the applicant, and if the
application is by an entity, the home, office and/or work telephone numbers of
the principals. If the application is made by a corporation, the home, office
and/or work telephone numbers of the president, vice-president, and secretary
shall be supplied.

D. The address or legal description of the place where the proposed special event
is to be conducted, operated or carried on, and the name(s) of the street(s),
park(s) and alleyway(s), and the length of such street(s), park(s) or alleyway(s)
sought to be closed. The applicant shall also submit proofthat the fee owner of
the property where the special event is to be conducted consents, in writing,
that the site may be used for the proposed special event.

E. The date or dates and hours during which the special event is proposed to be
conducted.
F. An estimate of the number of patrons, customers, spectators, participants

and/or other persons expected to attend the special event for each day it is

Adopted 1/7/03 Revised 2/4/03



proposed to be conducted.

G. Proof that the applicant has sought and received the requisite approvals from
Douglas County, including, without limitation, and if required, a liquor license
and/or an outdoor festival and entertainment event license, and that the
applicant has received all approvals from Douglas County. Failure to submit
the requisite proof of Douglas County approval(s) shall be deemed to be an
automatic determination that the application is incomplete, and shall not be
heard by the Board until complete.

H. The refundable application fee for a complete application may be applied to the
security deposit required. Should a security deposit be waived by the Board
[[OR] Manager] as provided below, the application fee may be refunded, if the
Town [[OR] Manager] determines it is due, within thirty (30) days after the
special event/street closure.

5. Festival Plans:

Included with the application shall be a detailed explanation of the applicant's plans to provide
security and fire protection, water supply and facilities, food supply and facilities, sanitation
facilities, medical facilities and services, vehicle parking spaces, vehicle access and on-site
traffic control, and what provision shall be made for numbers of spectators in excess of the
applicant's estimated attendance. The applicant shall also provide for clean-up of the premises
and removal of garbage and refuse after the event has concluded.

If the applicant requests the closure of a street, park or alleyway within in the Town, the
applicant shall provide a detailed plan of the event including signs, barricades, traffic control
and parking.

Should the Town Board [[OR] Manager] approve of the applicant's request to close a street or
alleyway, the applicant shall be required to provide notice to all residents and tenants affected
by the closure at least seven (7) days [suggest at least 7 days] in advance and provide notice
to the Town Manager that such residents and tenants have consented to the closure of the street
and/or alleyway. Such consent(s) is not required for park use.

Should the application for a special event/street closure be for a site which is contiguous to
Hwy. 395, or which involves the closure of a street or alleyway mtersecting Hwy. 395, the
applicant shall submit with the application written evidence of approval of the special
event/street closure by the Nevada Department of Transportation.

6. Insurance:

As part of the application, each applicant shall supply proof of insurance. C omprehensive

Adopted 1/7/03 Revised 2/4/03

7-3dD



general liability insurance naming the Town of Gardnerville as an additional insured and
certificate holder will be required for any special event/street closure with minimum limits of
insurance of $1 million for each occurrence and $1 million annual aggregate. Insurance
coverage must include premises, operations, products and completed operations, at a
minimum,

T Alcohol:

Should the applicant desire to dispense alcoholic beverages, or to permit the consumption of
alcoholic beverages as part of the special event and/or street closure, the applicant must
request permission to consume or dispense alcoholic beverages from the Town Board [[OR]
Manager]. The applicant shall ensure that no participant in the special event/street closure
shall use or possess any liquid container made wholly or partially of glass or metal, and
demonstrate, as a part of the application, the measures to be taken to restrict alcoholic
beverage containers and to ensure that no alcoholic beverage will be consumed or dispensed
outside of the area of the site where the special event/street closure will occur. The applicant
is also responsible for obtaining any other alcohol or liquor permits required by the Douglas
County Code or other laws or regulations.

8. Security/Police Protection:

For every special event/street closure permit, the applicant shall employ, at his, their or its own
expense, law enforcement [remove “police”] protection. The number and type of officers
shall be determined and specified by the Douglas County Sheriff's Office to provide for the
preservation of order and protection of property in and around the place of the special
event/street closure. The applicant shall demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Town Board
[[OR] Manager] that the applicant has obtained the approval of the Douglas County Sheriff of
all arrangements for security for the special event/street closure. The applicant shall be
responsible for all costs of security which shall be determined by, and paid to, the Douglas
County Sheriff's Office or its designee. Security shall be subject to the complete direction and
control of the sheriff.

9, Hours of Operation:

All special events which are subject to this policy shall close and cease operation continuously
between the hours of 12:00 a.m. and 9:00 a.m. of each and every day of the special event,
unless different hours of operation of the special event are approved by the Board [[OR]
Manager].

10. Sanitation Facilities:

Every applicant shall provide at least one enclosed portable, chemical toilet, or one enclosed
flush type water closet facility marked "Men" and one facility marked "Women" at the site of

Adopted 1/7/03 Revised 2/4/03
4

7-a4



the special event/street closure on the basis of one such facility for each forty (40) males and
one such facility for each forty (40) females expected to be in attendance.

Every applicant shall be required to provide for solid waste disposal. All solid waste disposal
shall be provided by the Gardnerville Health and Sanitation Department which, based upon the
application, shall determine the number and type of containers, and pickup and removal of
refuse, trash, garbage and rubbish. Removal of all trash and refuse shall be at the applicant's
expense.

The applicant shall provide adequate assurance to the Town [[OR] Manager] that, at the
conclusion of the special event, the site of the special event shall be cleaned, and all refuse and
garbage removed within twenty-four (24) hours of the time of the conclusion of the special
event/street closure.

11.  Cleaning Deposit:

A cleaning deposit will be required to be paid upon approval of each application based upon
the content of the completed application. If the application is denied by the Board [[OR]
Manager], no cleaning deposit shall be required. If the application is approved, the refundable
application fee may be applied to pay a part of the cleaning deposit.

The cleaning deposit will be established by the Town staff and by the Board [need to establish
a deposit amount] based upon the special event proposed, and based upon the Board's [[OR]
Manager’s] consideration of the matters set forth within a completed application, including,
without limitation, the festival plan, the number of attendees anticipated, whether or not
alcohol will be dispensed or consumed, the hours of operation, and the sanitation facilities
required.

The cleaning deposit may be refunded, in whole or in part, [and subject to the discretion of the
Manager.] to the applicant at the conclusion of the special event/street closure after inspection
by Town staff for any additional clean-up and/or damages other than normal wear and tear.
The applicant will remain responsible for any additional damages, cleaning or repair expenses
as a result of the special event/street closure. A refund, if the Town [[OR] Manager]
determines it is due, will be returned to the applicant within thirty (30) days of the special
event/street closure.

If the application is approved, the applicant will be given instructions for cleaning the site of
the special event/street closure prior to the event. If, after the event has concluded, additional
cleaning is required, it will be provided by the Town. The applicant will be charged a
minimum of $25.00 per hour for such cleaning. The costs of such additional cleaning shall be
deducted from the cleaning deposit.

12. Park Use:

Adopted 1/7/03 Revised 2/4/03

Pl



In the event that the special event/street closure application contemplates use of a Town park,
the applicant shall comply with all of the Town's rules and regulations relating to park use.

Adopted 1/7/03 Revised 2/4/03



Gardneyville

—'J" Nevada Town of Gardnerville
] Application for Street Closure and/or Special Event
1407 Highway 395
Gardnerville, Nevada 89410
(775) 782-7134 (775) 782-7135 Fax

Date of Application:
(Application must be submitted at least days before the street closure or special event)

Location of Event/Activities:
(submit letter of property owner’s permission if event is to be held on private property)

Street(s) proposing to be closed:
(US 395, SR756 require NDOT permission*Waterloo/Toler/Elges require County permission)

Requesting use of Heritage Park? Yes No

Organization: Corporation: Yes No
(if a corporation is applying for use, a certified copy of the Articles of Incorporation must be attached).

Contact Person:

Home Telephone #: Business Telephone # Fax #:

(If applicant is an entity, must include home or business telephone numbers of principals; if applicant is a
corporation, must include home or business telephone numbers of president, vice president, and secretary of
corporation)

Mailing Address:
(If applicant is an entity or corporation, must include names and addresses of principals of entity or officers
of corporation)

Type of Activity Park will be used for:

Will alcohol be sold or served? Yes No
(If alcohol to be served, it may be necessary to obtain additional appropriate liquor licenses/permits)

Band or amplified music? Yes No
This event is Non-Profit For Profit Closed to Public Open to Public
Will a fee be charged to attend the event? Yes No

Date(s) Requested (include setup and tear down time):

Event hours:

Describe proposed event, concessions, fund-raisers, etc:

2/

~J
]



Number of patrons, customers, spectators, participants and/or other persons expected to attend the use for
each day it is proposed to be conducted:
(If more than 500 people are expected to atiend the event, a Douglas County outdoor festival permit is
required)

Event Insurance Carrier & Telephone #:

Event Security Plan:

(Submit Douglas County Sheriff’s Office authorization and approval)

Water and Sanitation Plan if food is being sold or consumed during event:

Event Clean-up/Sanitation/Garbage Plan:

(garbage dumpsters/porta-a-cans/restrooms/etc.)

Fire/Emergency Medical Services Plan:

(Submit East Fork Fire Protection District authorization and approval)

Event Parking Area:

(Heritage Park Parking MUST remain open for visitors at all times)

Event Layout: Applicants MUST provide a drawing(s) clearly showing event area(s), streets requested for
closure, booth spaces, etc. If requesting use of Heritage Park, a Town furnished template will be provided
indicating utility lines and other event constraints.

Waiver of Liability: Said group agrees that it shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Town of
Gardnerville and Douglas County from any and all expenses or damages which may occur, or liability that it may
sustain, including reasonable attorney’s fees, administrative costs, and court costs, by reason of the Town'’s
permission to said group for conducting referenced event at denoted location. Said group, through its
representative, hereby agrees to abide by the conditions of approval of the Town Board [[OR] Manager| and any
other conditions that may be set forth by Douglas County. Said group acknowledges that it has received a copy of
and has read the Town's Sireet Closure / Special Event Policy, and agrees to be subject to that Policy, including
but not limited to any required fees, deposits, or other charges.

Date: ~ Signature:

(If applicant is a corporation, must include signature of
president, vice president, and secretary of corporation)

Printed name above:

(Town Office Use Only)

Deposit amount Paid: Date Processed:
Receipt Number: Facility Reviewed:

Z2-a¥




Scheduled for Town Board Agenda:
Approved:
Scheduled for Douglas County Commissioner Agenda:

Approved:
Deposit Returned:

A copy of the approved form MUST be at the event

-2



Tl i |

Gardnervﬂle
"= Nevada

Gardnerville Town Board

AGENDA ACTION SHEET

1. Not for Possible Action. Discussion on the Town Attorney’s Monthly Report
of activities for November 2012

2. Recommended Motion: None
Funds Available: I Yes ¥ N/A
3. Department: Administration
Prepared by: Tom Dallaire
4. Meeting Date: December 4, 2012 Time Requested: 10 minutes
5. Agenda: | Consent ¥ Administrative
6. Background Information: Presented at meeting
7. Other Agency Review of Action: L Yes ¥ N/A

8. Board Action:

L_Approved L_Approved with Modifications
" Denied L_Continued

m
Agenda Item #8



rardnerville
"9 Nevada

Gardnerville Town Board

AGENDA ACTION SHEET

1. Not for Possible Action. Discussion on the Town Manager/Engineer’s
Monthly Report of activities for November 2012

2. Recommended Motion: None
Funds Available: I Yes ¥ N/A
3. Department: Administration
Prepared by: Tom Dallaire
4. Meeting Date: December 4, 2012 Time Requested: 10 minutes
5. Agenda: | Consent ¥ Administrative
6. Background Information: See report
7. Other Agency Review of Action: L Yes ¥ N/A

8. Board Action:

L Approved iApproved with Modifications
' Denied L Continued

ke
Agenda Item #9



Paul Lindsay, Chairman

Ken Miller, Vice Chairman
Mike Philips, Board Member
Linda Slater, Board Member
Lloyd Higuera, Board Member

Town Managet/Engineer's Monthly Report
December 4, 2012 Board Meeting

A. Toler Lane Improvements: — Impact will start on Monday clearing out the old grass and
hauling the dirt out (reducing the Jandscape area to 2" below the sidewalk so the DG can be
backfilled around the shrubs. Impact will also be hauling the DG in the area already planted.
DG was not delivered as staff had so many issues with decorations and lights, which seem to
be ongoing.

B. Walmart: Was authorized the Temporary C of O. The interior improvements are being done,
and then they will be stocking the store. They are removing the curb returns, that were just
installed on Grant and one side at Service Drive, even the 50' radius that was right at the
intersection of Grant. RO Anderson designed a larger radius of 60 to 65' depending on the
location. (see the attached plan set) The county approved this work. We have been informed
of the changes, but we did not get to review them.

C. Minden Gardnerville Trail Plan: Nothing this month transpired. We are meeting next month.
We did get an inquiry from a Kingslane resident and he was wondering about the evergreen
wall that was supposed to be installed along the property line. We will need to figure out a
block wall or vine wall for the new walkway. It does not sound like they want to have a walkway
into the Kingslane area. CVIis working on the parking lot expansion and the portion of the trail
behind their facility.

D. Eddy Street Lighting: We are waiting on NV energy to install the power to the meter. Then we
will install the decorations.

E. 395 Sidewalk (Kingslane): The agreement was turned into NDOT. | have not received the
signed NDQOT agreement back so we can proceed with the re-design. Once we get the
agreement back, we will start working on the revised design to review with NDOT staff.

F. Toiyabe Sidewalk: Permit is ready to be issued. We are waiting on the final budget transfers
and augmentations so funds can be identified to do this project.

G. Hellwinkel Channel: | had a meeting scheduled with Denny this month to review the plans
and progress on the channel. He got sick and had to cancel. Then he was out of town for
Turkey day. We will have a meeting in the next two weeks. They are getting close to an 80%
design of the channel and possibly a presentation to the Board.

H. Office tems:

* Douglas County Standard Details: Josh and | are reviewing the county improvement
standards and design criteria and will provide them with comments, Next meeting in two
weeks.

+ | attended NV League of Cities Local Government Summit.

This was the second summit that anyone can remember with both, NACO and NLC's
members. |t was a histotic event and | think will become a normal meeting. Another C tax
presentation was done. They gave some really good information at state wide level. I'm
searching to see if | can find the information for Douglas County or Gardnerville. They
talked again how Nevada can encourage economic development and what we need to
improve to attract business. Again education and good workforce labor training in
manufacturing and machining sector was discussed.

Manager/Engineer Project Status Report Page [9-2



Paul Lindsay, Chairman

Ken Miller, Vice Chairman
Mike Philips, Board Member
Linda Slater, Board Member
Lloyd Higuera, Board Member

» | attended the Carson Valley Vision Committee: The information from last meeting was put
into three areas and separated into goals for the vision. They have 12 points that we will be
focusing on. The next meeting will be at the end of January. Date and time will be determined
and the meeting will be a public workshop. They will be obtaining additional ideas and
concerns of the public and see if they are in line with what the group came up with. This will be
a great opportunity for the board members to learn the process and have your own input on
what you would like to see improved in Gardnerville. This will be a document that the county
will be working into the Priority Based Budgeting and CIP and the Master Plan. When the
document is complete the town will need to update the Plan for Prosperity. What is the Board's
thoughts on having Gardnerville Plan for Prosperity updated in conjunction with Minden's Plan
for Prosperity.

» Fireworks: Does the Board want to discuss this next month. | have had so much positive
feedback from the Christmas Kickoff event. We could continue this tradition of having it on the
Kickoff event. Steve Eisele would prefer to have it in December in a rain or snow storm with
snow on the ground. The July event will have a higher probability of being canceled for fire
danger, especially in years when the weather is very dry for several years in a row and the fire
hazard is high.

e Parade of Lights: | can provide a report on the event at the meeting the parade is this
Saturday.

« Staff ordered the new HD security system this week and town staff will be doing the install. We
never heard back from Pool Pact for our grant request we submitted two months ago, and we
had to go out of pocket on this one.

* | helped work on the county's overall Priority Based Budgeting process as a member on the
governance committee, where we reviewed the rankings of each department program for the
governance element. There will be a workshop for the BOCC this coming month on December
7th.  You are invited to attend the presentation to learn of the program from Douglas County
staff.

» | attended the Flood Hazard Mitigation Plan Flood Committee, meeting. Josh and | are working
on the potential flooding concerns in the valley. This will assist in the development of a more
comprehensive list of flooding issues and will identify specific flooding threats as it relates to
emergency access within the Carson Valley.

» The Lions Club, Ron Santi, contacted us about planting a pine tree in Gardnerville as part of
their ecology “plant a tree”. The new 12' pine tree will be located in Heritage Park Gardens.
The tree will be planted in the kid's garden area to provide shade for the future garden.

¢ Josh & | attended a class on micro surfacing and slurry seal products and the various
technology advancements in the products. It was a great class and Josh and | will be attending
a class in Las Vegas for a week for hands on installation and inspection of the slurry seals that
are available.

e | met with Mimi Moss, Community Development Director and Paul Howell, Douglas County
Sheriff’s office, to discuss the issues and violations at Southgate industrial park. We devised a
plan to go door to door to discuss the issues and violations we see on site and try to work with
the owners of the business to get the area cleaned up. Many of the businesses do not have a
fenced in storage area and cannot store cars in the parking spaces that were provided with the

_development. There is no mechanism for the county to control what type of business use goes

Manager/ Engineer Project Status Report Page [9-3



Paul Lindsay, Chairman

_ Ken Miller, Vice Chairman
erviil Mike Philips, Board Member
Nevada Linda Slater, Board Member
Lloyd Higuera, Board Member

Town
ofy

into the facility. Anyone can open a business wherever they want to locate that business. A
County Business License would help with this issue. | will be attending a walk through on
Tuesday before the board meeting with the code enforcement officer and a sheriff’s officer to
discuss the violations. A warning letter will follow our face-to-face visits with the specific
violations that will give the owners 30 days notice to clean up the site. If they do not comply
within 30 days the sheriff’'s officer will start writing tickets at that time. There are so many
issues and everyone is guilty, the sheriff's office did not think they should just go out and write
citations until we talked through the problems with the owners. You may receive calls due to
this cleanup effort.

Some items | would like to discuss, no action, as it is worthy of coming before the Board, time
pending:

o January 2, at 10:00 am at the Office of the Judge Gibbons Chambers will be the
swearing into office for Lloyd and Mary. So please come celebrate with them and
show your support.

o The annual town board member training is upon us. | was planning on combining
with Minden and Genoa's Boards? | will begin coordinating this NRS required special
training meeting with the other managers and get this done in February or March if
everyone will be in town. Do any of you know which dates are not good, where you
will be out of town? You are required to have the open meeting law and county land
use planning session every year. With new board members, we should also consider
the ethics training this year. That can be separate training if Genoa and Minden do
not want to have that class.

o | also have had a short conversation with Rob Anderson about the Ranch at
Gardnerville and have authorized them to perform a couple test pits on the open
space for the construction of the 10 acres of wetlands they still have the right to
develop on the town’s open space parcel. They will be using the excavated material
for fil dirt on the Ranch project. This will come before the Board should they get
positive results from the test pit excavation.

o Staff started to review a design review application for a new development project on
the corner of Grant and US 395. That was pulled from the agenda this month by the
applicant and will be back next month.

anager/Engineer Project Status Report Page |9-4



Gardnerville Town Board )/,:n\/\

Gardnerville
AGENDA ACTION SHEET g Nevada

1. For Possible Action: Discussion to approve Proclamation 2012P-03 recognizing
Paul Lindsay for his dedicated service to the Town of Gardnerville, with public
comment prior to Board action.

2. Recommended Motion: Approve Proclamation 2012P-03 recognizing Paul
Lindsay for his dedicated service to the Town of Gardnerville.
Funds Available: “ Yes L N/A
3. Department: Administration
Prepared by: Tom Dallaire
4. Meeting Date:  December 6,2012 Time Requested: 5 minutes
5. Agenda: ' Consent Y Administrative
Background Information: See attached Proclamation.

6. Other Agency Review of Action: " Douglas County " N/A

7. Board Action:

L_Approved 'i Approved with Modifications
" Denied L Continued

“
e ————————————————
Agenda Item # 10



G dnerwﬂe

Nevada

Proclamation
2012P-03
A PROCLAMATION BY THE GARDNERVILLE TOWN BOARD RECOGNIZING THE
CONTRIBUTION OF PAUL A. LINDSAY AS A TOWN BOARD MEMBER FOR THE
YEARS 2002-2012; and

WHEREAS, Paul A. Lindsay has served this community as a member of the
Gardnerville Town Board (“Board”) from 2002-2012; and

WHEREAS, Paul has been recognized by the Board serving as both Chairman and
Vice-Chairman of the Board during his term in office; and

WHEREAS, the Board has led the Town through progressive change in all aspects
of local government, opening lines of communication with other agencies, civic
groups, and the public; and

WHEREAS, during Paul’s tenure on the Board, the Town has completed the garage
addition at the maintenance facility; the Heritage Park pavilion; compieted Main
Street Lighting Phases 1 & 2; the trail at the Martin Slough Nature Park;
implemented a street pavement index; acquired 7.3 acres of open space and
three historic barns known as the Hellwinkel Ranch; the Pinenut Basin Flood
Study; helped create Main Street Gardnerville, served on Main Street’s Board of
Directors the past three years and served on Main Street Gardnerville’s Economic
Restructuring Committee; created the first Christmas Kickoff musical light show at
Heritage Park; and



WHEREAS, the community is a better place as a result of Paul’s tireless dedication
and commitment to Town citizens, businesses, and visitors.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS SET FORTH, that the Gardnerville Town
Board herein recognizes Paul Lindsay for his exceptional contributions and service
to the community during his term on the Gardnerville Town Board.

ADOPTED: This 4™ day of December, 2012, by the following vote:

GARDNERVILLE TOWN BOARD MEMBERS:

Ken Miller Mike Philips
Linda Slater Lloyd Higuera
ATTEST:

Tom Dallaire

Gardnerville Town Manager/Engineer
APPROVED AS TO FORM
AND CONTENT: Tyler Altom, Esq

Gardnerville Town Counsel

[0-53



	Gardnerville Board Mtg
	December agenda
	November draft minutes
	1-Correspondence
	2-H & S rpt
	3-November claims pd
	4-H & S writeoffs
	5-New Beginnings Housing LLC
	6-Main Street Mgr's rpt
	7-Park policy revisions
	8-Town Attorney's rpt
	9-Town Manager/Engineer's rpt
	10-Proclamation 2012P-03

